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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for May 4 th , is
now in session. Good morning, Members, and I apologize for the late start. Chair had a meeting
with several people this morning. At this time, the Chair would like to introduce the Members
that are here this morning. We do have Member Carroll...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aloha kakahiaka.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, and aloha.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. From the Administration, we do have from Corporation
Counsel, Adrianne Heely.
MS. HEELY: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz.
MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And supporting the Committee, this morning, we do have Scott Kaneshina,
Michele Yoshimura, as well as Camille Sakamoto. Members, we do have several people signed
up for public testimony this morning. But before we take public testimony, everyone of us can
turn our cell phone to the silent mode or turn it off. Okay, Members, for those of you that are
providing testimony this morning, you have three minutes to provide your testimony. One
minute, the Chair will allow one minute to conclude, and when you come up to the lectern, if you
can speak directly into the mike Once you're done, if you could remain at the lectern for a few,
few moments, you may have some questions from the Members this morning. And when you
come up, state your name, organization that you represent. So, Members, the first testifier this
morning is Hannah Bernard.
ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. 11-80, 11-100, and 11-101)
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. BERNARD: Good morning, Council Members, Chair--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. BERNARD: --it's a pleasure to see you this morning and mahalo for the opportunity to testify. I'm
Hannah Bernard, President of Hawaii Wildlife Fund, and this morning I'm also here to represent,
as a member of the board of the Save Honolua Coalition and the DIRE Coalition, which is an
entity that's composed of individuals, businesses, educators, conservationists, all kinds of people,
all kinds of change-makers, who are dedicated to helping to recover our wastewater and reuse it.
DIRE stands for Don't Inject Redirect, which you've heard about before I know so I won't go
into detail about that. I'd like to specifically address two items in the budget, and I'm gonna
apologize at the outset because I have been off island, I'm severely jet lagged, and may not have
the latest up-to-date details on the situation with the budget. But I'd like to express my complete
support, as the President of Hawaii Wildlife Fund and a member of the DIRE Coalition, for
monies that would be set aside for improving our system so that we can reuse our wastewater so
that we can turn that resource into reusable, safe, treated body of water instead of wasting it
down our injection wells. And I understand that there are two specific efforts to do that, one in
Central Maui and in West Maui, and they may be in the budget still, I hope they are, to support
some infrastructure, additional monies for expanding in West Maui, in particular, for R-1 reuse,
reusing R-1 water and in Central Maui. And then the second item that I'd like to speak to you is
Member Cochran's proposal to expand the budget for $5 million for acquisition of land at
Honolua Bay, beginning from the makai area of Lipoa Point and going mauka, and it's an area of
580 acres. I'm sure you folks have seen the, the drawings many times in various places of this
particular plot of land. But the Save Honolua Coalition organized four years ago to support the
protection of this area, because this is such an important place with the Puu Kukui Watershed at
the top, and the marine life conservation district down at the bottom. And not to mention, the
numerous important cultural sites there, and that this is an intact watershed that could be
managed as a continuous parcel instead of subdivided and partly developed. And the Save-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. BERNARD: --Honolua Coalition has been working with the landowners and various other entities
to make progress to negotiate about turning this into a land trust. And we hope that this body
would see fit to set this site as a legacy for future generations. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? See, seeing
none, thank you very much. The next testifier is Greg LaGoy.
MR. LaGOY: Good morning, everyone. I'm here representing, my name is Greg LaGoy, I'm
representing Hospice Maui, and I'm here to ask that $500,000 be put into this year's budget.
That's something that we are looking to build a 12-bed facility. I think that through the budget
hearings, there's been a bit of community support, quite a bit of community support, for this.
The State has seen fit to allocate a half a million dollars to this project in their budget. This is
money that we need in order to build this. We have done a lot of work over the last several years
preparing for this, and that has included putting on hold our plans to build this until we could
approach private donors as well as public. And this is the time that we're stepping forward to
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ask for this. I, I understand that the budget times are very difficult and that you folks really do
know what the priorities are and what needs to be done. And I'm just here asking that you may
find value for this community in this project, and you've already heard about this from many,
many people. So I'm happy to answer any questions about this. One thing that I would like to
say is that while the full buildout of this 12-bed facility is a $10.4 million project, we are
prepared to open and operate it once we have $6 2 million, and simply work to get the rest of the
money to bring it to the sort of level that we feel that Maui deserves so that people aren't driving
up on gravel and such things as that. But just in terms of what it is that we're providing for this
community, I think it speaks for itself. So I'm happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa followed
by Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair, and thank you Mr., Dr. LaGoy, for
being here this morning. This project that you want to build, you want to build it where, in your
current location?
MR. LaGOY: That's right, which is a four-acre parcel that we have leased from the County for 55 years
since 1989.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so you already have the land?
MR. LaGOY: We have the land and this would be an improvement to County land.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I'm assuming that you were not able to apply for CDBG money?
MR. LaGOY: We, that's, that's, I'm gonna speak to that because that's something that we did explore.
We explored that a year ago. Hospice of Hilo is building a 12-bed facility, and they are using
CDBG money. Hilo, as an area, has been designated as a need area. Maui has not. In order for
us to utilize that money, we would have to needs test each and every client who use this for the
next 20 years, and that would be a barrier to service, a dramatic barrier to service for those
people who are in a state of dealing with an imminent death of someone that they love to have to
go back and find past income tax records, and it's something that in good conscience, we can't
ask for.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I figured it might be a limitation because of the income requirement.
MR. LaGOY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because you don't normally have the luxury of asking dying people if
they can pay or they can't pay. You just take care of 'em.
MR. LaGOY: That's exactly right.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What is the total cost of the project?
MR. LaGOY: The total cost of the project fully built out is 10.4 million. It's 6 2 million is what it will
cost us to operate, to build it, to operate. That means we don't have landscaping done, we don't
have underground utilities, we don't have a photovoltaic system. There's a number of things that
we would forego in order to get this going. And the fact is that, that the vision that we have and
to build this vision, the $10 4 million, we're located at the very top of the hill on Mahalani Street
and it's an extremely visible place, and we feel that it is appropriate that what we build there has
aesthetic appeal. And I don't mean an extravagant building because we had a architectural
design competition and the design that was chosen, was not only the best functioning, but also
the least expensive. But rather that there is a sense of beauty on that entire hillside, and yet we
recognize that when times are difficult, and that if we don't get the kind of public support that we
need to build it entirely to that vision, that $6 2 million is what it will take to get this built and
operating.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So last question.
MR. LaGOY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What would you do with the $500 million, I mean the $500,000 from the
County if you got it in this fiscal year? What would you be able to do?
MR. LaGOY: We would be able to do design work and we would be able to acquire some of the
specialized equipment that this place would need. So that by the time the next fiscal year is
rolling around and we have more money, then more of the foundations would be built. We'd be
able to put in some of the infrastructure, such as the, we have sewer and water needs up there so
that would be included in what would be in that budget. I think in the budget proposal that we
put forward, we named a number of things. I think that pretty well covers it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, and thank you for the work you do.
MR. LaGOY: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Dr. LaGoy, you, you mentioned that six million, six point
something-MR. LaGOY: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --what it would cost you to get up and running and operating. What is
your, where do you get your operating costs every year?
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MR. LaGOY: There are a number of sources. The, in the State of Hawaii, insurance companies, health
insurers, who are located here, are required to pay a room and board if a Hospice has a
residential facility or has a nursing home arrangement. So part of the funding comes from there.
There are two levels of care for Hospice patients. One is called residential or routine home care
and the other is called general inpatient or acute care. Depending upon how many of those beds
are used for acute care, there is money in that for room and board. It turns out that in the pro
forma that I've used to do this, which was constructed by an organization on the mainland that
does only accounting and performance for Hospice programs and facilities, that in two years,
presuming that we can fill this, presuming that half of the people who come to this have the
ability to pay a room and board fee, which is around $250 a day, and presuming that the other
half are on a sliding scale from being able to pay that to paying nothing, that we could subsidize
this with our overall operation cost so that we would not be requiring any money. You know,
you know, you folks are probably aware we don't come to the County for money, for operating
money, for capital money, for nothing. And we don't come to the State either. This is an
exceptional circumstance and once this is built, you're not gonna see me here asking for
operations money for it. This is something that's gonna be able to operate on its own.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. That's kind of what I wanted to get to.
MR. LaGOY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The other thing is, is this...you say it's gonna cost between six, I mean,
6.2-MR. LaGOY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --up to 10.4-MR. LaGOY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --total buildout. Is the only time you're gonna be coming asking for, us
for cash or do you anticipate coming-MR. LaGOY: If-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --again?
MR. LaGOY: --if we get a $500,000 allocation, this is the only time you'll see us here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
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MR. LaGOY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Paul Janes-Brown.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Good morning, Council Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Good morning, Staff. Good morning, members of the public. My name is
Paul Janes-Brown, I'm the Vision Actualizer for Hospice Maui, and I'm here to talk to you today
about a subject that all of us know about, all of us realize it's going, it's coming, but few of us
really talk very much about and that's death. Death is the great equalizer, it is the thing that we
share in common with each other. All of us will come to this conclusion. Some of us come to
this conclusion with compassion and care and comfort that Hospice services can offer. Last year
100 members of our community, who needed Hospice services, were not able to get those
services because the proposed facility did not, does not exist. Hospice services are only
available to those persons who are able to have care 24 hours a day provided by either a family
member, a friend, or a professional person, and it has to be done in one's home. This means that
persons of limited financial ability, have to choose between taking time off from the positions
that they have with their employers and serving the last needs of a loved one. I'm a privileged
person. I went through Hospice services, I was able to take time off from my work. I was able
to pay for a nurse. I was very thankful that my late wife's daughter was on island from
California and helped me go through this, go through it. But there are a number of people on this
island who have not been able to have that comfort, care, and compassion because we do not
have an inpatient Hospice facility. What we are asking for from you today, is a $500,000
commitment. This is a community partnership, we have gone to every foundation in the State.
All of those foundations have indicated that they are onboard with this project. The State has
already committed to us at a time when we did not expect the State to commit to us based upon
our understanding that perhaps the County would also make a commitment.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In conclusion, I would just like to say that we
already have a certificate of need for this project, that we are well on the way to establishing a
very strong group of supporters for this project, that there is nobody in the community who
doesn't want to see this happen. Thank you very much, Members. Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Just to follow up on your last statement. I'm assuming that you
being successful with lining up some potential private donors?
MR. JANES-BROWN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that's really important because it, it is going to take a...partnership
and putting all the pieces together in order to make it happen.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Yes, we're very, I've met with many members of our community and many
members on, in, in Oahu as well from foundations. Over the past, I started working for Hospice
Maui in January. I've also met with a number of the members of the Legislature as well as
Council Members. And as I've said, all of those foundations have indicated that this project is a
priority for them. Nobody has said that they will not participate in this project, not one
foundation. HEI, HMSA, A&B, The Castle Foundation, I've met with all of them and they're
all, First Hawaiian Bank, all of them, Bank of Hawaii, all of them, are all onboard. But
everybody knows that this needs to be a partnership, a community partnership, in order for, to
make this happen.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So what I'm hearing from you is you're looking at the County money
along with the State money for leveraging of private money?
MR. JANES-BROWN: This, you know, what, that half a million dollars that we got from the State the
other day, was a huge, huge impetus for this project. What, I sent out e-mails to all the
foundations, I also sent out e-mails to all the persons that I met with to inform them that the State
has stepped up, and now that the State has stepped up, we're asking others to join them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for being here. And I, I know the
importance of Hospice. My uncle had been treated and, and, you know, with that comfort care
and compassion that you stated. I'm just curious if there's, you know, the 500 isn't there, would
you folks be able to use, I mean, a portion of it, too?
MR. JANES-BROWN: If you put it in 250 for this year and 250 for next year that would be wonderful.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And also, I think the County should be thanked and applauded
anyways for their, for the 55-year lease on the land that this building is to be built upon also at
this point. So I, as the County, I think, you know, we've put in something too at this point. So
thank you for being here and sharing about Hospice.
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MR. JANES-BROWN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you very
much.
MR. JANES-BROWN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Christine Williams.
MS. WILLIAMS: Good morning, Chairman. Good morning, Council Members, members of the
audience. The reason I'm here in front of you today is to speak to the, speak to the proposed
distribution of tax rate increases for the new year. It's understood that the current proposed
increases by the Chairman, do reflect a decrease compared to that proposed by the Mayor
previously. However, the reason again that I'm in front of you today, is to speak to the unfair
distribution of the proposed increases at this time. Currently what we're looking at is it's
understood that the, the, the proposed increases are planned to reflect a revenue neutral situation
for the County, understanding that real property taxes is a, represent a significant percentage of
the revenue stream for the County of Maui, roughly estimated about 40 percent. Understanding
that, the reason why I'm speaking to you is when you consider the property values that have been
assessed this past year, overall, I'm speaking on behalf of The Ritz-Carlton Club & Residences,
which is a joint venture project including Maui Land and Pineapple, Resorts and
Marriott International. Within our resort complex, we have a multitude, we have a variety of
categories of property tax...of property, of properties including apartment, timeshare,
homeowner, as well as hotel resort within our one property. Overall we have experienced a 25
percent decrease in our property assessment for the new year. However, I'd like to share with
you what that distribution looks like. The...it's...although overall the decrease is about 25
percent, the most significant decreases are more on the side of the homeowners and apartment
that are, experienced about a 28 to 29 percent decrease in property value. Timeshare portion of
our property is only experiencing an 18 percent decrease. So again I'm just wanting to
demonstrate the, that the timeshare portion of our property, which exists within the same
complex, now it's just two of our six buildings, experienced a smaller decrease in property
valuation. However, what's proposed currently as far as tax rate increases, are as high as 7 to 8
percent and 10 percent for apartments. But again, I want to bring you back to the, the timeshare
percentage. We've experienced only an 18 percent reduction in property value, however, being
proposed a 7 percent increase in the rate, whereas homeowners saw a 28 percent decrease in their
property value at our same location, and it's been proposed that they experience no increase in
property tax rate in the new year. So what I'm again, what I wanted to speak to you about today
again is not so much, it's understood that the property tax rates do need to increase in order to
keep the County neutral and sustain our environment and infrastructure. However, propose that
we, it's in, crucial to ensure that it's distributed fairly so that we do not unfairly punish those
that...those individuals that purely because of the timeframe or time that they spend on the
island, that they be penalized for that. I'd further like to share that there are, I've heard the
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argument that this is to support, the higher rate for timeshare is to support the infrastructure, the
cost of streets, the road maintenance. I'd like to share that our, our timeshare owners actually
contribute a great deal to our infrastructure in the form of what, of their own, not only their own
property taxes that they pay through their maintenance fees on an annual basis and monthly in
some cases, but within that monthly maintenance fees, there...it's-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. WILLIAMS: --beyond that they also pay Transient Occupancy Taxes. So basically, what I'm
trying to say is at this point, we are, to continue with the increase, the proposed increase on the
timeshare rate significantly or represents a significant, unfair burden on the timeshare industry,
which will undermine our economic future for the County of Maui, and which will result in, you
know, which will impact our own labor environment and our, will result in cutbacks in order to
offset those increases on behalf of the company.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Williams, thank you for being here. You had
stated that 18 percent was the reduction that most of your timeshares average percentage that you
saw this year?
MS. WILLIAMS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you pointed out that homeowners and others have dropped
even further. And when was the last time we touched you folks, your rates?
MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh. Well, I would say the rates actually, because we are a new resort, actually
last year was our first, the first time that we experienced a, a significant increase in our property
tax assessment on two fronts. On one front, property valuation significantly increased last year
for us because we went from preconstruction to post-construction, improved residential, so our
tax rates from last year, last year increased by 200 percent over the prior year. So already this
year, we were absorbing the burden of that, plus we went from overall hotel/motel assessment at
8 percent to--because we were under the old Kapalua Bay rates--to the new distributed rates that
I mentioned apartment, timeshare, homeowner. So we went from 8 percent rates on our
hotel/motel to now timeshare rates are 14 percent and looking at the proposed I believe 15
percent rate, in the new year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That, that, that, that within stands the problem because the
conversion really now brings a wrong time, wrong place situation for you and your owners. I
mean others have not had that great change because it's been-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --a gradual change and in fact-- 11 -
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MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --many of the properties now are telling me that the decreased has
helped-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --because now it is becoming revenue neutral, in fact maybe even
less. My question to you is what do you say we should do then in-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --your particular classification?
MS. WILLIAMS: And I appreciate your, your, your inquiry of my own impression and, and speaking
as a homeowner, in a, you know, I've been on Maui for almost ten years now. I mean, I'm not,
you know, I'm not proposing, you know, it would not...what I would recommend is, is simply
what I'm saying is currently what's proposed is an unfair burden on one category of
homeowners. It's understood that we need to raise overall revenue because of the devaluation
across, throughout the island. What I'm proposing is a fair distribution bringing up rates
proportionately for all classifications. And as a homeowner that will impact me as well, but
again it's the fairness to those that are actually paying the expense to, you know, just as a
homeowner, I understand the importance of, of maintaining our infrastructure, our schools, our
roads. I'm just suggesting that it's unfair to penalize certain categories of homeowners when
they are contributing to the infrastructure not only in property taxes, but also through Transient
Occupancy Taxes, which is also what our timeshare owners pay that our resident owners do not
pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well thank you for that clarification. I'll just make one point that
we do not pay for schools, that comes straight from the State. Okay-MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ---we don't have schools as part of our tax base, yeah?
MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But thank you, Ms. Williams, you make some valid points and I
think I concur with some of your, your, your opinions and your ideas, and we still have a lot
more to be done so I thank you for being here.
MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for your testimony. It, it sounds to me
like you would be more in favor of a, an across-the-board tax rate increase if-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --if generating new revenues was, was necessary. Would you be
comfortable with, well to, to get to the current number that we're working with of 208 million,
we would need to do an increase of about 40 cents per, per category. Is that something that you
as a homeowner would be comfortable with?
MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh. Again, as long as the distribution was fair and appropriate, I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, the distribution would be equal across all-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --categories. Obviously, different percentages-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --but...
MS. WILLIAMS: Well, what would come into play in my, what I would question would be what is the,
the overall percentage within each category that, of the contribution to the overall pie? You
know, how much does the homeowners contribute or what percentage does the homeowners
make of the overall property tax revenue? What percentage does the timeshare contribute, what
percent? I'd want to take that in consideration as well.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No. The distribution would change a little bit. The, the homeowners
would remain in a position where they're paying significantly less-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --than they were last year-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --by-MS. WILLIAMS: Well, I would-- 13 -
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --by several million dollars.
MS. WILLIAMS: --I would argue that again, that, you know, over the past several years, there have
been no increases to homeowners. So I do believe that as far as homeowners is concerned is,
you spoke to homeowners specifically, that it would be appropriate to see some sort of increase
in homeowners. I understand currently there is a zero percent increase proposed, and there has
been no increase on homeowners in the last ten years is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Not quite that long but. . .(inaudible). . .
MS. WILLIAMS: Based on, oh I'm sorry, based on the results that I-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-uh.
MS. WILLIAMS: --actually the homeowners rate decreased over the last ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MS. WILLIAMS: Records that I show back in 2003, was as high as $3.63, now down to 2.50, as of
2007 year, and has remained at 2.50 since then. I can look at a couple of other classifications
that also have not seen any increases through, over time. So I, I think what's important is to do
a, you know, once again, relook at the increases over time and consider their impact on our
current environment and really perhaps even again, I mentioned to you within my own complex,
we have various different classifications. However, they're all assessed one value. I don't know
if there's a different way to assess certain classifications, but again as it is right now, to just
purely increase rates on some units and not others...you know, without, you know, true cause, is
just again is unfair burden for timeshare owners and hard to argue, hard to support-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. WILLIAMS: --when they are paying so much to our community And again I want to, you know,
take a step back and, and consider the impact that it's having on our community overall. It
sounds like we're trying to increase the taxes on one classification of individuals and the, but
reality is that's burning the, the management companies and the associations that, that these
timeshare owners exist within. And those timeshare industries and owners, that's what drives
our economic engine in Maui. You know, they, it represents 40 percent, you know, hotel and
timeshare industries represent 40 percent of our, my, my understanding it's about roughly 40
percent of our labor force. A lot of our, 40 percent of our labor is related to visitor industry, and
to undermine, you know, this type, this industry, is gonna significantly impact our overall
economy in Maui. Because when we impact the property taxes, that's something that the
management company can't control. So they have to look elsewhere in, within their budgets to
identify where they can offset these types of costs. And the only other place that they can look
for those controllable costs are gonna be labor and supplies, which means our vendors, our local
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vendors are gonna suffer when our industry has to cut back on, to make up for the property tax
assessments and we also have to cut back on positions. Right now-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But it's-MS. WILLIAMS: --another-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I think, excuse me for interrupting, but I think it's important to
remember that the rates that are currently proposed by the Chair actually result in, I believe,
result in decreases-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --across, well decreases in timeshare and decreases in other, other areas
so I think you're a little off base there-MS. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --but...
MS. WILLIAMS: Well you are correct that it reflects a decrease, but a decrease from the Mayor's
proposal is my understanding. It still represents a 7 percent increase over the current rate-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No-MS. WILLIAMS: --as far as time-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the rate, the rate increase. . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Point of order, Chairman. This is not a debate. This is a testimony
component of the meeting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm done, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and Christine, if you guys can just keep it to, rather than a debate. Are you
done, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I just like to point out that for the homeowner's area, we had
increased the minimum tax from 150 to 300 that would affect almost every homeowner in this
County. In regards to the homeowner's rate, we do have a pending legislation that's gonna be
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taken up to ensure that we take a look at the homeowner's property tax rates. So that is in the
works, and it, it's not going to be done while we're doing this budget. And again, you know,
thank you very much. You know, property tax, yeah, really pays for infrastructure, pays for the
running of this County, also, pays for some of these nonprofits that are here this morning. And,
you know, just like you, I wish we could go back to the 2011 level, you know, 524 million rather
than a $40 million increase, so thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you, Chairman. Thank you, Council Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I just want one correction made-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --she made a statement that we didn't touch the homeowners.
Last year we took it from 2 to 2.50 if I'm correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, you did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay so, you know, we have been cognizant all around and I'm
not into a debate, but I want-MS. WILLIAMS: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --points be correct. When you say something, I, I'm looking. It
wasn't, you know, last year we raised it from 2.00 to 2.50.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we've tried to be good about this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you, Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
MS. WILLIAMS: --Councilmember Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Quick question.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. The foreclosure on The Ritz Carlton, how does that
affect your assessments with this? Is there a relation here?
MS. WILLIAMS: The foreclosure on The Ritz Carlton does, is not, that, the foreclosure you're
speaking of is actually on The Ritz Carlton Hotel property, which is not impact, does not impact
The Ritz Carlton Club and Residences Kapalua Bay. It's a separate project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you again. The next testifier is Buck...Buck Joiner.
MR. JOINER: Aloha kakou, Buck Joiner speaking as an individual. And I'm here asking for fairness
and honesty as, as I usually do. In my opinion, the, the purpose of government is to do for
citizens what the citizens cannot do for themselves that actually needs to be done. Beating the
same old drum, the Maui Visitor Industry here on Maui brings us $3-$4 million a year, which is
very, very important. Does the Maui Visitor Industry pay for advertising? Well, Kaanapali
Beach Hotel pays 2-3 million for marketing; Grand Wailea, 7.8 million; Kapalua, $14 4 million a
year for marketing. Obviously, they spend many, many, millions, hundreds of millions of dollars
for advertising. Can the visitor industry support the Maui Visitors Bureau? Yes, they can. Do
they? This is a list of all of the Maui businesses that support the Maui Visitors Bureau. This is
off of their IRS Form 990. These are the supporters, the people that believe in them. These are
the people that advertise on the Maui Visitors Bureau website and do not support the Maui
Visitor Industry. Okay. They advertise on the Maui Visitors Bureau website and do not donate a
dime. I have a problem with that. Who pays?: The citizens do. These are the people that
benefit directly from the advertising that's done by the Maui Visitors Bureau and yet we have to
pay for them. Honesty and fairness is what I ask for. Let me give you an example of an unmet
need here on Maui. Camp Maluhia, this is run by the Boy Scouts, and it's also used by the Girl
Scouts. It's used by the Rotary Youth Leadership. These are all the best and the brightest kids
that we have. And it also takes care of the other end of the scale, it's used by Camp Imua for
special needs kids. These kids are our future and the facility Camp Maluhia is grotesque beyond
description. The boys bathroom has been shut down and locked as unsafe and unusable. The
dining hall has sections that are roped off as unsafe. There are termites in there beyond
description. I'm not talking about a few little flying termites. I'm talking about beams like this
that are 80 percent gone because the termites have eaten them all. It's deplorable and despicable,
but the money goes to the Maui Visitors Bureau to send off island. As I've said many times
before, you take from the poor and you give to the rich, and this is a very Republican thing to do,
I understand that. Here's an interesting fact, do you know that the Executive Director of the
Maui Visitors Bureau makes more than the Chief of Police, more than the Mayor, more than the
Governor. That number may vary a little bit, but that's the size of the compensation, and the
responsibilities are, you know, the performance criteria is spend the money. So I have a problem
with that. Fairness and honesty is what I ask for. I do not represent the Boy Scouts, I do not
represent the Rotary, I do not speak for Imua Family Services. I am simply a citizen, a
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volunteer, and I say that this support from the visitor industry is inadequate when we're carrying
these people. So I ask that you get the visitor industry to please pay for their own advertising
and use that money to support citizens' needs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Next testifier is Brian Regula.
MR. REGULA: Good morning. I'm representing The Ritz Carlton Hotel in Kapalua. And thanks for
letting me speak. I'm gonna take a little different tact than Ms. Williams took. I'm gonna give
you a real life example of, of what the hotel is going through and the, and the impact of these
increased costs that we're facing. I'm also opposing the property tax increase both as an, as an
increase and as the distribution is proposed presently. Our 2011 budget has still not been
approved by ownership for the hotel, because the economic environments of, of Maui right now
in general doesn't support enough operating profit or any operating profit to cover debt service.
So our ownership has asked us to essentially cut costs another $2 million in order to, in order to
increase our profit margin in order to take care of debt service. Some of the things that we're
doing that we're forced to do in order to make that happen is we're closing restaurants, closing
outlets for dinner. We're eliminating both jobs in the management fund and the hourly fund.
These are, these are Maui residents that are going to no longer be employed by the hotel due to
these rising costs and cuts that we're having to make The management team has taken pay cuts
this year in order to accommodate this deficit, and we're also, we're also doing service cuts and
advertising cuts in order to make that. The next four months look very poor outlook compared to
last year. Our room nights are down over 2,000 in May to last year presently and over 1,200 to
June last year presently. A couple of the additional costs that just found out about this week was
the electric rate is going up a penny and a half per kilowatt, which represents another $150,000
in expense. That's brand new, that just, that just got disclosed this week that, that we're gonna
have to do further cuts in order to accommodate. Pseudo tax, pseudo tax this year versus last
year is going up for our hotel $200,000, and it went up over $500,000 the year before. Those are
also, so revenues are, are not going up proportionately due to these costs. And we're already
operating in an environment where we're not covering debt service. Councilman Cochran
brought up the foreclosure piece with my hotel and, and I'll touch on that in a minute. With the
property tax rate increase proposed right now of going from the 8.3, the 2010 rate to the $9 per
$1,000, the proposed rate, represents another $85,000 for my hotel. And different from the Club
and Residences down the street, our assessments have actually gone up from 2010 to 2011, so we
are not experiencing a decrease at all in property tax, both the assessment values going up and
the rates going up further, further prohibiting us from, from making any operating profit and in
fact, not covering debt service. You know, with, with every additional cost that we're facing this
year, we've, we've already cut back the services as much as we can cut. The only thing left to
cut unfortunately is, is jobs, is Maui resident jobs both from administration staff and
management staff and even in some cases, operating staff, because the business levels right now
just don't dictate the operating models that we've operated on in the last couple years. So just to,
just to wrap up my whole point here is that the proposed rate increase is, is too much for the
hotel, and I'm sure my hotel is not the only hotel in this position. In fact, I know my hotel is not
the only hotel in this position. But the proposed rate as it's proposed right now, it, it cannot be
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supported by the hotel, hotel resort community. And furthermore, if, if a rate is necessary in
order to cover the revenues, in order to-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. REGULA: --manage the budget, my belief is that at, at a minimum, it should be fair and equitable
over all classifications. So, thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very
much. Next testifier is Susan Campbell.
MS. CAMPBELL: Good morning, Chair, Council Members-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. CAMPBELL: --audience. Thank you for opening this forum. I'm here to speak on behalf of Maui
Aloha Aina Organization to the value that they have provided in the community, that I have
witnessed personally, particularly over the last couple of years. I understand that there's a
proposed budget cut for them, so I'm here to inspire that that not be cut, as a matter of fact even
be enhanced if at all possible. A little bit about myself, I am the chairperson for Slow Food Maui
here. For those of you who don't know Slow Food, it's a part of an international network to
build a strong relationship and grassroots effort with the, with the growers of...love our
food...and the chefs and the local food producers. I'm also a board member of the Maui Food
Technology Center, where we are positioned to help build value-added products here on the
island through food science, in other words, labeling and all the testing that has to be done to
evaluate our food for the food products. I'm also, have 20 year's experience in the natural foods
industry, I'm the author of the "Healthy School Lunch Action Guide", which was an
award-winning book and program to inspire healthy foods in our schools. And the reason I bring
this up is I, I am an expert in grassroots movements. I have been involved in building
relationships and partnerships throughout the last 20 years all over the country, and particularly
here in Hawaii in 1997, we did a month-long tour here throughout the islands. The value that I
have witnessed with Maui Aloha Aina Organization, I want to speak to you specifically. For
myself, personally, I have never run across an organization that has such knowledge and, and
passion and ability to build partnerships and grassroots movements. They are our lifeline. From
the experience that I have witnessed through education and putting on educational events that
build partnerships and actually inspire a community swell of people that are starting to grow,
because they not only inspire, provide the inspiration, but also the knowledge and the skills to
create renewable, sustainable agriculture. And this has a great deal to do with our health and
vitality of not only our soil, but of our people. There is such an economic, from what I, from
where I've sit and really analyzed all of this and been a part of, there's a huge economic
opportunity here as, as we all know to start creating, growing our own food and creating
value-added products so that we are sustaining ourselves. I spent some time yesterday, I've been
with, meeting with some of the food service directors on the island, and absolutely, you know,
nearly 100 percent of all of our food that comes into our schools, which is a huge amount of
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food, comes from off island. That alone we have a huge economic opportunity. I want to speak
to, to the ability to bring in-kind services. This organization because of their dedication, their
knowledge, and their ability to build partnerships is profound. I have been to several of their
events, I was actually the chef-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. CAMPBELL: --for the, thank you. Just to wrap up, I was the chef for the Sustainable Design
Conference, and this is where 40 to 50 people showed up for one week with absolutely no pay to
dedicate themselves to design a sustainable agricultural system here on Maui. It was profound
the work that they did and how they showed up. So I know you have a big job and I encourage
you to keep this organization supported as much as possible 'cause they're doing fantastic work.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Irene Bowie.
MS. BOWIE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, and Members of the Council. My name is Irene Bowie,
I'm the Executive Director of Maui Tomorrow Foundation, and as I've stated here before, a
member of the DIRE Coalition, and a member of the Mayor's Wastewater Community Working
Group in the past Administration. First of all, I'd just like to thank you for your hard, hard work
on this budget. I know this is a long and arduous process, and I don't envy you the task. And we
certainly appreciate all the issues that you have to deal with and needs of the community. I
would just like to speak today to support Councilmember Cochran's proposal for $1 2 million for
the water reuse for improvements at West Maui, and to begin R-1 water use at Central Maui. A
number of us have been here before speaking on the need for this. This fits in so completely
with the Central Maui Water Use and Development Plan. We know that we need to push for
conservation and we've got to go towards water reuse as so many other communities are doing.
It is a, a quality of life issue for the community. The more water that we reuse, the less we're
putting down the injection wells, the less harm to the reefs. It fits with everything that you're
seeing here, the visitor industry. If, if folks aren't coming to the hotels, we suffer economically.
It's certainly a socioeconomic issue for Central Maui, I feel really strongly about that that the
degradation of Kahului Bay by the amount of water going it, wastewater going in the injection
wells, certainly impacts the, the youth of Central Maui that spend their time surfing and canoe
paddling and, and recreating in those waters. So I know that times are hard and that a lot of
people are asking for money, but I think the reality of having to put funds aside for infrastructure
improvements is just that. It's a reality that we face and I will, I wish that there were more
money that could go towards this right now, but we're happy to get what we can get. If I, I just
really implore all of you to support this proposal and, and that we can keep going in the right
direction. I think that the amount of folks in the community that are concerned about this would
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certainly be very happy to hear that we are moving in that direction. And again, I hope, I hope
you agree. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you again. The
last person to sign up for public testimony is Robin Knox. If anyone else would like to provide
public testimony, if you could sign up with the Secretary outside the door.
MS. KNOX: Good morning, Council Members, good morning, Chair. Thank you for the opportunity to
speak with you on the budget. It's not a part of the process that I'm terribly familiar with so I,
please forgive me if I've overlooked something. I'm here to speak today on behalf, not
representing, but to speak on behalf of the interest of a group here on the island. This group does
a great beneficial service to our community. They don't make a profit doing it, and it's a really
dirty job, and they're often underappreciated and unfunded or underfunded. And that group is
our Division of Environmental Management. And I would like you to support them by giving
them enough money to comply with the Clean Water Act. And by the numbers that were
submitted by Cheryl Okuma, who was former Division Manager, to the U. S. EPA in
September 21, 2009 letter, which I have a copy of here. By the numbers in there, it would cost a
total of $17 8 million over, looks like four fiscal years to come into compliance with the Clean
Water Act. And what, what Director Okuma proposed there to me looks both doable and
reasonable. And I, and I think because the County told EPA that this was a course of action that
they could foresee and could be done, that EPA is gonna expect it to be done. But when I look at
the budgets, I don't see the money in there. And the most important part of that, there's two
really urgent parts and they're the least expensive parts. One is to do what the EPA ordered in
the 308 order for information. And that may cost with the permitting and the testing and even
hiring somebody to help set up the County with programs that they'll need to comply with those
permits, that might be $100,000, and it needs to be done right away. Disinfecting the effluent
with chlorine, which we have the capability to do today, could be done immediately and that's
$50,000...for half a year, $100,000 for a whole year. But we want to get away from chlorine as
quickly as possible 'cause it's not a good solution. To, so to get the UV, design, constructed,
permitted and operational for the first year, would be a total of 5.7 million. So when we look at
the immediate concerns, it's 5.8 million, if we look at three or four years, it's 17 8 million, and
those numbers are just not as large as some of the other numbers I hear for reuse systems and
other things, which we want to do. We want to do all the reuse, it's a great idea, but we need to
do the most urgent thing, which is treat our wastewater and comply-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. KNOX: --with the law. Thank you, I appreciate the time to speak with you, and I'll leave this if
that's okay with the Clerk?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Robin. Ms. Knox was the last person to sign up for public testimony. Is anyone in
the audience that would like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing none, Members,
without any objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, when we left off, we were on Page 14, reviewing the Office
of the Mayor budget request. And this morning from OED, we have Teena Rasmussen.
Members, for your information, in regards to last night discussion with Mr. Verkerke, and the
possibility of utilizing the Council's, County Clerk's van, we found the keys and they're willing
to part with the vehicle. So we found a vehicle for Mr. Verkerke.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Save 14,000, 24, $24,000. Good morning, Teena.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Good morning.
EXHIBIT "1"

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, we had a question by Mr. White on the Special Events
Program. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My reason for wanting to revisit is that I think
there's a great need in our various small towns for special events, and during the, during the
campaign, we heard many people speak of that, and actually I, I, I'll address both, both the
Sports Events Program and the Special Events Programs. My concern is that we need to have a
significant amount of money in those, because they allow us to provide economic development
opportunities that come up during the year that we, you know, that we...we see a great benefit
from, for the merchants in our small towns and it's a, it's something I feel we need to be able to
support. And I would like your thoughts on whether I can, maybe later today, provide you with a
proposal to look at the possibility of, of possibly adding a line that would, you know, it would
give Economic Development, OED a, the ability to have access to some of these funds. But I
would also like to set aside, 'cause I see all the costs of government growing and I don't see a lot
going towards economic development initiatives. And I think the County needs to be in a
position where we can move on initiatives if they come up during the year. So my thought is that
OED should have an excess amount that can be used if MEDB comes up with a new initiative
that is not a part of their current program, or if we get a new sports event opportunity that we're
not aware of now or a new special event or MVB gets an opportunity to participate in a, an
initiative in a particular geographic area that we feel is appropriate. But, Chair, I'm, I would also
if we were to set up this type of thing, I would want the, want the amount proviso'd so that as
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these initiatives come up, that the, that they, the request comes back to the Council for approval.
`Cause I know we're, you know, we're wanting to make sure that we're watching our, our dimes
and nickels, but I do feel that, as I've mentioned a couple of times, that our economy is not
growing at the rate our expenses in the County are, and we need to make sure that we get the
economy back on track so that everyone that we're taxing can afford to make their tax payments
without taking out of other, other pockets. So if, if you don't mind, I'll, I'll provide you with
that by this afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Oh, for both items?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: For both, well adding a, adding a third line but on those two as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Just a question for Ms. Rasmussen, if you could kind of explain
Special Events Program?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Yes, explain what it was used for last year or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh, well...
MS. RASMUSSEN: ...or just what we were thinking about?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What you guys thinking about and-MS. RASMUSSEN: Um...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --kind of brief us on-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, okay so-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --how you spent the money last year.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --part of the reason we were asking for more was because we had two big events
that we were working on as I talked to you about before the Philadelphia Flower Show. We
wanted to be able to provide 25,000. We're asking for, from the Farm Bureau for 25,000. And
MVB has also told us that they would participate as well. So it's a really big initiative, but it can
have a lot of impact for all of our value-added and agriculture products. So that was one thing.
The other thing that we need to make a commitment to the windsurfing tournament. There's two
tournaments actually coming back to back. We needed to make a commitment of 25,000 to help
them, and that was all in that Special Events, which is why it was larger than last year. So we
would definitely, you know, love to have that restored if you can see a way to do that. Last year,
the Special Events Program was used for, they, I think they pulled money from more than one
fund for this, but there was the bag, the County Bag Program, they did the green, they did the
Green Book, they did some work over at the baseball stadium. I'm just looking at different,
Spam Jam, again the bag program, the All Pono Program, the 46 th Paniolo Parade, Plein Air
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Painting event that took place in West Maui, so, you know, there was a myriad of, you know,
different things that it was used for last year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, you guys got any questions regarding the Special
Events Program as well as the Sports Program? I'll go with Member Mateo, go right down the
line. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Rasmussen, thank you-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --very much and good morning.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just, just a, I guess, a basic question. We're taking a look at these two
categories, Special Events Program and Sports Events-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --Programs.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Why didn't the Department look at putting it together as a, as a Special
Events Sports-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --and come up with a part of money-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --to do-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --primarily both promotions instead of separating it out?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I didn't actually know that I could combine ... (chuckle) ... to make a new category,
a combined category, but we added sports because we had seen that there was quite a few years
back, they actually did have a sports budget and somehow it got, you know, deleted. So the
sports budget, as you know, is very small and that was really, we were reserving that to be able
to help these smaller sporting, you know, events or just give small amounts of funds to try to get
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a multitude of different events established. So clearly that wouldn't fund something like the
windsurfing, you know, contest because there's not, you know, there's only, we only asked for
30,000 in that fund. So that's why we put the windsurfing over into the Special Events Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: But if, if the Council wanted to combine those and put the pots of money together,
I mean clearly would have no problem with that, because Special Events/Sports would be, you
know, clearly, I mean, they're all, they're all things that we are working on, so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, it pretty consistent because your, your reference to last year's
events. One of the events that, that where you participated in was with the baseball league that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --that was here last year and it's gonna be here again-MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, yes, the Na Koa, right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --so, you know, it just makes sense instead of looking and creating-MS. RASMUSSEN: Sure, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --you know, separate categories-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --that we should just put it together and, and it's all-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --special events.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Whether it's a flower show or-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --baseball, you know, games-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --so it just makes-- 25 -
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --more sense than-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --creating the wheel all over again-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --by separating them.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, and, I, I, I'm totally fine with that if that's what you choose to do.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm gonna skip, Mr. White... (chuckle)...unless you have
questions for Teena?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions, but I do have a proviso that I'll be providing to the
Committee. . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. We'll come back to this again, Mr. White, just for your
information. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I don't have any questions. I, I'm, I'm happy in what you try
to do, Chair, you try to move some of the money around and put it in the MauiFEST Foods.
Ms. Rasmussen had told us that they could come and apply under Special Events-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so, you know, it kind of earmarked something, Hana canoe. So
we took some of that and really put it where we would like it to go, not leaving it to chance, so I
think that's important to understand. Nothing against you or anybody, but there are things that
we want to see done so we're gonna put it there.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Even though we had your reassurance that you'd look at it-- 26 -
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that's not the same as having it there-MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and saying hey, this is ear..., if you want to use the lack of a
better term, earmarked for this event.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Sure. I, that's totally your prerogative, and I will do whatever I can to support
them with that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I just want you to know that's basically what-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.,
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --even my idea was the same thing, you know, moving some of
this-MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to things that we need or would like to see done. yeah. So thank
you, Ms. Rasmussen. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think what might be helpful for us to have a greater understanding of your
request, Ms. Rasmussen, is what is the ROI back for the County? You know, you ask for, for us
to have a lot of things going out and you-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA --mentioned the surfing competition-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or surf event. So am I, are we closing a County facility to do those type
of, allow those type of events to take place?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh. Hookipa Park will be the, the place where this will take place. I don't-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does it make money? Does the promoter, the for-profit entity, the TV guys
pay the County something to, to shut down a public facility?
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, I don't think it's shut down, I mean, they're gonna be there, they're gonna
be taking it over clearly, but it's not, they're not blocking the public into coming. But clearly
this is the kind of event that we, we feel very strongly that an investment of 25,000 is easily
going to give Maui 2.5 million. There should be at least 2 5 million of impact of people coming
in, the money they'll spend. We went out and met with the Paia merchants. They're absolutely
ecstatic about it because they haven't see this kind of activity out there for several years. And
they are already, you know, they're, they're really pumped up, they're gearing up for it. We told
them that they, you know, they're gonna be swamped, you know, for the month of, the end of
October, November. So they're very excited about it and it should help the entire, you know,
north shore corridor, and I have no doubt this is gonna be, plus there will be a lot of television
coverage of this event and that will go on for a long time afterward because it's gonna be shown
on cable shows and all sorts of things. So I think it will make a statement that Maui is back in
the windsurfing business.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you for that, Ms. Rasmussen, you know, because I've been
getting more calls and, and issues of concern regarding the inability of public or community
organizations to use County facilities such as our parks. Even on Lanai-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I have issues with the school using the County facilities and, and
interfering with some of what we call the normal community programs like Little League and
other activities, because we've never had this type of competition for County facilities-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the past. So, you know, I'm just bringing it up and this issue for me,
because I would like us to at least have a game plan on how we're gonna address it-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --before it becomes-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --a greater-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --problem, I would say.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We're working very closely with Parks. They've had conversations with the
Police Department. They, I don't think we have had anybody call us and say no, we don't want
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this at Hookipa. You know, any, anybody that regularly uses Hookipa I think they're very
excited about it. They're gonna get to watch it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: A lot of our people are, actually our Maui windsurfers will be participating in it.
So I think this-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe you could tell the promoters do the whole re-bathroom for us, the
whole area, repave the whole parking lot since they're gonna promote it and use it-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --for what, they're gonna block it out for what, two, three weeks?
MS RASMUSSEN: Well again it's not gonna be blocked off from the public at all. The public will
always have access to it. That it'll just be used heavily during that period of time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So, and we are looking at creating another area for them to do a lot of their
staging, and that's something that we're working on right now. When we come forward with
that plan...and that staging will not be at Hookipa. So we're looking at other venues for that so
when we come, when we get that finalized, we'll come back to the Council and let you know
what we've worked on.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have an ability-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- to come up with a projected net benefit of our investments, 'cause I think
this is something we should be sharing with the State, State Legislature-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --...(inaudible)...Business because it's the County's money that is
basically creating a better revenue stream for the State, not the County per se, because you're
gonna in excise taxes and other things-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that is not normally County revenue streams.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: I, yes, and I do get that because the GET tax does go to the State. We are, actually
this is something that we are working on in our office to make as part of our grant application
that when they give us their report at the end, they have to fill out an Economic Impact Report.
And that would be, we want to know how many people participated, we want to know, you
know, how many days, you know, room nights? I mean we're gonna ask them a whole series of
questions. And so I feel that when we implement this because it's something that, from what I
see, has not been implemented in this office before. But it does need to be implemented and
we're, we're definitely going to move on that and I should be able to give you a lot better
information, you know, after we get that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --implemented.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that would be appreciated. I think we need to be able to give
those Oahu-centric Senators and, and State Representatives who believe that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Maui County does not contribute.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This factual information that, you know, this is what the County generates
through our investments and basically you're the-MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --big winner.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Our State is the big winner.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that, that would help us support our, you know, our State delegation
that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --has supported us to-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --maintain our TAT components and to-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --fight for a portion of the 1.6 billion CIP budget that the State's gonna-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --put out July 1 st, so that would be much appreciated-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, I, I totally agree and I think that these people are getting public funds and
they absolutely need to report that information to us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. You bring up a pretty good point about, you know,
people coming to Maui promoting our sports events similar to the Lahaina Invitational, where
the promoters, you know, we did a lot of improvements at the, the gymnasium and what they did
for us was install that air conditioning. So and, and same thing with the Golden Baseball League
that we had over here, they provided infrastructure for the County, for the Parks Department
actually.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and I think also the Sony Jumbotron Board at the football stadium, I
think was part of the benefits that the County gets from allowing them to use County-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --facilities.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and, and it's something, Ms. Rasmussen, that you should take a look at
where, you know, it's not only monies that we support the events, but, you know, ensuring that
these people when they come over, provide some kind of improvements to Maui County.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, and I think that, you know, if we can't, at the first year, I don't want to put
this on them because this is their first year, but I think that go, you know, going forward if it's a
success, and they see how successful it is, and they see that they got huge support from this
County, that then next year we may be able to require, you know, something in that nature. And
I would, I would not be opposed to asking for that if, if we saw that it was a huge success for
them.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's right, you gotta ask if you going get.
MS. RASMUSSEN: ... (chuckle). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You no ask, you no get nothing. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, and I agree with both you and Mr. Hokama that these
things can bring in a, a good ROI. I'm pretty sure we need to get the actual numbers-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but also to have them kokua back-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you know, we can get more than our monies worth that we put in-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --in just contributions to our infrastructure, but also I agree with you,
we get I, I would think that we would get a lot more bang for our buck-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for these kinds of events because it does spread the word-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to people, the people who participate in these events. So, Mr. Chair,
you said you were going to revisit these. I would certainly support bringing back the, the money
that we took out because we get more money, much more money back. So, yes, I will try to see
where we can find the funding for it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, and, and Members, you know, as Ms. Victorino had said, some of
the discussion by this Chairman, is, was to provide some support to the MauiFEST as well as the
Hana Canoe Club on Hana side. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And to my fellow Members, there are two
handouts that were given to you, and it's the Maui Nui Canoe Race, and I thought it would be a
very special fit in this section. It was just brought to my attention a couple days ago, and I got
further details in these handouts. And it's based from the Kahana Canoe Club in West Maui and
they're playing upon the, a big race that happens in Tahiti that goes from island to island, and
they want to incorporate that here within Maui County. You'll see that, you know, from Maui to
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Molokai, Molokai to Lanai, the handout goes into very excellent detail on start times, everything.
And the reason why I'm bringing it up is yes, they're looking for a $10,000, you know, help to
promote this. The second handout is Ocean Paddler TV, which is based out of NBC, and it's
gonna be aired, it's big time gonna be covered, and people internationally come to these paddling
events. Molokai crossing, as you know, Queen Liliuokalani, is the biggest race on the Big
Island, and places as far reach as from Russia to Australia, to the Orient, Brazil. It's the fastest
growing canoe, you know, sports right now. So this is international coverage and participation
will be coming to this County alone, so I see it as a huge economic driver, also culturally
perpetuating and just getting, you know, everybody involved, all our counties together. So I
think it's a great, you know, proposal. I know we're gonna revisit this so, Members, I would
really like everyone and, Teena, yourself also, to look through the handout and see what you
folks think and, and give me feedback-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but I think it's a win-win for everybody-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know, and for a nominal 10,000 investment I think in a return
that's gonna be huge-MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is, is, is well worth our efforts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. And, and once we revisit this item, you know, the
handouts that you provided us this morning, you know, give an opportunity to OED to look into
this events-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --`cause just hearing from you, you know, it seems like it's a worthwhile
event, two weeks it's actually.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, yeah, please-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Paddling is a-MS. RASMUSSEN: --have them come and contact our team over there-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And so-MS. RASMUSSEN: --and we'll definitely talk to them.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --OED can follow up on, on the way...well-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --they have the, the experts that can do this for-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the County of Maui, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And Chair, just a follow-up-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for Ms. Rasmussen. The Philadelphia Flower Show, in your
department, you have an agricultural promotion section. Why is it not utilized from that portion?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We could, you know, we could. We had just put it in Special Events because I
think the agricultural promotion budget stayed the same and so I wanted to reserve that for other,
but I mean we can clearly put it there. If you would rather put the money there, and then, you
know, keep it out of Special Events, that's the thing, you know, these different funds do, they can
overlap, as Mr. Mateo said, you know, they can overlap. I mean special events, sports, ag
promotion, you can make a case that it's small business promotion, you know, too.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So there's a lot of, yeah, there is overlapping, but we just happened to put it in that
Special Events.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Just, yeah, I was looking for the reasoning. Thank you.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair, and thank you, Teena, for being here.
A couple of observations. You know, I'm really excited about the, this conversation we're
having, 'cause I've heard the Mayor say, and I think we all agree, that's it's really important that
we have meaningful activities. And I think it's more important here on Maui where we tend to
get a lot of repeat visitors. And we heard this morning about all the people that have timeshares
and come every year-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and I often talk to people that are, you know, oh, this is our
that we come--

25 th

year

MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to Maui in this month or whatever. And you know, when they've been
coming that long, they are looking for new and different things to do. You know, after awhile
you can only go to the Crater so many times and you go to Iao Valley so many times-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and you know, you need to look for new things to do. So having these
new, new things for people to do, I think is really excellent. And I like Chair Mateo's idea of
maybe of having a decent pot of money that people with great ideas can come to you-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --as well as, of course, some of these events that all of us are wedded to,
we might want a proviso so that they make sure they get their share.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But it would be nice to also have a decent pot for new things-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --`cause, you know, people have new ideas and new opportunities-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --come up, like we heard from Member Cochran today, and we should
be prepared to respond. And you should have some money-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --at your disposal so you can, can-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --deal with it of course, looking for a return also to our community and
making sure that these folks are investing back some of the support that they get, but I really like
it. I had one quick question for you. How are you gonna handle? I know that there is an effort
afoot to revive like the Halloween event in Lahaina. Does that-- 35 -
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --take funding? Do we have funding?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, we have funding planned in, in our budget for that. And it's not, it's not a
huge amount of money. We're helping Lahaina Town Action and we're helping the Soroptimist
put on the Keiki Parade, and our total is $17,000. So it's really not a lot and we are working
with, we're being very careful, we're working with all of the groups to make sure that
everybody's on board, and you know, we're, we're being very careful to make sure that all the
cultural sensitivities are, are addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so all the attendant cost like, you know, everybody talks about the
additional police, security, and whatever-MS. RASMUSSEN: Those have been...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --is that being covered by, by, by the businesses?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, because they're, they're raising way more money than that from, from their
businesses on Front Street. What we're putting in is just a fraction of what the actual costs are.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific, well I know there's a lot of people that are very excited about
that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and, you know, it usually is an event that although it causes people
some grief, people seem to love and come to Maui for, so-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I'm, I think this is a really good discussion, Chair, and really
important. This is economic development, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. If this money is restored, I'd like to do, see it
restored, $47,000 restored, since it was brought out that $5,000 is now the line item for the Hana
Canoe Club, and I would like to see that stay over there like it is. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll, we'll come back to this because I think the numbers gonna change even
larger than that, so...thank you. Members, any more questions regarding that one particular
item? The next one is MauiFEST... yeah, MauiFEST. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I, I support...we, you know, we heard from the people
Lanai, Molokai, and especially Hana really supporting this MauiFEST. My concern on this one
is figuring out how to do a proviso that their accounting is a bit, their reporting and accounting is
a bit more detailed. One of the things I noticed in the receipts going back and forth is this person
paying his own company from two different ways. So I want to make sure that the money goes
to the people, the entertainers, and, and the other people doing it and if, if this person wants to
put this on then he can have other people do the things that he's paying his own company to do.
Those are the things that make the people out there wonder what's going on here, are we funding
somebody? I love the idea of having those films out there. I just want to make sure that the
accounting is a little bit more precise. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Rasmussen, can you comment on, on the accounting for this
one particular area or you need to look at it?
MS. RASMUSSEN: No, I, I've looked at that in detail and I, I agree, I do not, I do not like the way that
the invoices were turned in, I don't like the manner that the people were paid, and I don't like the
manner of the fact that the invoices were written by the event, and they weren't written from
people who received the money. So that is definitely something that we will, you know, we'll
tell him, and also I would like those events split between what it took to put the Hana one on,
what it took to put the Lanai on, what it took to put Molokai on? Because as it stands, they're all
three lumped together. We have no idea what was spent on each island. So I would start by
asking him to split the three events and to not necessarily write three separate grants, but he
would have to submit three separate budgets for each event. And then, and then the invoices
have to be real invoices from, from companies or entertainers, and they have to be on their
invoice forms not his invoice forms. So that, that, that was, I would definitely do that this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe you can help us in, in drafting a proviso that he does that so
that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --when we allocate the money, you know, that proviso stays with that
allocation. And when come next year, if he, if this organization don't follow the proviso, then at
that time, we make adjustments again. So if you can provide us with some-MS. RASMUSSEN: Language?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --language, yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just a, normally what happens is that during the contract process and actual
execution of a contract agreement, those stipulations are set forward within the contract itself.
And judging from Ms. Rasmussen's discussion of what she would like to see from this, I'm
confident that she'll have that items in the contract. But yes, if you'd like to create proviso's
specifically for something, we can do that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I agree, and this might be some good
backup for you is to have those provisos in there. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay fine, thank you. We'll work with OED on that one. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. My, my issue with this is, I don't feel Lanai gets a
benefit out of this. So my and if, if you wish to...keep a portion remaining for Maui island or
Maui and Molokai, you know, that's for the eight of you to decide. I would prefer you yank out
the Lanai component and you add that back to the Lanai Economic Development and a, the
program that we just passed on the previous page on the Lanai Economic Development and
Cultural Programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the one that we supposed to revisit and that's where-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you're gonna get your money from?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I, I told you I'd find for Aloha Festivals, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no I know you did so... (chuckle).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But for me, you know, I think our community through our CDFL, Kumpang
Lanai-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Lanai Community Association, we have entities that I think could do a
better service and provide our community with better activities under, under Economic
Development than this component, which, you know, for me, I, I question whether or not we
getting our, our monies worth.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I prefer not to have...the Lanai as part of this fund, funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Rasmussen, one of the other requirements,
and I will be putting in a proviso, is that all these entities cannot be leaving town with bills left
over, and you know exactly where I'm going with this one. I do not like to be walking around
town knowing that there was a sponsored event-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and that there's bills, people owed money, players, vendors. I
mean, that's not, and that reflects on Maui County-MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --okay so that's very important. Any of 'em, whether if this is the
MauiFEST, I don't care which one, I want you to be assured that I will put a proviso that a
financial report, and that it be verified that they don't leave bills behind-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --`cause it's a bad reflection on Maui County.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'll, you know, surf, I don't care who comes-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I want it done that way. If I don't see it-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I won't support it. I'm gonna be very upfront with you because
I'm tired of events coming here-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --even that side coming in and not paying-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --leaving bills unpaid, years later unpaid. That's not gonna
happen anymore. So, Chair, I'll be putting that proviso in and making sure that the OED-MS. RASMUSSEN: --Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --really follows through on that area.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, and thank you for that because I think that some of this has happened
because the event says oh, we're sponsored by the County and then everybody just lets them
charge-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --you know, and I think that, you know, businesses need to understand that if, you
know, if we're, that they need to be diligent as well and maybe not give the credit. You know,
that's one way of doing it, but clearly we'll make that statement to any group that comes forward
they had better pay their bills in Maui County and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --we'll definitely let them know that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Rasmussen, I appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding MauiFEST?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just a question for Ms. Rasmussen. When, I know with MVB, before
the final payment is provided to an event organizer-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that they, the economic benefit statement is required.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And I believe that's done with your HTA Grants, is that correct?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, it is.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So my, my question to you is are we really better off putting all these,
these individual line items? I, I get the sense that if it's a part of the normal process, whether it's
through MVB or through HTA grants or possibly your other grants, that there's already all the
safeguards in place, that we may not have the same level of, of review nor will they have the
same level of and the same feeling and responsibility when we put a line item for them
specifically. Is that...
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, thank you for bringing that up, because I, I just want to say one thing about
line items. We, we handle line items, I mean, they have to go through the same accounting
process. So the accounting process is still intact and if we implement this impact statement, this
Economic Impact Report, that will become part of it as well. But the difference with the line
items is, of course, it's kind of an entitlement, you know, you've created an entitlement. So
rather than having an event that says you're in, you're in with all of the other events and, and
Office of Economic Development decides, you know, first, second, third, fourth, fifth, which are
the best events, you know, that event's gonna happen regardless. And so all I would say is I
have no problem with line items per se, but all I would say is that if you would please let us
report to you the effectiveness of them so that they don't feel that they're entitled to come back
year after year if they put on an ineffective event. That's, that's the danger with line items.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So if we were to proviso MauiFEST with-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the Economic-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --Impact Statement requirement-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --and the report on how many-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --people attended the events, how many vendors-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --were involved and that kind of thing, would that be appropriate?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh. We're, we're gonna, we're going to do that regardless.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: So-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --regardless, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, we're going to the next section. Hana Canoe
Club, anybody get any questions regarding Hana Canoe Club?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, do I have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not a problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Environmental Protection, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Victorino, according to this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can let him ask the questions, that's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, you can, you can go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It does say MV.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MV over here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Too many MWs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I haven't gotten called on many times so I'm so hurt when I don't
have an opportunity.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All I see is MW and EC and-- 42 -
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We feel your pain.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you feel my pain, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, how we gonna...okay, what I wanted to ask,
Ms. Rasmussen, you know, this area is, you know, we got $1 million set aside right, and this is
for various projects, I mean nothing specific at this time.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you kind of gave us a general picture.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My question to you, is how do we decide, and who would, decides
where and what goes where? You know, because $1 million is a lot of money to just say hey-MS. RASMUSSEN: ... (sigh)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you got $1 million checkbook, go ahead and write a check
whenever you think-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you need one.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. This is, you know, thank you for asking that because this holds true for not
just the Environmental Fund, but all of our General Funds that we have, you know, all the
different, you know, whether it's small business or whatever. At the beginning of the grant
year-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --what happens is we sit down and we earmark those events or those, you know,
those activities that, you know, we feel as an OED Department must take place.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: So all of those things that we're, you know, we've been driving the initiatives,
we've been working on, we're gonna make sure that those things are earmarked first, and then
we always try to leave a reserve so that the pop up items, you know, like even in, since we came
in, in January, you know, there's been a lot of pop up items-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --you know, and so we've just had to work within the funds that were left because,
you know, things were earmarked, which is fine. Because by doing that, you get your, your best
where you feel your best bang for your buck is you get that earmark. So that's what will take
place with this Environmental Fund, and, and I will, because, you know, we, this is my first year
of going through this and giving out these environmental grants, all of them virtually were given
out before we got there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So we will sit down with these groups and, you know, I want to ask them what
their outcomes were from last year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I mean are we just funding them over and over like I talked about, you know,
fireweed, I mean, is it, is it a success? Do we need to keep doing it? Do we, should we
concentrate on some, you know, some other thing?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We know that we want to do the Pump Out Program until Maalaea gets their
facilities up so, you know, that's something we'll look at. MISC, you know, we work a lot with
Maui Invasive Species so we're gonna call them in and say what, you know, what do you want to
see happen. And then, you know, we'll kind of make a chart and see where, where it falls, but
we certainly won't earmark it the whole fund, you know, right off the get, you know, right
. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So how much right now of this million, how much is earmarked
today, what percent 50, 40, 60, what, what percent?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, we haven't, you know, until the budget's passed, we haven't done that
process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, so right now-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --nothing is earmarked?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Nothing is earmarked.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay that's good to-MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --know because I want to see you guys do the Pump Out and not
take it out of Lanai Economic Development.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I, I promised-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I don't fight-MS. RASMUSSEN: --I promised-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for Lanai very often-MS. RASMUSSEN: --Mr. Hokama-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and...
MS. RASMUSSEN: --that, that would not happen this year-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's not-MS. RASMUSSEN: --and it won't.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that's not fair, that's not fair. I know, I just wanted to know how
the priorities were set. I know-MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you went through a whole-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --mess of things so I'm glad-MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to hear that you at least taking a look at results-- 45 -
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and where they're moving forward.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is very important, you know.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes. And we spent the first, you know, time getting our budget ready working on
all the line items and now is the time that we work with all the people within the, those funds,
you know, that now is when they'll need to come in and talk to us so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you're well aware that the State has cutback so, you know,
this is gonna hurt us even more.
MS. RASMUSSEN: There's gonna be a lot more request-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's right.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --and we're, we're gonna just have to be very, we're just gonna have to be very
prudent with where the money goes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Rasmussen, I appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino, before I call on anybody else, I, you, you know
this Flower Show, Show-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, I'm looking at last year's awards and it went to one organization.
And the organization had divvied out for different type programs.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You, you know, we always talk about, you know, when we bringing sports
events over here, that somehow whoever is bringing the sports event, provide some
improvements to our infrastructure.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to the Flower Show, what's the possibility of providing with some,
you know, the County with some funding to look at, you know, the different type of invasive
species that we have here in Maui County. You know, in, in this particular area, Environmental
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Protection, you know, I just gonna leave it up to you that if and when you talk to this
organization that-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, somehow, you know, we putting a lot of money just to put on the
show-MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --somehow provide some...
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, actually, this show is not, it's in Philadelphia, it's not on Maui, but are you
talking about the Maui Flower Growers Association?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I talking about the, I thought this was gonna come on Maui, but I...
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. No, it's gonna, yeah, it's in Philadelphia. It's a, this is an opportunity for
our exporters to be able to showcase their products and that's why we're so excited for it. Yeah,
so it's in Philadelphia.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We're helping our companies to get their goods to Philadelphia and we're, we
want to be able to pay for the booth space for them to display their...yeah, yeah, so it's not, it's
not going to be an event here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. White followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, I'm gonna to go ten minutes more and then we'll recess and then
reconvene. I think most of you have functions to go at 11 o'clock. So, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I would like to maybe leave this item
for later to see whether we have extra funds. MISC, Maui Invasive Species Council [sic] has
been advised that they will be losing, I, I misstated the other day was I thought it was State funds
but it's Federal funds that are used for the helicopter spraying of individual Miconia trees, and I
just, I don't think we can sit back and allow that kind of activity to, to cease. And though
Mr. Victorino knows more about this kind of thing than I do, but I'd like to see us increase this
Environmental Protection line item because we've got a lot of invasive species that are creating
havoc all over the place. The Fireweed is absolutely horrible and Miconia is a threat that's very
well known, so I'd appreciate it if we can leave this open for later.

-47-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Thank you. And, and there's a, I saw in here a line item for strictly
Miconia. Let, let me give you some examples as far as the funding for the different programs on
the 2011 Budget. I don't think you guys got this information. Banana Bunchy Top Virus
$46,000, well actually $46,500; Coqui Frog Project $234,500; Maui Invasive Species Committee
Project 519...500...$519,500; Wetland Restoration of Kahoolawe $5,250, Maui Nui Marine
Resource Council $5,000; Maalaea Harbor Sewage Pump-Out Program Lanai $31,516, Fireweed
Control $100,000; Technical Support $20,000. And it is a pass through, through Tri-Isle
Resource, Conservation and Development Council so that one Tri-Isle Resource, Conservation
and Development Council, that's, that's where the money is being passed through-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to combat some of these invasive species and, and, you know, here on Maui
SO.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, along with this Environmental Protection, pretty
much anything that we do either whether it's a line item or a, a, lump sum like this
Environmental Protection, I think we need to work on the reporting and grant requirements. It's
been, it looks, from what I've seen, pretty loose and I, I don't want to say shoddy, but close to
just kind of thrown together reporting, so I'm asking that you guys really tighten down on the
requirements for-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --reporting and...
MS. RASMUSSEN: And, and they are supposed to put in their report at the end of...prior to receiving
their final payout. They're supposed to give us a, a report on the outcomes. So if it, we'll be
looking at that making sure that it's just not slapped together.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. And I'd like to ask the Chair if we could see those reports next
year before we make our decisions on, on these line items 'cause if they're flaky like they have
been, I'm not comfortable with supporting it.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay, good point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm not too comfortable either. And I'll take it off-line with you on my-MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --concern.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Alright, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, let's see. So we gonna come back on this one here, okay.
To reduce Premium Pay, reduce Premium Pay. Okay, there's on the bottom of Page 15 of 44,
12-40, the Chair had increased the West Maui Parks $40,000, and this was based on what was
presented to us by the person from the Parks Department that take care of the Lahaina
Gymnasium. And, and Mr. Couch, if you have information or, or...okay, I'm sorry, we're going
into Parks. But you had a question on this one here?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I did. I, that was, one of my request is to put the $40,000 in for that,
but I also wanted to add under Recreation and Support Services Program another $23,000 some
odd, I have the amount on my report for maintenance and construction work in South Maui parks
because they requested that in person that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Doesn't come out Countywide?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Don't know, well under Recreation and Support, isn't that where the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff? . . .(inaudible). . . Countywide-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's where all the Divisions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in this particular area?
MR. KANESHINA: So just, just to clarify that the question is where would the appropriate place to
budget for repair and construction-type things in Parks? I would, I would assume it's more
appropriately budgeted for in CIP, Countywide CIP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In CIP?
MR. KANESHINA: So if, if, if...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is, this is from their Details page for South Maui Parks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll take it up with Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I didn't realize we were on Parks, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll take up Parks right after lunch when you guys-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --come back at 1:30.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's one more area in. . .(inaudible). . . This is from Elle Cochran in
regards to this, grant to Maui Visitors Bureau for visitors industry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. No, I liked your proviso in there, Chair, the 250 Molokai and
the 250 for Lanai-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but I don't feel the need to increase it-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that's my say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Do I have consensus on this?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members, or we need to take a vote?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: She's suggesting something, has there, we haven't discussed it?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that again?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are we discussing that now, sir?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?

-50-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui Visitors Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, yeah, I mean, my proposal is I support what you're saying, but I
don't support the additional 150 added-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair's proposal...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to the 3.5.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, okay. The Chair's proposal is to increase by $150,000. I'm gonna ask
for a motion in regards to supporting the increase of $150,000 to Maui Visitors Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So moved, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, moved by Member White. Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Couch. Any discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like a 30-second recess with you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Short recess, no leave. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:58 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:59 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, any discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Head...roll call, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye, I guess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and Chair votes no. There's one, two...one, two, three "noes"; one,
two, three, four "ayes". I need Corporation Counsel's support. I, I voted "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He voted no.
MS. HEELY: I mean, you may want to clarify that because you... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I thought I heard no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You said no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, I vote "aye".
MS. HEELY: So the total was...?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four to three.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion fails.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fails.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, and White.
NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Cochran and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Carroll and Victorino.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So they don't get the increase...at this time. So we go back to the
same number $3,350,000.
MS. HEELY: And you have two excused.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And two excused, Member Victorino and Member Carroll. Okay. Moving
on.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We gonna...
MR. BAZ: I just, you may want to revisit this at a later point, I know you're gonna take a break right
now, because the proviso's are still in question I think.
MS. HEELY: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. So we'll revisit, okay. Budget and Finance Committee
meeting will reconvene at 1:30, so we're in recess . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

11:03 a.m.

RECONVENE:

1:37 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have Patrick Matsui, from the Parks Department, and we'll start
off from, on Page 15. Where's Mr. Couch and Mr. White? ... (chuckle)...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They are here, they're in the building. Oh, wait, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There you go, Mr. Couch.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch, we have-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Matsui over here, and I know that you had some questions in regards to
adding some monies in the Recreation Support Service-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Program. And I don't know what you were looking at, but go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm looking at Page 12-34 on the Details to South Maui Parks, I
wanted to add 23,340, and it's broken out--I can tell you how I want to break it out or can we
revisit it or do you want to just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, what was that for?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was for, at the request of the folks, the volunteers, who volunteer
a lot of their time-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --at South Maui parks and the people from that Department who are
doing building maintenance and repairs. They had asked, they, they had gotten short, short funds
last fiscal year and they had asked to increase their construction and maintenance funds,
construction materials, repairs and maintenance supplies, medical safety supplies, and
miscellaneous supplies and small tools. I have the breakdown, I put it in my proposal, but I
. . .(inaudible). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So they couldn't live with that number that we gave them last year?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not, no. They had overruns, they tried to do some stuff, and they
weren't allowed to because they had no money, and those beach parks are the beach parks that
everybody from Upcountry, everybody from Central, everybody all over, all the tourists all come
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to those beach parks and use them and they are in pretty bad shape and they just a need a little bit
to spruce them up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We going come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, all of these things that are being requested, you know, the, the, the
Chair's budget at this time is a balanced budget, okay. Just to let you guys know. Any questions
for Mr. Matsui? Mr. Couch, no?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. Matsui, in regards to the request regarding that particular group not
having enough money to do the maintenance, can you kind of elaborate?
MR. MATSUI: For South Maui, as you know, we had two big events that really impacted their budget.
One was that storm and then like a month later was the tsunami, and most of the South Maui
parks are beach parks so they were impacted a lot. So we did use some other funds to, for some
of the repair, buying sand to replenish sand on the beach. But you're correct they did go over on
their overtime, which is they went over budget on that. But, you know, for us, we're in a
program budget so we can take, you know, from the overall budget we, we can take, and, and
make up the shortfalls so, you know, as the requests come in, we look at it and prioritize and if
it's gotta be done, we, we go ahead and do it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair? The reason I added, wanted an addition 'cause I didn't
want to take it out of anybody else's budget, I wanted to include another 23,000 for that specific
purpose.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Matsui brings up a pretty good point though. We'll come back to
this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Matsui, Parks Department, what, you expect to get some
Carryover/Savings?
MR. MATSUI: You know this year, kind of going back in history...2010 Budget, well from the 2010 to
2011, the, our budget was cut, basically positions were taken out. And in the past what was
happening was because it's a program budget, if there was overruns on the operating side the B
account, we had used the savings from the vacant positions that we weren't paying to make up
the shortfall. As you know, 2011, which is the year we're in now, that amount is no longer
available because, you know, there were like some 30 positions and, and I think if you looking at
the budget, you're talking like $1 million was taken out of our budget. So this Fiscal Year 2011
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is the first time now that we're having to look at staying within the B Account, the total B
Account, and when we first came in, half of the fiscal year was already gone.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the question I have is, is you expect Carryover/Savings, yes, no?
MR. MATSUI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Currently, I'm looking at a report... ending 3/31/11, you encumbered
$1.5 million, you have a balance of 7 3 million, so you're telling me you're not going to get any
Carryover/Savings?
MR. MATSUI: Okay. One of the reports we looked at was that we have a big charge for water and
sewer, and the water and sewer because of the accounting, there was like a two-month lag in it.
So if, if you're looking at it, you know, what the balance, it looks like we're okay, but then if
you, if you subtract the amount that should've been taken out, for the electricity...not electricity,
for the water and sewer, you, you'd find out we were short. So, you know, just about a couple
weeks ago, we, we, we put a freeze on any spending that is not an emergency and, and anything
that has, any spending, has to come to the Director's office and, and we've put a freeze on
overtime too. Overtime had to be approved, preapproved by the Director's office, so, you know,
we got two months left in this fiscal year, we're just trying to make it through it. At the rate we
were spending, we would not have made it through the fiscal year. So we had to take these
drastic measures-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. MATSUI: --to get us through to . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. All I'm saying is that four months, three months of funding left
based on what I see, we're looking at 3 8 million, so I pass that comment to you, and, and you
say zero carryover so I have question. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: What, what Index Code are you looking at for that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm looking at the total thing, total operations.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 16-4...oh 44, everything is reduced Premium Pay. You know,
I'm looking at all these reduced Premium Pay and I think there's a proposal that I, I, I'd like to
make at this time or maybe Mr. White like to make for consideration, 20 percent. Chair had
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included a reduction in Premium Pay by 10 percent. The Chair now would allow Mr. White to
make a proposal if he so choose.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I don't have the sheet with me, I had Staff make
some changes to it, but I realize that some of them were uncomfortable with the level that I had
proposed, so Staff is presenting or producing a list of, of changes at a 20 percent level-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --for your reconsideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. What would 20 percent yield us as opposed to what is in the
budget now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, maybe you can give us some information regarding the 10 percent the
we projected?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the preliminary numbers it would, it would amount to a little bit over
800,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Eight hundred thousand dollars, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Eight hundred is 20, so half of that would be 10?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, the total would be I think, I think the Chair's recommendations
across all departments are around one...a little over a million and moving it up to 20 percent
would, in some cases, Chair, took more than 20 percent, so my guess is that it's gonna come in
as an additional 850 to 900,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So this would be a net gain in the budget, 850,000?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, that's important, we want to know what it's gonna give us-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --as we look for money. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hopefully that money can go for future CIP projects. Okay. So we're not
gonna discuss reduced Premium Pay. Staff, I gonna instruct you guys right across the board 20
percent. Page 17, okay, all of the reduce Premium Pay, we not going discuss. I need consensus
though on, on Page 16.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are we skipping Personnel services?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, go ahead, Chair.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Where are we, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 16, I need consensus-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On what?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on 13-2 where we have reduce Premium Pay. Line 13-2 on Page 16.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that's reduce pay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I thought you weren't gonna...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --. . . (inaudible). . . do reduce pay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I thought you said we were gonna wait until we got our thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait for what? I just instructed them to cut out 20 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right so we don't...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we don't need to do anything, it's all done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Well let's put it this way, I'm gonna ask for consensus so that we don't
come back on this.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Chair, I got a...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're, we're looking at 13-2, right, under Department of Personnel
Services right now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know, I kind of had questions about them spending 20... sorry,
$12,000 on subscriptions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought that was a little excessive myself.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I had concerns about them spending $12,000 on publications and
subscriptions, $12,000...is that needed, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I just was, conferred with Staff, it's gonna be 20 percent across the
board, I do have consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good, so we don't have to bother about. Okay, let's see, Ms. Cochran,
you had an issue with-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twelve thousand dollars spent on publications, subscriptions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm not even going to go there, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right, never mind, consensus then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grants to Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle, Elle?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'm looking to cut it completely out, is what my-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --proposal is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, I just want to confirm before I let Mr. Matsui go that we're done with Parks
Department?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think we're done with the Parks.
MR. BAZ: For now, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, he can-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, wait, wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --can come back for CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I ask Mr. Matsui a question though? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Matsui, the South Maui Regional Park, how were the funds
utilized for that purchase...or credits or what was...is that, can I ask that question? No?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You, you, you want to talk, take it offline-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to the purchase of the South Maui Park-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because it was done several years ago. It, it, you know, the way we had
configured or allowing the project in South Maui to happen. No, it was even before that, even
before I came to the Council when that park was purchased, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a budget question. Mr. Matsui, the current budget, is there
plans in there to improve Wahikuli Wayside Park, improvements there in this year's current
budget?
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MR. MATSUI: I think we have an appropriation for the pedestrian path for Wahikuli.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Pedestrian Path? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Coming back to Wailuku Main Street, the Chair will entertain a
motion to accept the number that is being proposed by the Mayor as well as the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member White. Any more
discussion? All in favor...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I, I guess I should explain my point. You know the, I think our
MRA should pick up the responsibility in this area of our town, and perhaps WMSA could be
working with that entity. I just been hearing a lot of concerns from very, very I feel, you know,
respectful, upstanding citizens in this particular community who, who don't support WMSA.
There, the litigation concerns have crossed my mind also, and I think just overall, it doesn't
really show full representation of the community As I stated, you know, one of the largest
landowners in that town was part of and now not, not. So I just feel it's sort of a duplication and
we should be focusing on a, our mandated MRA that should be in charge at this point. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And the MRA is not mandated, it was legislated so
there's a difference, and secondly, the Wailuku Main Street Association is also really the
Tri-Isle. It does all the various towns within the County of Maui, Paia, Makawao, and all that.
Thirdly, the MRA is only for Wailuku and it's in the blight and poverty areas that was why it
was originally set, set up. And so there is really no duplication because they do different aspects
and different jobs, okay. So I will say this, I want to put a proviso that everything that she does
or they do it's gonna be logged and returned, and that I want to put a proviso is there's
Carryover, the Carryover comes back, okay, and that's what I'm going to be doing. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, but as far as the number is it okay?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I have no problem with the number.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On that proviso, do we need to vote separately on that? 'Cause I agree
with him 100 percent on that proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When we come to the final day, if you guys want to add provisos, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So that's when we do it is the final day?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, there are eight "ayes", one opposed, Member Cochran. Motion is
carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE line item re: Grant to Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle Main
Street Resource Center at $243,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on to Page 17, everything is...except for, everything is reduce
Premium Pay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (Inaudible). . .15-40.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Delete expansion, Service Station Attendant. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I just have one or are you, are you on the delete?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't remember having a problem with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I know. ... (chuckle) ... Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one, Chairman, is that on 14-4, Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, 15-40.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fifteen-forty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We stay on Page 17.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 17.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: The, for the Committee's, this is a, a position, it was a half-time position within the Police
Department that would fuel and clean the vehicles, get them ready for the police officers to be
able to take them out on the road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Again. You know, this Chair had recommended that
through the Attrition Program, we'll utilize whatever position that's become available, have the
Mayor...do the moves as, you know, so stated a couple days ago. Okay. Any more questions on
this area? Okay, if not, we go to Page 18, these are Department of Public Works, reduce
Premium Pay and expansion...all of the expansion position being eliminated as well as the
equipment for those positions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and, and, though I concur about not all the positions, I had
if you looked at my proposal, I wanted to delete the Structural Engineer and the Construction
Inspector and give the Department, in fact, a correction, I was gonna do away with the Civil
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Engineer V and the Construction Inspector, because I wanted to give them an opportunity to
form their group. If they gotta pull couple other people from the present staff and, and do this to
show us the resolve, show us that it will work. And I want to give the Mayor and the
Department, Public Works, an opportunity to see if this will work. And so I agree with you, I
don't want all five, and I eliminated two. I was willing to at least live with three in that respect,
but I will see what the others have to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll leave the floor open for that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, again, you know, the Mayor had proposed an attrition program,
and, you know, when you look at 7 percent of, what, 2,000 employees, that's a lot. And I'm sure
we could, through his purview, move some of the positions temporarily to fulfill, you know,
most of the, the new position request. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, would you entertain the thought of provisoing these positions,
that they be funded through a, through the attrition savings? I'm, I'm not sure how that would be
done if it can be done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I would rather have the positions temporarily transferred and along with the
funding and work it from there rather than have the positions noted on this budget. Otherwise,
it's gonna stay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I guess the question I have is how...we had a discussion yesterday or
the day before about temporary transfers that, that the positions can go but not the funding. Is
that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think the conversation also went that the Mayor has the authority to move
those funding.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you cannot move funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we have Corp. Counsel clear that please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, can, can we do it through a budget amendment to move
those monies?
MS. HEELY: Through a budget amendment that requires Council action--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I thought was something like that.
MS. HEELY: --via ordinance or resolution.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so if I'm understanding your direction correctly, it's you're
willing...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So if, if I'm understanding you correctly, then you're willing to
entertain these as long as the Mayor can show the, the savings through his Attrition Program to,
to fund these and, and more I would, I guess?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, what I'm saying is that, you know, we, we, according to the Mayor, he
has an Attrition Program. As people leave the County, those positions become vacant, then
temporarily move those vacant positions, of course, they gotta be redescribed at some point, but
moving the position to a different department, from one department to another department
temporarily.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: I'm, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I, I did discuss this with the Mayor, and he agrees with your, your
discussion of temporarily transferring of people. One of the, you know, EP counts between
programs, one of the concerns he had was, you know, that it was gonna be something that, you
know, does the Council support this idea in concept of having this, specifically this team, you
know, then he would want to move forward with that. If we create this team, temporarily
transfer them and then come for budget next year and Council decides they don't want this, then
it could create significant problems. The other item is that, Mr. Hokama just mentioned it again,
is that the Mayor doesn't have the ability to move funds between programs, only the Council has
that authority to do that. And so if that was the case, we found five EPs to be able to fill these
positions with, transfer them from other programs. This program wouldn't have the capacity to
fund all of those five positions with its, its program budget. We would either be required to
come back to a budget amendment and would we do that before we could fill the positions or
would we have to, could we fill the positions and then come back, do budget amendment later or
is there an option of allowing the Council or the Council allowing the funding to be put into this
program through this budget process in preparation for Fiscal Year '12's Budget, and then, but
not including the EP count. It's kind of opposite what, to what the normal factor is of putting the
EP count and no funding so that we could move forward with this, you know, so the, the overall,
I understand, you know, your concern about the overall growth and we understand, you know,
the Mayor's Office really understands your concern about the overall growth of the County as far
as, you know, the employee counts go. So we're just trying to figure out a way to solve this
problem.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and in regards to the position themselves, and we all know the ones that
had been here before, that a new position on the average takes between six and eight months to
fulfill, so as far as the funding through budget amendment, you know, four months I, I think we
can live with it. As far as the positions, this Chair feels that the formulation of this one particular
group may help process the work much faster. Unless Members have different, you know,
opinions and I'll accept them. I'll go with Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I support the Chair's recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I, I support your recommendation. I think this is a, a very
important thing for us to move forward on, but I understand your, your desire to have it come
through a budget amendment if, if...because of the, the time it takes to fill a position. But I think
I would like to give the Administration a, maybe a clearer sense that we agree with the concept,
because I, I do feel that it's going to move, anytime you can move County projects more rapidly,
it's gonna cost us less money overall. And I, I believe it was Mr. Couch that had come up with
the idea of, of making these positions LTA. I'm not sure that's the right solution but I think we,
we would want to make sure that we have an opportunity to review the success of this team in a
couple of years and, and verify whether the process has been sped up and verify what the savings
might have been, and so I, I'm okay with proceeding as you've outlined with the understanding
that we're moving in the direction of supporting this just at a little bit slower pace than putting it
in the budget and waiting...I, I agree that we can wait for the attrition.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I like the idea of LTA, make sure that this program works,
works well, and if it does, then remove the LTA. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You, you heard what I said and I will agree with the LTA, but just
the three positions, again, I still stay with that because I feel that there's enough to assist to
others to help the team and make a nice team within. Plus you need to have historic perspective
and, you know, I just, that's what I felt, you know, bring some of the guys that are there and
some new people and let's get this team working. LTA would be another way of getting around
it, I don't mind that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, this is how I see it. I don't support this concept, I don't see how
it's gonna work. I don't see how or we haven't been told how it's gonna adjust how we doing
CIP. Are we not gonna use consultants anymore, or we're not gonna hire outside engineers and
architects that are good in certain specific fields whether it be in hydrology for a Water
Department project or it be a structural team because of the age of a historical building? You
know, as I understand construction contracts, AIA contracts, the role of the architect, the role of
the engineer that represents the owner or the party that's wishing to have a project built. That's
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who represents us, the architects under, under normal AIA contract, design contracts. So are we
not going to use them, we're gonna go with this so-called team of generic positions to do all
types of required specialty projects for us? Who, whose feet do I take to court and burn in case
they screw up? The County, because they're County employees? 'Cause I can't take the
consultant anymore. So how do we save time, how do we save money? We're gonna have this
review what the consultant does? You know, I'm thinking, you know, this Mayor, the last
Mayor had their white papers on permit approval improvements. This Mayor has asked, he's
hired enough people in EA positions to work on permit issues and expediting approvals request.
I think we should be given a status report on the Administration's efforts and successes. And
then see if things like this make sense. But we haven't heard what internally what the
Administration has done to try and resolve some of this bottlenecks that they are more maybe on
a day-to-day basis more knowledgeable than we are, but for me, you know, I think we jumping
the gun on this, Chairman, and I don't see how in a normal contract CIP project this is gonna
make it better unless I missing something from experience and doing contracts, that's brand new
to me. So that's my position, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I think. ..correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. Chair or Mr. Baz, but
I believe according to Mr. Goode, the Director of Public Works, that this was a position to
manage projects, not so much to get, expedite permits, but it's to manage projects. For instance,
for the police station, they've got a consulting firm that they're paying $1 3 million to oversee
the project instead of a police officer. The Fire Department there's, you know, instead of having
a fireman oversee a project, 'cause the fireman's a fireman not a project manager. That's what
this team was supposed to be is the people to oversee the project on behalf of the County instead
of paying consultants a lot of money. And Mr. Goode said he, he thought that they could save
$1 million in consultant fees by having this, this group. That's why I support this group, I
support what Mr. Victorino said, three positions here, make them LTA for three years, and if
they, if they don't do what they say they can do, then we can say alright forget it, it was an
experiment that didn't work. But to have people who know how to manage a project, not a
fireman for a fire station or a policeman for a police station, you know, that's what that's for and
that's to help save money for the County, and that's the only reason I would want any position,
any new position is something that's either gonna save money or generate revenue ala the RPT
guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what I hearing is three positions, LTA. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thanks. Yeah, I kind of support the, the use of these
additional people at this point. And, you know, Chair, sorry, but I bypassed back in Planning, I
wanted to add a position there, and it is in regards to expediting the permitting process. So sorry
I did not bring it up at that point. I don't know if we should go back there now or we'll just, I'll
just make a note to revisit Department of Planning. What would you like me to do?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (Chuckle) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ... (Chuckle)... Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning, I think Planning has the right size or even more because as, you
know, construction has slowed down so I might be wrong, but in my, you know, I look at the
construction industry and the type of work that they do. I'm sure there are, are people available
to, to add a hand in trying to expedite things more expeditiously. And, and the Planning
Department should be taking a look at their bottlenecks as well and, you know, to try to improve
in moving their projects along that they have.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, this is a specialized position, Chair, that I have support with
Mayor, Director Spence and SHPD with, so it's a specialized position, which is an archaeologist.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Take 'em from Long Range.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Take 'ern from Long Range.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --anyway, I can...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Take it from ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I mean if we want to discuss it now, Chair, I'm sorry, I'm
backtracking, but we can revisit unless you want me to talk about it now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we can revisit, but you need to talk to the Department and see what kind
personnel that they have-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that can, can clearly, clearly support what you're talking about. My feeling
is that, that they have enough people to do the work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Mayor says through attrition this could happen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, if he wants to go through attrition, then approving the body should be
done by this Committee. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So we can revisit then, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we can revisit. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. I tend to think like Member Couch that I think
that's a reasonable solution and Member Victorino, maybe a compromise of three. I would like
to see something happen though. You know, as long as any of us have been involved in this,
we've heard the chant from the public of we gotta speed up the permitting, we gotta speed up the
permitting, and I think that the Administration deserves a chance to try to do that. So I'd like to
help at least in some way and not totally pupu the idea, at least I want to express my support for
it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. ... (sigh)... This Chair has some, well a comment to make in regards to
the permitting process. I, I know permits are being done expeditiously, as fast as they can. One
of the problems is that developers are not picking up those permits, those approved permits to go
ahead and do their construction work. So here on one hand yeah, you know, push, push, push,
on the other hand nobody's picking up the permits. So how do you balance that? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again, I think that it's not the issue of getting the permits out, it's the
issue of managing a project. And if...I, I see, I see Mr. Goode is here. I may be wrong on that,
but I don't think it has anything to do with getting a permit out. That's my thought there, it's
about...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, based on your comments earlier, yeah, just the overseeing of the project
by specialized people. Maybe Mr. Goode can give us some insights.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. I only caught a portion of the
discussion downstairs and ran up here quickly. What I understand is there's discussion on the
floor about, is it three LTA positions possibly to accomplish this task of trying to take or manage
the projects that are done, certainly not by police captains, you know, for police stations, and
fire, and if Housing and Human Concerns has a project, or, et cetera. Is that what the discussion
is?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
MR. GOODE: Okay. I certainly understand and sympathize with the, what appears to be the Council's
goal of, of minimizing the number of additional positions, then trying to throttle back on the size
of, of County government. We've actually already implemented attrition in our Department. I
think we're actually the first Department to do it. So we are also looking for those opportunities
where maybe it doesn't make sense to have say as many inspectors in one section when we're
issuing half as many permits as an example. Then we also look at where there's opportunities
and we really felt this was an opportunity to save the County a substantial amount of money. I
think we can live with that proposal of three, of three positions. I might be back here a year from
now asking for two more or one more, it depends how it goes. It may also depend on whether or
not the fire station is at what level is approved. But without a doubt, I'm, I'm convinced that we
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will save a significant amount of money by having professionals run those projects in concert
with, you know, a team from police who tells us, you know, what they're looking to accomplish
or a team from the Fire Department, and but I think we can live with that proposal if that's where
this body decides.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We talk about three positions, what type of positions?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, if that's something you need right away, I'm gonna have to huddle with my
team quickly and come back-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --if you could afford me that opportunity?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One real quick question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It is not to expedite permits, that, I just want to get that cleared. Is that
correct?
MR. GOODE: No, the goal is to manage projects.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
MR. GOODE: But I'll tell you, if they have an opportunity to expedite a permit, they should.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ... (Laughter)...
MR. GOODE: . . .(inaudible). . .slow things down, I'll tell you that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, so who is then managing County projects at this point if you need
these type of people to manage the projects in the future? Who manages our construction
projects, somebody from your Department, somebody from the originating department of the
request, if it's Water Department it's a Water employee, if it's a Parks Department project it's a
Parks employee, if it's Police project it's a Police employee? Is that how it works?
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MR. GOODE: Pretty much we're...Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama, we're pretty much siloed that way, the
Water Department has their own inspection staff. On large projects they may hire outside
construction management based on the complexity of the job. We do some other work for the
Police Department, we're doing a little project for them now, but the, in general, it's gonna, each
department takes care of its own. So we have inspection staff, but again, depending on the
complexity of the job and the amount of projects we have going on, we will hire outside
construction management to handle the day to day where we can't physically be there every day.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So why wouldn't we use the, the, the Design Architect of the project as well
as the Design Civil Engineer to do those construction management requirements for us since they
represent us in the performance of, or the build out of the project under normal AIA contracts?
They represent us?
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They supposed to look out for our welfare?
MR. GOODE: Yes, some, sometimes that, that does occur, it depends on the project. There are
instances I think in complex projects where you want another party to do it, because there might
be conflicts of interest for that architect to manage his own, his or her own project. All, all our
architects and engineers under contract do provide services during construction, that's a normal
part of their contract, so they might be resolving design issues that come up in the field, coming
up with quick sketches, recommending solutions or recommending, evaluating materials. But
they generally don't handle the day to day. Here comes a concrete truck, watch the concrete
coming out, is it good enough? Well a good inspector will reject a bad load of concrete. You
need to be there on that day during the pour, which could be a Saturday, you gotta have specific
knowledge in that. And so again, it depends on the project, but almost always are design
professionals are engaged for some construction services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, in our practice, what does it take for a project to have those additional or
special construction management requirements? Is it the cost of the project, anything over 5
million, we go for this special person, or I mean, what, what makes the project so different that
for certain ones you want this specialized construction manager and others don't need it?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Hokama, I think it generally again depends on the type of project and the types of
activities going on. If there is very specialized steel construction for instance, where maybe the
types of welds or joints have to be specially inspected, we'd want somebody that is certified and
understands that, that technique. There's also, again on size, like a $5 million, $10 million, there
could be multiple activities happening throughout the site simultaneously. You could be pouring
concrete in CMU blocks, it has to be compacted or placed in there in a certain way, and on the
other end of the job site they might be pouring a slab. And so when we hire a construction
management team, there may be, they'll deploy two inspectors that day 'cause they know they
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got these multiple tasks going on. So we have to evaluate each project, you know, for types of
techniques going on and the size of the project and what could be happening day to day.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So again from, from our point of view as appropriators, why wouldn't we
budget that in per project, by the project? And so if you tell me this project is at this level, this
complex, this needs specialized construction management, we've built it into the project cost,
and when you folks, if you approve this project, this comes with this component. Why would I
need potential LTAs or civil servants to wait for a project?
MR. GOODE: We, we envision this team handling the project not necessary during construction, but
way before construction, so at the time when the project is really conceived it's an idea, you
know, the Police Department says hey, we need this new station in this area. They would come
to us, we'd look at it, okay what kind of a size, come up with a budget, and then we come to you
folks and say here's what we want to do, here's what the budget is, roughly a design and
construction. So you award the design, we begin that process. That person starts then right there
at the very beginning to work with hiring the architect, managing their contract, managing their
work so that we don't have a, you know, we've come here and said that's about a $10 million job
and they design us a $20 million building. And so we see these professionals handling the
project from inception through completion. So. . .(inaudible). . . construction, but really, really
important that the design is done in such a way to accommodate the, our client, say the Police
Department, and staying within, within scope, and that's like I said, you may not have been here
when we had our first meeting with you folks on this. It's, it's, it's part a lot of knowledge and,
and training, and it's also the school of hard knocks. So we're looking for folks that have
experience and done this before.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I hope you're right 'cause this going be an expensive mistake.
MR. GOODE: I hope so too.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, that's why we have LTA. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Mr. Goode, you've heard our proposal, and
what I'd like to see us do. Now if you want to mix and match the positions that's fine, but I
don't know, with so many civil engineers, you know, I could see a construction inspector 'cause
you just basically said you need inspectors down there. So, you know, I would hope that that's
where you're gonna go in somewhere in that area of something of that nature. And we wanted
LTAs because we want to make sure that we're getting results. And I wanted to use some of
your people that you have already as historic perspective because you just said these guys are
probably new guys that have experience unless you pull from what you have and then hire
somebody else, which you might do, you might do also. So my, my feeling is, and I, and I, I
think I have to say this, at this point, Mr. Chair, we cannot make an LTA proviso for three years
`cause it's an annual budget. Is that not correct, Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We could.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought because it was an annual budget, each year you'd have
to redo it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If we say LTA for three years, LTA for three years. Because we need to make
the program either work or die.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, yeah. I just, I just want to get it straight because I've always
been told any proviso is only good for that year, and if you want that proviso to go on then you
have to bring it up the next year. Now I might be wrong and I apologize if I am.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Corporation Counsel can enlighten us?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, and maybe Corporation Counsel can help me too. The Council does appropriate
the budget on an annual basis, and within that annual budget would be the LTA approved
position. And so theoretically, each Council would have to, to revote those positions in each
year, but you revote every position in each year so it'll be a similar thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's an annual budget and proviso is only good for one year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One year, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then just so because I know Mr. Couch is saying three years
and I'm saying no, no I don't think we can do that, I just wanted to get that clarified. And that's,
that's good for me and, you know, Mr. Goode, I hope you're right, I hope this works, I hope you
save us and the people of Maui County a lot of money, that's my, my hope. But each year we
can evaluate and if it ain't happening, hasta luego. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Director Goode, for being here. Your
Department utilizes archaeologist for your projects?
MR. GOODE: Yes, we hire out through our...or generally, a sub consultant to the design firm whether
that's an engineering firm or architect, they'd be a sub to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Do you think an in-house one would help with work?
MR. GOODE: You mean on a County level?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: I don't think we have enough work within our Department to justify that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But you would help utilize one? I mean you could use, you would
utilize one if there was a position in, in certain projects?
MR. GOODE: If, if we could, if there's a County archaeologist available, I think yes, we would want to
utilize their services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And these positions therefore, sounds like it could
expedite the design and construction phase, the, the...every...being from the Infrastructure
Committee, I mean everything starts from that and it seems to be the real sort of lag I guess to
get things going, you know, it's like oh, it's in the design phase right now. So if we had onsite
in-house that would progress that, move it, expedite it, right?
MR. GOODE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Goode.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh no, I'm fine with where we're going.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Carroll? Any more for this area? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just real quick, can we revisit this when he comes up with the exact
positions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. When he comes back for the three positions, then, you know, the Chair
will entertain consensus or we take a vote.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just for, for information purposes and perhaps the Department can
provide additional information. The Kaunakakai Fire Station, it started at $10 5 million project
for our community A project manager during the, during the planning and inception of the fire
station was a firefighter, and the firefighter worked in conjunction with the architect for a
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number of years prior. And when the project actually was ready to get off the ground, the
County hired a representative from the architect, architectural firm to serve as the project
manager, and that individual is not on our island everyday to watch the process. As a matter of
fact, he comes over just periodically just to see, you know, but then again, you know, this is the
fox guarding the hen house, right, you hired the architect, you know, who's gonna say their
project is faulty or the, or the work is shoddy. I mean it's not going to happen, but it also, it also
provided the opportunity for the project to continue to move ahead because the, because the
County did not want to see line individuals running, you know, such a large project as the fire
station. Even though personally I think this firefighter was more equipped, you know,
intellectually and, and with skill to actually run the project, but it cost us I believe it was $60,000
that we hired the architect to actually oversee this project. So, you know, there are options,
instead of a $1.7 million investment, there are other options. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, Mr. Goode, this could even help the inspection for the
proposed Kihei Police Station, once these people are in place?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I think I mentioned this in that, the first time I was here that we'd have to look at
that contract and that scope and see where maybe we could substitute portions of that scope.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good 'cause we looking at one phase. Okay. Members, any more
questions for Mr. Goode on this item? Okay. Moving on, Administration Highway Fund,
Mr. White? Page 18.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think that was pre, oh no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you had the...but this is...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I don't have any changes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Same thing, Premium Pay?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think so. I, I'm fine.
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Still looking for that information?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm, I'm fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 19, let's see, reduce Premium Pay, reduce Premium Pay. Okay.
Mr. White, same thing for Administration program for the Department of Transportation.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before we go to Department of Transportation, I'd like to ask
Mr. Goode, you know, I'm concerned about that sidewalk fund for Upcountry, for that sidewalk
from King Kekaulike down to Pukalani Superette and the other one by Haleakala Waldorf
School in Kula. Is this a good place where we should try to put this?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: --Ms. Baisa, that would probably be a CIP item.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 200,000?
MR. GOODE: Something like that would.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Surprises me, but, you know, he's the expert I'm not. ... (chuckle) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there a contribution to the, from the State of Hawaii, Mr. Goode, since the
sidewalk goes alongside State highway?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: County road.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's a County road.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a County road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All the way down?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a County, it's old, it's a County road-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --all of it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From the traffic light down or all the way to King K?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: From the traffic light down.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's the only place that you want the sidewalk?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's one, but there's also one in Kula along the...by-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --in front the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's not up to King Kekaulike High School?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, both.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's the two studies together, so we we're hoping that maybe we could
get a better deal on it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess that's a question...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry.
MS. HEELY: Just for clarification-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: --I believe that Director Goode's answer to you was that would be in CIP?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MS. HEELY: You just, you said 200,000 or something I'm not...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MS. HEELY: Director, did you want to address the 200,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's just for a study. It's not CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It, it wasn't the, the question of, of the 200,000, it's is it a CIP when it
really isn't a project yet?
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MR. GOODE: Yeah, in order for it to be a project, we would need to do some engineering work,
potentially some environmental work and EAs, and that takes time, and so that would be
something that could be appropriated this year and for construction for the next year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As CIP?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, this was not in our budget so, but it would be a CIP item-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we'll-MR. GOODE: --if that's what Council...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --look at it again, Chair, when we get to CIP?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Okay. Coming back to Mr. White on the Department of
Transport [sic], oh, anything else for Mr. Goode, other than coming back to CIP? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I will just ask the Director to, I think we need to be careful as a County,
Chairman and Director, the State is making again interesting efforts to try and convey to the
County anything they don't want under the guise of government road. And, you know, the old
traditional break between the county and state was anything intra-community or intra...the...a
city, that was the County's purview, anything that connects cities or communities is the State,
under the State network. But, you know, I can appreciate they're doing their best to limit
liability and reduce what they need to maintain so, you know, they're trying to dump it on the
counties. My caution is please I would ask your Department, all our departments, Mr. Baz, to
not exercise any control or authority over questionable roadways until we're certain who is
responsible because once we exercise and something happens, the County deep pockets will
always get sued. And as our Policy Chair, I tell you I look at unbelievable amounts of claims
against us for various dollar amounts, and it concerns me in this kind of economic times
everybody feels to sue the counties so I, I share that comment to minimize future requirements,
Chair, from our financial standpoint for the directors. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, any more questions for Mr. Goode? Thank you, we'll see
you later on CIPs, and bond projects. Okay, Department of Transportation. Mr. White, you had
a question on the Premium Pay is limited to--78-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --. . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My, my concern about the, in this area was regarding the bus
replacement matching fund, and the concern I have is that we are making such a significant
increase in the funding of that program from roughly 400,000 up to 2.5 million. The, this bus
replacement fund expense is, is part of that or part of what is making that happen, and so my
recommendation would be to just to cut that back by 100,000 and I believe that would result in
savings on, on two buses. So that's, that's my concern. I, as I think I've said before, I'm
troubled by the fact that we are spending, or we, we have a service that we can't determine the
frequency of, therefore, the cost is not in our control, and I am concerned because the services
are very necessary and a worthwhile service. It's only being provided in a, in an area three
quarters of a mile from existing bus lines. So we're not taking care of people beyond that. And
I'm, I'm concerned that we're sinking a lot of money into taking care of a part of our population
but not the remainder. So that's, I'd just like to hold back on this bus matching fund for now and
if we need it, add it next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The only area that you are in...well, so in, in regards to the
Administration Program, you have no problems with that? This is the disbursement for salaries
and Premium Pay limited to five equivalent.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr....
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I put it down because I don't see this line item...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay anywhere else.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: It is an Index Code within the Administration Program-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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MR. BAZ: --for that. It's not a grant so it's not specifically identified, but it is within the
Administration Program for the bus replacement matching funds, that's why Mr. White has-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --addressed it there.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff . . (Inaudible). . . Oh, okay, 101,000?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Whatever, I think maybe 111,000, I think I may have, 'cause that
would be 20 percent of the 555.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, $111,000?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, there's a request by Mr. White to reduce the Administration
Program General Fund by $111,000...as noted by Mr. White and he gave the explanation. Any
more discussion on this matter? If not, do we have consensus or do you want me to take a vote?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Vote, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion is to reduce from the Department of Transportation area
Administration Program - General Fund, reduce the proposed number as proposed by the Mayor
and the Council...this Chairman, by $111,000. Staff, what is the-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --number?
MR. KANESHINA: So just to clarify, we're, we're talking about Administration Program - General
Fund, the Mayor's proposed was $1,079,568-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: --and you want to decrease that by...?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One hundred eleven thousand dollars.
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MR. KANESHINA: The new total would...remaining would be-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Or make it, make it 110.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Make it 110.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Round.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My, my division was odd.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 110?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I second the motion, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what's the total?
MR. KANESHINA: At 110,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: It'd be 969,568.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Members, any
more discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: "No".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "no", Member Cochran.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE reduction of $110,000 to the Department of Transportation,
Administration Program — General Fund.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The other area is, Ms. Baisa, in regards to Grant to MEO for Transit
Center, delete $500,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Of course, I would like to see this restored.
Since we've just found 110,000, maybe we can get it to 390,000, but I think all of you received
the communication from Debbie Cabebe on behalf of Ms. McNeff in regards to that grant and
what the money would be used for. You know, this is a very difficult situation because although
it's, this need to move this Transit Center is coming to a head right now, it's really sad because
these are, you know, these times, if this were several years ago, this probably wouldn't have
gone through what it did and would've been fairly easy to complete. But because we are in these
tough times, people keep granting money and then not releasing it and there's been all kinds of
delays. But the fact of the matter is, that we all pass Kahului every day, we all see where the
buses are, we all know it's probably on the most desirable piece of State property that any of us
can think of right in the smack middle of Kahului, and that it has to get out of there. And MEO
has tried very, very hard to relocate, and with the help of A&B and all the funders that help give
the money, were able to purchase the land. But in order to go ahead with getting the buses out of
Kahului and out of the tsunami inundation area that they are in right now, they, the building of
the Transit Center has to happen at some point. And while this is, I think, a very modest request
this year, it's critical because they have to keep moving forward. You know, I don't know what
we're gonna do in this community when the day comes and the State says you guys need to get
out because we made, made a decision to build something or we sold it or whatever's gonna
happen. So my request is that if we can possibly find this money that, or even some of it if we
can't give all of it, that we try to fund it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and this Chair has made his comments much earlier
regarding the non-profit area and no Capital Improvement Projects funding was considered by
this Chairman, but if, if Members have any inclination because we, we have three requests of
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CIP dollars, and this Chair hasn't recognized any single one. But I leave it up to the Members,
the Chair's recommendation was to eliminate the $500,000. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He has to ask first.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Or Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the debate is, can I make a motion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, you can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Chair, I move that we insert the $500,000 back.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Baisa, second by Member Carroll, that we
reinstate the $500,000 back for the Maui Economic Opportunity for Transit Center. Any
discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would like to find out from, I guess it would have to be MEO or the
Department of Transportation or both, if this could be used as a potential hub for the Maui Buses
as well as long as instead of putting it right in the middle of a busy shopping center getting in
everybody's way. If we're gonna have a transit...central transit hub, would this be a kind of a
joint deal? Could this be kind of a joint deal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Winer, if you can answer that?
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: This is a transit center that would be specifically for Maui Economic
Opportunity. We don't have any ownership control over the land. The hub that you're referring
to is really different from an operational transit center. From everything that I know on I guess
with my limited base of knowledge about the whole entire project, this would be done in phases,
and their project would really provide a base yard, a base and other kinds of amenities that would
take care of the buses, be able to service the buses. It's completely different from a transfer
center or a transit hub.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, Members...Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. This is not the first time this subject
has come up. I remember when this was before the Planning Commission that the subject
emerged at that time, but I had already left MEO, I didn't attend the hearing, I'm not really sure
what happened, but we have MEO people here today who could answer the question.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you have any questions for a representative from
MEO, I'll gladly bring them forward. But again, you know, this Chairman hadn't included any
Capital Improvement Projects for non-profits at this time based on our economy, and if we're
gonna put in CIP dollars in any place, I would rather have the CIP dollars be put into County
infrastructure at this time. Members, any more questions? Okay, the Chair is gonna call for the
vote. All in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "No".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, roll call, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and, and, you know, Ms. Baisa brought a good point,
something is better than nothing so I'm gonna make a motion...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait. I, I already called for the vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, no, you did, you did, and now, but I'm gonna make another
motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. Let's take care of this first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'll let you-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Let's take care this first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --but I would just like your permission to do that afterwards
please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five, four...
MS. SAKAMOTO: Five noes.
MR. KANESHINA: Five noes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four yes. Okay, the vote is five, four "ayes", five "noes", the motion dies.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran,
Mateo, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
-85-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, now I'd like to make a motion to fund 250,000 for the
Fiscal Year 2011-2012.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Baisa. Any
discussion? Again, oh, Mr. Couch, you go first.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was just gonna ask if you could restate the motion again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The motion is to reduce the funding to $250,000. Again, the Chair is just
gonna reiterate his comments much early, earlier in regards to Capital Improvement Projects for
non-profit wasn't considered. If any Capital Improvement Project dollars especially General
Fund monies that are available, it should come to the County for our own improvement at this
time. Okay. Any more discussion, Members? Okay. The Chair is gonna call for the vote, all in
favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Noes?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "No".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair votes no. Motion is carried six, six "ayes"; three "noes", Member
Pontanilla, Member Hokama, and Chairman Mateo--oh, I'm sorry, four "noes".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five-four.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Member Cochran. Five to four, five "ayes", four "noes". Okay, motion
is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE reduction of Chair's proposed line item re: Grant to Maui
Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Transit Center to $250,000.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: I have a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Now, Ms. Winer, question?
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: Yes, I just wanted because the Council is, you know, inserting this, if you
could give our Department guidance as to what you would like done, you know, what the scope
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is going to be for the use of the monies that you've allocated so that I know how to manage if it's
in the form of a grant, if you're just giving an outright check. ... (chuckle)... You know I just
need to understand how this would be administered so that I can have assistance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, I just don't want to give an outright check. And maybe
someone know from MEO in regards to the State funding, is that available, has the Governor
signed or released the one point whatever million dollars for this Transit Center at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ms. Cabebe is here today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Cabebe, if you can come forward?
MS. CABEBE: Good afternoon, Chair and Council. I'm sorry, I can't hear you very well so I didn't
understand what the question was.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The question is I know there's State funding, has the Governor released the
money or he's, he's gonna release the money?
MS. CABEBE: We're still waiting to hear, we have not received confirmation nor denial.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the money was approved?
MS. CABEBE: Initially it was approved, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, if there's no objections, the Chair would like to add a
proviso to that $250,000. That the $250,000 be released upon receipt of the funds from the State
of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by...moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch, any
discussion? All in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "No".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, roll call. Member Carroll?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIRMAN HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair votes "aye". Motion is carried. Seven "ayes"; two "noes",
Member Baisa and Member Couch.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE proviso re: release of funds for Transit Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the only reason of that proviso is to ensure that the State of Hawaii
monies is released prior to we releasing our money. Member Johnson...not Member Johnson-COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Director Johnson, this will give you a good indication on, on how the
Council is going to be moving on this grant.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: Yes, and we'll work closely with, you know, your department as well as
Corporation Counsel to make sure we understand what the parameters are. And I'm sorry I
couldn't get here before you took the vote on the other item, which was our bus replacement. I
was rushing over and, you know, I, I, know it's probably too late from what I gather, but, you
know, I...it's really gonna hurt us, you know, by cutting that money out-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: --because our buses are dying so it's much more difficult when we don't
have that, when we don't have that money for the buses. You know so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HEELY: And Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: Just quickly, under the Code Chapter 3.36, when Council appropriates money, it
describes that appropriation for a grant shall not be expended unless a contract is entered into
between the County, and each contract shall specify that the County shall not be held liable for
any claims or damages resulting from the acts of the recipient, and various other terms that need
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to be in that contract. So to answer Ms. Winer's question, our office will work with her as well
to make-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good.
MS. HEELY: --sure that that specific language is in the various grant contracts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good, thank you. And, Members, this is not the first time we added proviso in
this manner We've done it in the last budget, in the last two budgets actually. Okay. Moving
on. Thank you, Ms. Cabebe. Moving down the line, Public Transit Program, Highway Fund,
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You missed one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You missed one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Paratransit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Paratransit-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, Paratransit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --. . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Paratransit Program, Highway Fund, reduce for Section 53,
5311 funds, the recommendation by the Chair is...reducing by $1 million the appropriation, from
the appropriation of $2.5 million. The new net appropriation is $1.5 million. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I, I, I still haven't quite figured out, wasn't, aren't 5311
funds a grant? So you're anticipating $1 million less in the grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're anticipating, should it come, $1 million from the grant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, so the Department is anticipating two and a half million, you're just
saying you think it's going to be only be one and a half million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, no. Although it's gonna end up two and half mil, part of the two and
half mil is that these are all General Funds and in the interim, to make it 2.5, we utilize General
Funds. And then through the 5311 program, we get grants from the Federal government
amounting to, what $900,000, or something like that.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just a point of clarification. In the Grant Revenue section of the budget, we only
have $600,000, and that's kind of a max expected from the 5311 funds for the current fiscal year.
The, the million dollars or little over a million dollars that was recognized this current fiscal year
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was actually two fiscal years combined and they were actually delayed by at least one fiscal year,
so we, because of the State pass through of the 5311 funds, we don't know when we're gonna get
them and we don't necessarily how much, know how much we are gonna get. Maybe Ms. Winer
can...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the grant fund is 653?
MR. BAZ: It's 600,000 is what we put in Grant Revenue. Historically, we've only gotten about 525 or
so thousand dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Still can come in for budget amended though. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Maybe, I did have a question about that, Corp., maybe Corp.-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --Counsel can, can help.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MR. BAZ: Because we have a, the question is because of this being a contract, can we knowingly enter
a, enter into a contract with the insufficient funds for the payment of those contracts?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, you can answer that?
MS. HEELY: I would have to look into that. Like the Chair said, you can always come back for a
budget amendment. And there's a difference between an appropriation and an expenditure
encumbrance, so I'm not sure of the specifics or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HEELY: And the terms of the contract may provide guidance in terms of payment. So, it's really
hard to answer that question right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Winer, okay, go ahead.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: It's always been my understanding and with any contract FTA, I did check
on this previously and one of the reasons we came back, I guess the previous director had come
back was because you really can't enter into a contract when you don't have sufficient revenues
to be able to fund the contract. There is, of course, the question of what the bids would be when
they come out, I have no way of knowing that, but I guess what concerns me is that we know
approximately what the cost of the program is going to be. Therefore, if we go out to a contract,
it's always been my understanding and it was verified not by Ms. Heely, but someone else in
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Finance, that you really should not go out to an RFP if you don't have the funding in order to pay
for that contract.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Baz, fast question for you. All of those back
payments from the Federal government, where does that money go?
MR. BAZ: Well, Mr. Chair, those two payments from Ms. Johnson's presentation during the budget
amendment that was recently heard, we're actually going to cover the cost of the, the public
transit contract with the contractor. So they were for current and prior fiscal year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So nothing comes back to the General Fund?
MR. BAZ: No, it gets, those costs would of otherwise been incurred by the Highway Fund. So
basically that, that fund, those Federal funds go to offset costs that would've been taken out of
the Highway Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I was just reminded by Staff so...you know, how did we get into the
contract if we didn't get, get the money in the first place?
MS. HEELY: Just quickly, I'm just looking for the State law that talks about when there's
non-appropriation of fund there's, and we have this in our County contracts. It's under the multiterm provision if there's a non-appropriation of funds, it allows the County to terminate the
contract so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. The Chair is gonna revisit this here. Okay, moving on. That's
it for the Department. Thank you, Jo Anne, for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have one more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My initials are there.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 18-9, the second piece, which was the Public Transit Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. All I want is to come back and do some provisos, so the numbers
are okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Department of Transportation, I just wanted to commend you folks
on having five people in your Department, you know, doing what you do and stepping up to the
plate with the issues in South Maui and everything, and I just want to commend you on that.
And I wish you were here a little bit ago for that 111...$10,000 that was taken from you. So I
just want to say thank you for what you're doing.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: And I appreciate that, and if we have to come back for budget amendments,
if opportunities do arise, we certainly will do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Chair's gonna call a ten-minute recess. We'll reconvene at 3:15, and we'll
continue with the Department of Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again Jo Anne...yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He had a question for the, for the Transportation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, just, just under your, your terms, Chairman, a quick one.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, we, we have some County bus stops that stop on State highways,
but for me, they're in such hazardous locations, is, if you can just if, what is the ability of the
County to consider relocating certain bus stops to a more safer embarkation, disembarkation
area? And I'm talking about Wilikona Street in Wailuku. Okay, `cause that's, you know, where,
where part of my family lives-MS. JOHNSON-WINER: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and the bus, it's a "T" intersection, so when the bus stops, it blocks the
, T ,.
MS. JOHNSON-WINER: I know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you cannot, you know, so cars trying to cut, leave Wilikona, have no,
have to stop because the bus blocks the whole intersection. Then you got the kids who want to
go to across the street for their morning snack and yet the bus is blocking the crosswalk that
crosses the State highway. You know, I'm just, I'm just hoping the Department can look at some
potential maybe safer sites and let us know what we need to do if there's agreements with the
State regarding joint sharing of easements or right-of-ways to, to make it happen, you know, I'm
happy to consider that. But I, I hope we can minimize that situation because when the bus stops
then you also hindering the two-way traffic that piles up in the morning and afternoon on
Honoapiilani Highway at that Waikapu-Waiko Road and every, and people who drive that area,
especially with Waiko now being a major, what you call that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know, it's gonna be a collector, it's a collector now right, and it's
getting crazy since we took off stop signs at one portion of Waiko so we got a lot of more
speeding going on. You know, I would just ask the Department to, if they could please evaluate
it and see if there's some opportunities for a safer component to use the bus system. I would
appreciate it.
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MS. JOHNSON-WINER: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama, and our Department is addressing some
of those issues. The most challenging thing we have on our bus stops or transfer sites is that with
having limited amount of funding to actually proceed with some of the sites that we could
potentially use but have no money to improve, those are the kinds of challenges. So if you
decide at anytime to revisit the money that was taken out of the one site, we certainly could use it
to help plan and reevaluate, because most of those sites, we're paying private consultants
because we don't always have the capability to do it in-house. We do have some design, you
know, engineering staff to do that. But the biggest thing is that in order for ADA requirements,
they have to be evaluated and it's very expensive to do that. So we're kind of dead in the water
right now on that. So if you have it in your hearts to kind of look at those kind of improvements,
we'll work with both the State DOT as well as individuals on the Council if there are concerns in
those areas. But, but that is not the only one, I'm, I'm fairly aware of that one, but there's a
couple of other sites, and we are also working with Mr. Cajigal at the State to see if we might be
able to partner or utilize some monies at the State level to, to help us move some of these
forward. 'Cause right now, that's, it's not just the buses, it's the stops as well and, you know,
and every little bit helps 'cause we're always behind the curve. But thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for Jo Anne? Seeing none finally, thank you.
Okay, we're gonna go into recess and then we'll reconvene at 3:20. Meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

3:13 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have people from the Water Department. If you ladies would like
to come forward. Oh, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, yeah, thank you. The staff from Water Department is here. Director Goode,
excuse me, not Director Goode, Director Taylor and Deputy Director Meyer are in Honolulu for
the water meeting, but we do have Holly and Helene here in case there's questions, but looking
at the list of revisits, they may not be needed. We'll see.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know, they look so nervous.
ALL: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have Helene as well as Holly from the Water Department.
We'll start off with Page 20.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Nineteen.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Twenty? Nineteen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nineteen, oh that's Premium Pay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Bottom of nineteen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Premium.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Premium Pay, remember we skipping Premium Pay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 9...20.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, in regards to the expansion positions and the 4x4 vehicle, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't remember saying that I had challenges with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was all part of the premium.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh part of the premium. That's right. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh yeah, that's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would...Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just, I would, you know, ask the Department, you know, when it
comes to vehicles and again, the Chair has made it a standard procedure to eliminate all
non-specialty vehicles. Okay. But I'm familiar with the Water Department and some of the
vehicles they have are older than Moses, and, you know, kind of like falling apart right. So my
question is number one, have you checked with other departments because we were able to find
the old Council van and send it off to, who did we send it off to?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: MIS.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: MIS, so MIS is happy, but what about you guys, have you
checked with other departments?
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MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I will answer that on behalf-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: --of the department as well as it would be the similar request to from all the departments,
and I apologize for having the same answer as before, but, you know, the Department of
Management is very intently right now going through the list of, of vehicles that are within the
County's assets and their current usage, mileage, condition, and all of that. And it's, if vehicles
do become available that we could transfer, I can tell you there's another vehicle that I saw that's
on currently on the, on the vehicle list that is completely, you know, dead and will never be
resurrected. So I don't know how many like that are available on the list, but there, we will
make sure that, you know, for whatever vehicles aren't approved, that we look for those that
need it the most and try to get them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair, I guess if it really became a push come to shove,
they can come in as a budget amendment if they need to, so I mean that's always the other
possibility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What about the expansion position Civil Service [sic] Engineer
No. VI, oh, this is, yeah VI? Holly?
MS. PERDIDO: Good afternoon, Chair, Council. The expansion VI position is the CIP Coordinator for
the Engineering Division, the person who is in that position left the position to go to the Mayor's
Office, and so right now, we, it's been vacant. Last year, they did not want to hire for it because
they wanted to see if anyone could work into that job.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this is not really an expansion position, this is a vacant
position?
MS. PERDIDO: Well, last year the Council removed that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, eliminated it-MS. PERDIDO: --position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --okay, okay, okay. Okay, Chair, now I understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --everybody satisfied with that? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I wanna have a little bit more discussion about the position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's my understanding, I was kind of concerned as you know about the
CIPs that we're eliminating. So I managed to contact Mr. Taylor on Oahu, and he begged us and
said please I can live with the, with what you want to do to delay my CIP funding but please,
please, please, I need my Civil Engineer because that will allow me to get projects to come in
and be ready for CIP funding. So he said if he had a wish list, this would be at the top of it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Baz, so, you know, we, we've, we hear the
Water Department's repeated support for this Civil Engineer VI for CIP, but we just heard earlier
in the day from Mr. Goode that if we give him the CIP thing, that this team would be able to do
all this CIP work. So can you give us some comment I mean, I think we're getting different
signals now. What...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: --and Member, as was discussed during the Council, the Department's presentation to the
Council during their, the Public Works budget deliberations, the engineering team that will be
developed in Public Works, the projects, the two areas of projects that would not be reviewed or
come under the purview of this are Water and Wastewater. The, the Administration feels that
Water and Wastewater Departments or Water Department and Wastewater Division of
Environmental Management have a very good CIP process right now and are comfortable with
their operations in that type of infrastructure development. What the engineering group would
be doing is the vertical construction, so, you know, buildings and those type of things, not
necessarily infrastructure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Red flag.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I just trying to add, add the numbers yeah, Chairman, 'cause, you know,
you know, Water wants one, Mr. Goode's Department I guess had asked for what, five or six
and, you know, we, we, the so-called tentative compromises three, adding...but existing in MD's
office, you still have a, currently, a "CIP Coordinator Project Manager" and a "Countywide CIP
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Coordinator". So there comes a point where I, you know, if we want to go this route, fine, but
don't ask me for architect and engineering money down the road since we're gonna get all this
in-house.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the other thing that concerns me is that if, if this specialized team is
gonna only do the verticals, then how many vertical projects do we have? That's one concern
that I have. The number of people that we thinking about for LTA in this area might not have
enough work, my comments. Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just wanted to reiterate what Member Baisa said, I had a conversation
with Mr. Taylor as well and that was his, his one and only must have kind of thing. So I would
support leaving that in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and again the Chair is gonna, you know, point out to the
Mayor's Attrition Program as, as a means of filling positions at this time. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Is there or maybe this is for the Budget Chair [sic],
are there funds available for the Department to hire an engineer, an outside engineer while the
process of attrition works its way through and allows the, the transfer?
MR. BAZ: I guess maybe the Department would have to answer that, you know, they do have, it's a
program-based budget and maybe they could rearrange, but I don't know the usefulness of that.
If, you know, the Department has very specialized engineers that do very specific work as it
relates to our water system and they, the reason why that their employees and it's very important
that they do that is so that the consistency of the water system and the integrity is maintained. I
mean, I, I suppose if there was an overload of work that's one option, that they could go and hire
out. But it would be based more on per project versus overall scope of the system and things like
that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. 'Cause I, I support the, I support doing this but not by adding
positions and I, I, I like the Mayor's direction with the attrition and I support that
wholeheartedly, but at the same time, you know, I know one of our main focuses going forward
is to fix our water problem and, you know, I have confidence in Mr. Taylor's knowing how to
move his Department forward in a way that we, you know, we start taking care of the, the
backlog. So I'm, I'm, I'd like to leave this open for now if we can and if the Department can get
back to us with some other way that we can get this moving rather than just a deletion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let me ask you this question. What would be your, your, the
Department's move to fill a Civil Engineer VI?
MS. PERDIDO: I can't, I'm not sure what the division head would, you know, what he would want to
do if he would want to try to fill in-house for a Civil Engineer VI and then, you know, hire
another position other than that. There's only two more, you know, months, two more months
left in this budget, so then July 1 st is when the new budget comes out so then we could recruit
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and, you know, for, for to hire this. Like it's not really an expansion position like Mr. Victorino
said, it's more, you know, bringing back the manager for our CIP section. So I'm, I'm not sure
he could, I would imagine he'd, that's why he wanted to wait to see if any of the current
engineers could move up to be a supervisor for the CIP program and then he would have to
recruit for the, you know, the, that position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, I'll, I'll just leave it in. I'll leave it open and can we revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well maybe...my understanding is that there are current vacancies in
the Department, and I'm wondering, you know, I think this is a really important position for us to
have to move our projects forward. So what I would like to ask of the Department is whether or
not you can find, if the vacant position doesn't have enough monies attached to it, whether you
can find other monies to cover the, the salary. Maybe that's a question for the Budget Director.
MR. BAZ: Right now the Department according to the program budget is based on, is limited to EP
counts and the Administration can work with the Department to maybe transfer that EP, or that
position that's currently vacant to this type of a position leaving that other, but we would have to
demolish a position to be able to have that happen. And I don't think that from what it sounds
like, Director's communication with some of the Members that that's something that the
Department wants to support necessarily at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, if the Chair is willing to leave it open for now, that's...I would
appreciate that if you could check. Thanks. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama? Mr. White, are you done?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe for the Department. Is Mr. Chang temporarily assigned since he's
been the one coming to the Council last year and this year to, as the Chief Engineer?
MS. PERDIDO: Yeah, Mr. Chang is currently the head of the Engineering Division and he is also
overseeing the CIP. So that's why he's very bogged down and, you know, we need to get
someone to oversee the CIP portion. But he is carrying, wearing two hats right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the Deputy doing right now? Deputy, what is the Deputy
Director doing to assist the engineering workload? Is the Deputy assisting Engineering Section
or CIP Section or the Director...
MS. PERDIDO: I, they both have their assigned, you know, what their assignments, the Deputy is not a
civil engineer, our Director is now right, Mr. Taylor. I think they're assisting him as much as
they can.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Taylor is, is an engineer, right?
MS. PERDIDO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman, you know, we got their vacancy report, Chairman, and,
and so I, I, I think, you know, the Committee makes a good point in not needing to add a new EP
count and that they can work through either redescription or transferring.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Within the Department-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --they can transfer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, when you look at the vacancy report, there's quite a number of
vacancies. There are some no request to fill, so I, I would suggest that the Department take a
look at their vacancy report and, and probably like Mr. White had indicated, redescribe a
position. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you say you were going to revisit this or are we going to act on it
now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well we're gonna revisit, but-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --just to let the Department know that we got this vacancy report-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that shows a lot of vacancies, a lot of no request for fill, and, you know, like
other departments in last year's budget, there were a lot of redescribed for certain, different
positions. So they can go that route. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. I would appreciate the revisit. You know that
water is a big deal for everybody and we have a new Water Director and I just want to make sure
that we give him the tools to do the job, and that a few years from now, we don't say well he was
totally ineffective because we took away the tools. So I'd like the opportunity to have him come.
Unfortunately, he was scheduled to go to that water conference in Honolulu and couldn't get out
of it. It'd be nice if he could come and plead his case. Thank you.

- 102 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Understood. Okay. The next four are...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry. Would, could we maybe do a quick attrition policy decision right here with one
of these vacant positions? Would you support us deleting one of these vacant positions and
adding in a civil engineer position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, we going check with Personnel if we can do that.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Check with Personnel Services if we can redescribe a position.
MR. BAZ: We would, excuse me, Mr. Chair, we would redescribe, the Administration would
redescribe the position. I think for, more importantly, is for this process with this budget, is the
dollar amount for the, at the difference between, you know, the Engineer Aide II position, which
is vacant, you know, of course, we'd have to discuss this with Director Taylor as well, but it has
a salary of about $28,000 so it's, you know, quite a big difference in salary, but that's an EP
count that we might be able to, to switch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So you thinking about redescribing then?
MR. BAZ: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And we also can do that budget amendment through the Attrition
Program, get some of those dollars moved over if you need.
MR. BAZ: Okay, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
MR. BAZ: It might be voluminous but.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I think one of the things the Director had expressed to us in his
earlier comments before the Committee, was the advantages he wanted regarding as
management, his reduction of what we had last year five, six program areas and he's combined it
down so that now we only have two for the whole Water Department. And part of that was the
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so-called flexibility of program budgeting. So for me, I want to see his management and
administrative abilities and make it work since that's what they asked for, consolidation and
flexibility. Well, show us you can do it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And they had a sizable Carryover/Savings also so. Members, any
more questions regarding this? Okay. The next item is the grants for East Maui Watershed
Protection. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My, my interest, as I explained before, was to
increase the, the grants to the watershed protection lines because I, I feel that we should be
returning them to some of the earlier levels of funding, but at the same time I realize that there's
probably not a whole lot of support for that even though I think it's an important thing for us to
be spending money on. So I'll withdraw on, well unless I hear any, any comments from any
other Members, I'll just withdraw those.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. And I, I would hope that
Mr. White not withdraw consideration especially in these areas because it is a priority area for
our County. And unfortunately, when push comes to shove, these are the areas that are, that are
always forgotten about. And I think the priority especially for watershed areas, take a look at the
amount of monies involved in the watershed areas. I mean, if, if that's, if that ever goes down,
we're all screwed. So I think it's important for us to actually take a look at the funding source
and try to find the funds to increase these specific areas. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, we all realize that this is just one of a couple of
funding sources for these areas. So remember now that there are other areas for which these
exact same entities get funding from, right, so okay, that's first and foremost. This is not all they
get, you know. I'm not against, if we can find it raising, putting more money in there because
this is very important. Whether it's Molokai, East Maui, West Maui, Leeward Haleakala, any of
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them, that affects all of us in Maui County, you know, except maybe Lanai, but, you know,
everybody else is affected by that. I saw Miconia, you went a little bit more so, Chair, if we can
put some money in there, I, I'd be willing to go another 20,000 or whatever, you know, I, I, I, we
can work on numbers but I would support looking at that. And I've said that from the beginning
that the State has cut them to the bare bones, in fact some of them not going get anything this
time around according to MISC and the watershed programs, they're not getting much. So
anyhow, Chair, let's see what the other guys say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Staff, can you check for me the other areas where we do
have money set aside for watershed protection. I know we've got invasive species.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: OED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: OED?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, OED.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, OED. They have...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Anybody else got comments? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, I would support Mr. White's, I'd like to see how much he wants
to add, but absolutely, watershed is very, very important and I deal with it on a board I sit on, any
help that they can get is very well appreciated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm checking the numbers on the OED side as far as watershed
protection. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. I firmly believe that this is an issue
that of course, we all care about. It's just a matter of do we have any more money that we can
give. But it is well worth whatever we do spend because it affects all of us eventually, and we're
back to water again. If you don't take our watershed, no water.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. While Staff is checking, anybody else get any comments regarding
this? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you other Members for speaking up. You
know, I think to put this in perspective, one of the request that we have is from the Fire
Department to replace a fire tanker truck that's only six years old and has 20,000 miles on it.
And while I understand their interest in having a new piece of equipment. If you put it in
perspective, that one truck that will be sitting, waiting to be used, we're spending about twice the
amount of money that all of my increases would amount or would, would bring this, these four
items to. So again, you know, for me, it's a very easy decision replacing a relatively new truck
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or protecting our watersheds, and it's, it's something I think we should look seriously at. Thank
you, Chair. And I would appreciate it if we can leave this open until we see where the money is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'll leave it open. Just for Member's information, the watershed
protection on, we decide is half a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Just a reminder, the Water Department is an Enterprise Fund and the rates and fees as
proposed set the revenue for the Water Department, and any changes to the expenditures
including Premium Pay, reductions, vehicles, and all that would make the fund not balanced. So
we want to make sure that we, if you take out revenue, excuse me, if you take out expenditures,
either you gotta go take out revenue or put the expenditures in a different area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Okay, Members, revisit?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right there, you can do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 21, 21, okay, reduction in Premium Pay. Okay, that's all for da kine,
Water Department at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't worry about it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I not disagreeing with that, it's too easy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Helene. Thank you, Holly. Okay, the next area we're gonna be
reviewing is the Page 21, Capital Improvement Projects, and, Sandy, did you call the Parks
Department?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, Mr. Matsui is on his way up. But...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, we'll take a short, short recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No more nothing for eat.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I guess we gotta wait.
MR. BAZ: Unless there's something maybe I could help the Committee with resources, information
until he gets here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, let's see. Yeah, get ten more pages, Members. Let's see.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would prefer you take a short recess-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and call us back to order.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, why don't we take an eight-minute recess and come back at 4:10.
Meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

4:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:24 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have Chief Yabuta, from the Police Department here today, and
we'll be discussing the Kihei Police Station. But before we go into Q&A with the Department,
Chair would like to reiterate his comments in regards to the reason why not funding the
$40 million project for 2012. At the time when the fire, the police station was being considered,
the USDA fund, funds, their interest rates was much better than the bond rate at the time. But
since then, the bonding, borrowing new money through bonding, the rate has really improved. In
fact, back, several years back, before we went for, to the Bond Counsel, we were above the
rating as far as, you know, comparing with the USDA, so today we're 2.5...in the borrowing for
when we, you know, go for new bonding so. And the 2011 Budget, Members, we still do have
$20 million that were projected for the Kihei, Makena, in the Kihei, Makena Community Plan
area 2 million... $20 million for the Kihei Police Station. Although it wasn't recognized as
issuance of bond, but was included in the total 55 million I think at that time, it's part of the
bond, but this particular project was decided that this, the, in order to get the $20 million for
Fiscal 2011, they needed Council approval. So they have the opportunity to utilize the
$20 million once we receive request from the Administration to move forward on the $20 million
so that we can move forward on the Kihei Police Station. I know, Members, you know,
reviewing your proposal, many of you had proposed that we reduce the size of the construction
of the police station from 40 to 20, and every, some of us indicated that we should, you know,
move forward on Phase I. We call it Phase I, which is the, the ground as well as the major
portion of the police station. So, Chief, just to let you know how this whole thing transpired and
basically we were looking at do we want to add more debt to the County? And that was the most
stickling part of the decision, well, my decision, as the Committee Chairman based on some of
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the recommendations that the Members had done, you know, reviewing their recommendations
for the Kihei Police Station. At this time, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, you know, we do recognize your concern with the, the amount
of financing and also the discussion of the bond issuance that we just had back in the, at the
ending part of Calendar Year 2010. I had directed our Director of Finance to discuss with the
Bond Counsel, Mr. Curt M. de Crinis with whom we've, you know, worked with to get current
market. If we went out to bond today, what would our current market interest rate would be, and
I did just forward this to your Staff as well. But basically he said the current market interest rates
as of today for a AA, yields highlighted, they're highlighted in yellow here, the average rate
would depend on the final bond structure. So a bond issuance with a 25-year term with level
payments would have a true interest cost of 4.03 percent. And then he, it, it, so it depends if you
look at the national average for a 25-year for a AAA pre-reinsured AA, it's actually about 4.75
percent, and so just looking at this information, it's a little different than like I had mentioned
before the previous bond we went and got.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the USDA loan is at 4.5?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, it's at 4 percent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four percent. So what I'm hearing now if, if we went to borrow new money,
that the interest rate would be 4.09 through bond?
MR. BAZ: 4.03.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the USDA?
MR. BAZ: 4.0.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Over a period?
MR. BAZ: We have a choice of periods with the USDA loan, I think we were suggesting a 40-year
loan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the bond loan would be 4.03, 25 years?
MR. BAZ: Twenty-five years, correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What would be the difference between the 25 and the 40... should we
go out like say okay 40 million or $20 million, 25 years; $20 million, 40 years?
MR. BAZ: With a bond, for, they go up to 30 years and as you continue the length of time the bond, the
interest rates go up 30-year, he has marked out here at about 4.81 percent.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members...Member Hokama followed by Member Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The rate you gave on the bond, Mr. Baz, is on a AAA...on a AAA bond?
MR. BAZ: The municipal yield curves table that he has is a range, a AAA coupon range, for General
Obligation Bonds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is AAA? What, what would be the interest at AAA?
MR. BAZ: AAA would be the, for a 25-year loan, according to this table, 4.75 percent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 4.075?
MR. BAZ: No, 4.75.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If we went out to...
MR. BAZ: He does explain that Hawaii does average lower yields than the national average, that's why
he's, I think he's shooting at 4.03.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Well for us, you know, the, the, our County's track record is that,
you know, we, we can sell our bonds because, you know, we've always been a, rated very well,
and normally before we go to general sales most of the bonds is already on, on reserved for
purchase. I think the big difference though, Chairman, is the sinking fund requirement from the
Feds. That for the first ten years, we're gonna have to put up an additional 10 percent payment
and place it in a holding account until we reach one year's payment and that that has to sit till the
end of the project. So, you know, and so let's say the first ten years we're gonna put up that
extra 10 percent to come up with that one year's payment and then for the next 30 years, we're
not gonna be able to do nothing with that cash. That bothers me 'cause you and I both know, we
all know there's other needs in the County that we could use that cash for and I would hate to tie
it up in this manner And again, part of the timing, and that's why when we go and float bonds,
Chairman, it's, everything's about timing and that's why we use the short term funds to pay in
advance of the actual bond float date we go after because we're looking at the rates. When the
rates start dropping and we feel that we're gonna get the right percent interest on the borrowing,
then we go forward and do the borrowing. We don't do borrowing by any haphazard point of
time in a calendar or fiscal year. We pick our spots to get the maximum benefit for the County
to reduce interest payments. So I will say if we went out today, that'll be a good picture, but that
would be foolish on this County's part to go out and borrow at that kind of number...minimal
differentials. I think if we wait and bide our time well, we may have again that opportunity to
get enough of a spread on the points that it makes great sense to go general obligation again, and
that would be my preference, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Baz, the, the 2011, the 20 million that we, that is
encumbered now, or not encumbered, but available now in this year's budget, is that right, we
have until the 31 st of...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: --the $20 million was appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget; however, authorization
through the bond ordinance has not been approved, so we would, Administration would need to
submit a, an amendment to that bond authorization to allow the Administration to go forward
with that $20 million in bond. Get, once, or if that does get approved, we would have until
December 31 of 2011 to encumber those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What interest rate is that at?
MR. BAZ: It is proposed to be a bond project but until we go out to bond sale, we don't know the
interest, and looking at the historical information that Mr. de Crinis gave us, it, it in the last nine
months or so, it went from a low of 3.92, excuse me, 3.61 in August of last year up into about the
beginning of this calendar year, 4.74, and it's about averaged out since then.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I, I have a question for your office or for possibly the Chief or
even Department of Finance, is have you done the numbers and amortization and all that, to find
out which way it would be cheaper? I mean, Mr. Hokama has some issues with 10 percent for
one year payment and I understand that, but have you done the math to see which way would be
the most efficient and cheaper for the County?
MR. BAZ: I, I can tell you on that I, I think the former Finance Director did do some analysis that I, I
reviewed of that, but just, you know, in basic amortization sense, a USDA loan of 40 years, you
are going to be paying more interest at 4 percent over the 40 years, but you're gonna have a
smaller monthly payment. So the, the tax, you know, your bill each year will be less.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, my concern is I mean if we're doing GO bonds, it's a 25-year
bond, why aren't we doing the USDA loan at 25 years as well?
MR. BAZ: We...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean we're, we're planning on...
MR. YABUTA: You know, sir, in all fairness to Director Baz, this strategy was developed in the
previous Administration and it was determined that the USDA loan was to, the, the funding to be
sought. And at that time Captain Hudson, who's now Assistant Chief Hudson, was designated as
to when to draft the initial loan. So in all fairness to Mr. Baz, it was the previous Administration
that directed us in this particular way. And like I had testified earlier, we went from a one bond
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loan request to a two bond loan request, then eventually the USDA loan. So that was the
instructions that we were given and that was the direction that we, we, we sought.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, that's, that's my concern. I, I, in my
proposal kept the $40 million because these, these guys have been instructed, they've been
pushed around and moved around in all different kinds of ways, they did what they were told to
do, and now we're thinking of changing it again. So I strongly support doing as, you know, they
were instructed to do and, and doing the 40 million with the USDA loan, although I would like to
see a possibility of making it a 25-year as opposed to a 40.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz, what, what would be the interest rate on the 20...on the shorter loan?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding, the USDA loan is a set interest rate no matter the length
of time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions for the Department? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I recall correctly, when the County went and did their bond in
December, we got a 2.49 percent interest-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that I think we can verify through Finance for a General Obligation Bond
loan, and that was, what, four or five months ago?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five months.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Five months ago? So, you know, I know that the, the, Budget Director is
reading off some kind of document where he's getting his figures from, but in actuality, what the
County actually got and again part of the historical credit record of borrowing and how we've
paid our debt and obligations, give us a preferential consideration by the rating agencies and
those who underwrite us, that we can get good rates like 2.49. And so for me, Chairman, you
know, it's gonna take a lot to convince me that we're gonna be saving money going 4 percent,
stashing away cash for 30 years that we cannot touch, 'cause the bottom line is we will still get
the station built. How much do we want to pay extra? That's the question, how much extra are
we willing to pay? I not willing to pay any extra, I got, we got other projects we gotta take care,
Chairman, you know. I mean we had to already make a big adjustment in the Department's
request regarding upgrading our radio system. And we knew that didn't qualify for a bond
consideration. Okay so we had to juggle, do our adjustments so we can find ways of lapsed bond
in cash to pay for this 14, $16 million request. You know, I mean we're not dealing with small
money anymore, Chairman, you know, we-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand that.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --think so big that, you know, I mean every, every dollar counts so, you
know, for me, points and interest, length of loans, sinking funds, you know, for me, that's major
issues coming from my wallet that I gotta help pay for. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to reiterate the, the previous bond sale that we did at the
end of last year, included ARRA brought down interest rates and so and actually we had,
Department of Finance had requested extra funding this year specifically to pay professional
services to be able to do the reporting requirements for those, those funds. And those are gonna
be ongoing reporting requirements based on that lower interest rate that we did get for that, so
even though, you know, we did get a lower rate because the ARRA money, it's free money is not
free, so we'll always going have to do the extra reporting for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Chief, and I don't, I don't know if you can answer this or
if Assistant Chief Hudson may have to answer this, but the $20 million, and everybody's calling
it a phase I, but I, in looking at the plans, I didn't see what $20 million can do. Is there a, a
legitimate phase I that, that you can get the groundwork and the, the main building done for, for
$20 million?
MR. YABUTA: That's an excellent question and that's one of the reasons why I wanted to be here with
my, my staff. We feel it would be impossible to try to reduce the size of the project by cutting
the facility in sections and trying to accommodate later on down the road. And I can have my
people explain that to you, but during the public meetings, that I believe you attended, you saw
the facility. It's something that can't be, we don't feel that can be dissected nor can there be
parts excluded to reduce the costs. But we can explain that to you if the Council is willing to
listen to this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That would be my concern, Mr. Chair, is that if we say only 20 million
for phase I, is there really that, can they get anything for, for that 20 million?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They should have stopped at that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then, or the architect or whomever. The other question is along
those same lines, and I know they're not the same type of building and they're thicker walls and
whatever else security things you have to do, but there was a headline in the paper and this is the
thing I'm having to tell everybody that a 135-room hotel can be built for $16 million, how can
we justify $40 million? And I'm trying to tell people that it's different, but that big of a
difference I don't know. I, can you help me out with that?
MR. YABUTA: Sure. And, we're, we're here to explain that with the consultant and Assistant Chief
Hudson. We'll break down what we feel is, is it a reasonable facility at a reasonable cost.
Assistant Chief Hudson and Mike Wright, our consultants.
MR. HUDSON: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. I'm Assistant Chief Larry Hudson with the Maui Police
Department, and I'll try and address some of those questions. And this is Mr. Mike Wright, he's
the construction management. Those questions that I can't handle, Mr. Wright can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, the two, I had the two major questions was what can be done for
$20 million, and how do you justify the difference in price between a $16 million, 135-room
hotel and a smaller, much smaller, but more secure facility for $40 million?
MR. HUDSON: Okay. First off, one of your questions was is what do we get for the $37 million that
we're asking for? You get a Police Station for the Kihei District that's designed to just handle
the patrol function and limited other functions for the next 35 years. That's the direct answer.
One of the questions is, is could you scale it back? No, actually the bottom line is no, we cannot.
We've scaled it back already. There was another wing that was supposed to be on it. The
original price tag was $64 million. And so we cut it down a full third just to, to just hook up with
the basic functions while still anticipating needs of the future. So that's the first answer. The
second answer is you're asking how come a police station cost so much more than a regular
building? A police station is a specialty building, it's not built to house guests. The guest that it
houses don't necessarily want to be there. It's built with poured concrete, rebar, slope to grade
cement. It's designed to withstand hurricanes and other natural disasters including attacks. It's,
it's a building that's supposed to be sturdy. One of the price tags is because it's in Kihei. Kihei,
you have blue rock, which is why it's expensive, too. There's a lot of factors that go into making
a police station that don't make them easy to build, easy to construct. There are more expensive
by nature than most other buildings. The, the electronics that goes into it, the concrete, the, all
the other list so it, there's an awful lot more to a police station than just rooms.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
MR. HUDSON: There's also, there's something else you're, I understand you guys are asking a lot of
questions and, and I can actually totally understand why, this is a huge project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MR. HUDSON: But-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, go ahead-MR. HUDSON: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --go ahead.
MR. HUDSON: But if you're gonna separate it, there's other expenses that you have to be aware of.
You know, like if, if we, if we separated, there's certain gray areas that one contract would end
and another contract would begin. And the idea of having two contractors work on the same
project, just the, the very thought of that 'causes concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. That's the reason I wanted to keep the whole
project intact. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and one of the biggest questions that we face today, you know,
like Mr., Mr. Hokama had said from the Department is that, you know, we're looking at
40 million, we're looking at what, 15 million for the radio. In the next five years, we're looking
at an average of $5 million for the next five years, after the radios, after the new radio system
goes out and...you know, my concern is how much debt can this County...actually pay going
forward? And we got other projects that, big number projects that's, you know, being considered
at this time, and that's the dilemma that we are at now. And I want to ask a question to, in, in
regards to the police station itself, what is being planned, do you have your building permit ready
to go?
MR. WRIGHT: We don't have the building permit ready to go. We have most of the agencies ready to
sign off, pending bringing the plans back, inserting them into the sets. The, the last two
Departments we're working on is Water and Department of Health, I'm sorry, DOT. Water
Department is ready to sign. We had one final issue, the issue was resolved with comments that
we received back. We expect it to be resolved Monday or Tuesday next week. The final issue is
with DOT. Even though the TIAR did not require a right turn, dedicated right turn lane into the
project site, when you're traveling north on the highway, DOT suggested that we put it in as a
convenience to the operation of the facility. So even though it wasn't required by the TIAR,
we've agreed to do it so Mitsunaga is preparing their plans right now. I've got two or three calls
into DOT, it's a little bit of additional cost, it, it, there's room to do it in the State right-of-way,
but we expect to have the final documents into DOT for that lane in about two weeks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what you're saying, in the next month, you're ready to go?
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MR. WRIGHT: Well, yeah. We, I think the last time I was here, we actually said we'd be ready at the
end of April so we did miss that date, but we are down to the short strokes with the Water
Department. If you were to check on KIVA right now, you'd see that many of the agencies
aren't ready or have not signed, but if you were to check with any of the planned reviewers there,
you'd see that all of the issues, you know, have been resolved satisfactorily by them and they are
ready to sign. Some agencies, as you know, won't sign until other agencies sign off, and they
don't sign until all the new sheets are inserted into the set. So once we get Water's approval,
now, of course, Engineering's ready to sign, but they won't sign the document until DOT signs
off, so they'll sign as soon as DOT signs off. So we're very, very close.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe for Mr. Baz, in regards to the USDA loan?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If, if we consider a USDA loan, and, you know, during the process of paying
that loan, GO Bond becomes more attractive, can we back off from the USDA loan?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, I did ask that question to USDA and they confirmed there is no prepayment
penalty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is there any feasibility, and I guess this would be with, probably
Mr. Baz, of doing the $20 million GO Bond for this fiscal year, and $20 million USDA loan? Is
that, is that a mix and match that we can, might be able to live with for 25 years? I, I don't see
why we should spread out the, if, if we're gonna pay 25 years for a GO Bond, move the USDA
loan for 25 years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I, I don't see any logistical problem with that. They're two funding sources
basically, and maybe, and I don't foresee any contracting issues once those funding sources are
identified. There, there will be, we'd probably want to separate out the contracts as much as
possible to those because some, the requirements of either the bond or the USDA may have, you
know, different requirements as far how we expend the funds and those kind of things. So, you
know, we would want to be aware of those situations and there may be a little bit extra
paperwork dealing with those two funding sources, but I don't foresee it to be an obstacle. I
think the only obstacle would be that the Council has to subsequently approve the authorization
for the $20 million in bond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr., go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That might alleviate some of the Chair's issues about spending
$40 million or putting $40 million on, on this budget. We'd get the 20 million in there and
20 million in this budget. So that, that's another possibility, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, Mr. Hokama asked this question about, you know,
sink or comment with one sinking fund. What would be the amount, you know, that would be
held back or, you know, we won't receive until the payment to USDA is completed? What it
would be, would you know?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'd have to go back and review the details of the USDA's requirements regarding
that. I do know that the USDA, we, the County of Maui and Corporation Counsel did submit
amendment requests to the conditions, the general conditions of USDA's loans and those
amendments were approved by USDA recently.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I can add some, ask also some what I would call, related
questions from, because of this project?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Mr. Wright, if you're uncomfortable to answer, you know, I can
understand and that would be fine if you choose to decline. But, you know, we've been asking
other portions of this budget request to consider things like a CIP coordinating a group of County
people to expedite or do big projects like this project. So can I, can I, can we ask you what is
your job actually for the Police Department on this CIP project please?
MR. WRIGHT: Basically my, I work for the County, the County is my client so to speak on this
project. I'm your eyes and ears to ensure that this project gets, gets built on time within your
budget and that when we go out, you know, in the preconstruction phase like right now, what
we're doing is reviewing the plans and specs that the architects and other consultants have
produced. We're meeting with them, we're making sure that their documents are fully
coordinated so that when we go out to bid, we don't, and you know, we don't, we don't draft, we
don't award a contract and get into the construction phase and get hammered with a lot of change
orders. So we take it very seriously that these documents are coordinated well and what, that's
what we've been working on for the last several months in that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is in addition to what each of our separate County departments do to
review and be able to sign off on a building permit application?
MR. WRIGHT: Absolutely. Completely separate.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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MR. WRIGHT: The permit set, as you know, is different than the bid set. The permit set is basically an
incomplete set of documents so that construction documents set, is much further along in, in
terms of coordination between the different disciplines, and usually where a project gets into
trouble is when the coordination hasn't been done in the design phase. So basically what we, we
really think the preconstruction phase is one of the most important phases of a project. Once the
documents are sufficiently completed and coordinated to go out the bid, we will oversee the bid
process and make sure that, you know, that all the bidders are getting, you know, apples to
apples information, all the questions being answered, et cetera. Once the bids come in, we would
interview the contractors, make sure that their bids are complete, make sure, you know, that
they've got everything covered. Of course, what's on the plans and specs, but we would also
assist with drafting their agreement, their inclusions, exclusions, tucking everything in, dotting
the i's, crossing the t's, make sure that we've got a pretty tight agreement when we actually
break ground. And we're doing this on, on, on behalf of the County. We do a lot of work for,
you know, private developers, and our goal typically is, is to save time and money.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When you say we, Mr. Wright, so we, we-MR. WRIGHT: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --don't get-MR. WRIGHT: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know, some misunderstanding, it's more than just yourself?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From your firm?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That works, that assist the County in this?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Does your firm enter after the design engineering component that
the, Mitsunaga, which is the consultant that's hired-MR. WRIGHT: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you step in after they complete their work or you work with them in, in
designing the facility also?
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MR. WRIGHT: Well, we, we work with them right now for, while they're completing the design, but
we are not designers. We're also not general contractors so we don't self-perform any
construction work. But we're, we oversee the project on behalf of the County or the owner,
yourselves, but we are working with Mitsunaga on a daily basis. I was in a meeting last week in
Honolulu basically with the security consultant, the mechanical consultant, the architect, the civil
engineer, and basically coordinating the documents making sure that what the Police Department
wants is correctly put onto, onto the plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. So, Mr. Wright, you or your firm would also be responsible for the
monthly or, or whatever would be the regular interval progress payment reviews and
authorization as well as change orders and the scope and amount that change orders is worth
versus maybe value engineering components. You, your, your firm-MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or yourself is responsible for that component-MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --of construction?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. WRIGHT: Now, you know, in terms of potential changes that, that come up during construction
and there will be changes, but the way I look at our responsibility right now is to reduce, you
know, any gray areas in the documents, and my background is actually working for general
contractors. I have a degree in construction management, but my background is doing resort
development.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. WRIGHT: So I'm used to looking at big projects from a contractor side to make sure the plans are
tight.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Wright, the 37 million that we've been told this project is gonna-MR. WRIGHT: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --take, plus or minus, your contract, consulting contract or the work you do
on behalf the County and particularly the Police Department, is within that $37 million figure or
is that outside of the $37 million figure?
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MR. WRIGHT: It's outside the $37 million figure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, so would you mind me asking how much we're paying you for doing
your job for us?
MR. WRIGHT: It's 1.3 million.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I got to add that to the 37, so, Chief, where you got that 1.3 before we
gave you this, all this 37 for the project for, for this component? Where does that money come
from?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: The Kihei Police Station is in your proposed budget Page 27-4, it has prior year
encumbrances. There were, looks like the General Obligation Bond funds that were utilized
before they expired for this contract Fiscal-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How do you use-MR. BAZ: --Year '09.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --borrowed money to pay for this, this type of work though?
MR. BAZ: It was authorized in Fiscal Year '09's Budget from County Council and based on the ability
that the County has to use bond financing for construction-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For construction.
MR. BAZ: --design, planning. It's part of the construction project so it's-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this was in a separate request, just the 1.3?
MR. BAZ: I can't confirm that. It was in Fiscal Year '09. I can go back and look that research up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's news to me, Chair, that we can used borrowed money to do, to do
this much non-construction work prior to construction, I guess is the defense. Thank you very
much, Mr. Wright, I really appreciate you giving us some direct answers to this project. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you folks for being here. And this
project, you know, a lot of our, our government facilities and departments, we pay out a lot for
salaries and wages, but also in utility bills, electric especially. So I want to know within this
designing of this building, how are we utilizing any type of renewables to offset the cost and if
not, why not? I'd think it'd be the perfect timing right now to put it into the initial design rather
than retrofit later, what have you. So if there's any details about that you can share, please.
MR. HUDSON: The, the building was designed with certain...reusable sources, R-1 water being
number one. We have designs. . .(inaudible). . .with the lockers and stuff where you use reused
plastic, which is a reusable source. We also have photovoltaic stuff on the roof, the capability of
hooking all of that up. We, we looked at LEED certification even though we come a few points
right around the bubble, LEEDs cost a little bit more, but we did consider reusable resources.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wonderful. But as more so, so just some PV then not it's-MR. HUDSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for the-MR. HUDSON: It, in, in-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --water or...
MR. HUDSON: --in order to, to, to really get the, you have photovoltaic on the roof, but to get the full
effect of, of all of those resources, your, your building is usually a little bit more open. This
building is not a very, while it's aesthetically pleasing, it's not really that open. There's a lot of
concrete and stuff like that, so we took a look at it, we did as best as we could.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What, the reason why I bring it up and wanted to hear straight from
you, Mr. Hudson, 'cause I had spoken to Mr. Mitsunaga, is it, and I, and I asked about that, this
portion of, you know, utilizing renewable, what have you, because I know in our budget it says
increased electrical cost. So I said what are we doing in this project? He said it's too expensive
to go there, it's gonna be $9 million, we're not even thinking about any of that. So that really
concerned me, 'cause that was his comment to me.
MR. HUDSON: I'm not familiar with Mr. Mitsunaga. I think you spoke with Aaron Fujii-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Whoever the designer-MR. HUDSON: Yeah, Aaron Fujii.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You were there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: McDonald.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, McDonald then, sorry I got the wrong names
MR. HUDSON: Yeah, no problem. . . .(inaudible). . . Thirty percent savings in potable water, recycled
carwash water, pervious concrete pavement, low volatile organic compounds, FSC certified
wood products, energy efficient high pressure sodium. We have different type of chillers to
reduce power to reduce energy. The photovoltaics is on the roof, cooling towers with variable
frequency, conserve power or high...efficiency, magnetic bearing chillers, variable flow chilled
water pumps that conserve power...at lower loads, variable water volume damper to control the
temperature in each room. Hot water system that uses waste heat from air conditioning system
and so...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. HUDSON: So, I'm, I'm sorry, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright, thank you. I guess, we'll have more discussion on this.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a point of clarification, I heard it said twice that the photovoltaics
are on the roof. Can you explain?
MR. HUDSON: There's a, there's a hookup to actually hook up solar panels that are supposed to be on
the roof. I explained, explained to Mr. Fujii after the last time we spoke that that is a
requirement that the drawings on the specifications.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Does it mean you're actually going to use them?
MR. HUDSON: I certainly hope so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pardon me?
MR. HUDSON: I certainly hope so, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's not part of the plan to do it?
MR. HUDSON: It's not part of the plan to actually put the, the cells on top in the initial bid
specifications. It's just to have the hookup so that they can go up there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So there will be another if we want to do it, there'll be another
substantial incremental cost?
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MR. HUDSON: There will be another incremental cost, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: The other option as our...energy commissioner or I forget it's the coordinator, in, in, Office
of Economic Development, has discussed the Power Purchase Agreement possibility, so if we do
have the stub outs there and somebody wants to do that, that would just reduce our electricity
bill.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That would be great because that's a better way of doing this than
having to put our money out. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the Department? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just, just to reiterate, Chief, Assistant Chief Hudson, if we did as is
suggested by the Chair, the $20 million you really don't get anything, is that correct?
MR. HUDSON: That is correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You don't get the building, you get the land graded. Okay. So, Mr. Baz, then
you say that the USDA, USDA loan, will be 4 percent for the rest of the, until we pay it up, paid
up the loan?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, that's my understanding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And if we go to GO Bond today, it would be 4.08?
MR. BAZ: Four point zero three is what the estimated rate would be as of 4/15/2011.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And should bond become more, GO Bond becomes more attractive, there's no
penalty to sever the agreement with the USDA?
MR. BAZ: Again, Mr. Chair, from my understanding there is no prepayment penalty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, if you can get for the Committee what would be the Sinking Fund
number as well as kind of reviewing if there is no penalty should we go to USDA?
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I do, I did, I was able to obtain a copy of the proposed conditions and so
I'm reviewing that right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions for the Police Department? If not, thank
you for being here. Okay. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Do you want to review the radio project?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anybody wanted to review the radio project?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't think we, it was only the Police Station.
MR. BAZ: Okay, thank you.
MR. HUDSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, Members, we'll come back to this one here once we get
information from the Budget Director.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, what page was that? You're talking about Page 29?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Nobody from Parks?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, we do have Mr. Robert Halvorson from the Parks Department-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. BAZ: --who is here and Mr. Matsui is currently on his way up, but I, I think Mr. Halvorson can try
to answer some of the questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Starting on Page...and Members, we'll go up to 6 o'clock and
then we'll take our dinner break. Okay. Unless you guys wanna go like 5:30?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six? Five thirty, okay. Okay, on Page 21 dash, 21 of 44, in actuality, Page
22, where all the questions are located. Countywide Park Facilities, reduced by $200,000.
Mr. White, you had questions on that? No?
- 123 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, my concern there, Chair, is that our, our park facilities are, you
know, we, we, I'm assuming that this is for, you know, for repairs and replacements, maybe I
may have the wrong...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. This is the Countywide Park Facilities project and along with all of the
Countywide projects, these are things that come up that need, you know, construction work, and
projects considered to be included in the Countywide Parks Facility project are renovations to
restrooms, community centers, and other park facilities, replacement of fencing and gates for
War Memorial Little League fields and other Countywide parks.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Yeah, so what I'm concerned about is in this, in that range
of items. As Chair Mateo mentioned to us last week and I think a couple of weeks before that,
there was a concern about the condition of Kepaniwai Park and I think all of us are familiar with
the condition of, of restroom facilities throughout the County being, you know, being damaged
or vandalized, and I would just be very hesitant to take money out of this and maybe,
Mr. Halvorson, you can give us a little more information whether you're, whether you would be
concerned with that reduction or could live with it?
MR. HALVORSON: It will make it more difficult to live with it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. So my concern, Chair, is that I, we got a lot of work to do in the
Parks area and I'd hate to tie their hands much more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Got a question for the Park?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I've got a question for the Parks Department. In County, Countywide park
facilities, what is your spending trend up till now?
MR. HALVORSON: You mean, how historically what do we spend?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. How about this year?
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MR. HALVORSON: I, I think this year we only had like 50,000 in Countywide. Well a portion of that
was earmarked for Pa' ani Mai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How much was your budget in 2011...
MR. BAZ: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, 2011 for Countywide park facilities was 116,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So the reduction from the Mayor's proposal of $200,000 would
hamper the Department? You're gonna get 400 as compared to 100 at this time.
MR. BAZ: I think, Mr. Chair, from my recollection of discussions with the Department Director, the, an
issue is that the amount of park facilities that do need repairs, as Mr. White has, has expressed
and many of those that use parks can see, has been, the availability of funds to renovate them has
been reduced over the last couple of years because of the downturn in the economy, and we
sought that the increased availability of funds that the Parks Department would have to repair
those, those facilities that needed it. And again we wanted to leave it in the Countywide section
because, you know, as they're going through and looking at the parks, and as the community
members are complaining about different bathrooms here or there or fences or whatever the issue
is, the, we wanted to give the Parks Department the ability to decide which priority projects there
were and actually go out there and see what projects are, are doable this fiscal year and get them
done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit this.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I just-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: --yeah, I mean, as this is not a specific project, any reduction, I mean, while would
...(inaudible)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we understand it's Countywide.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it would hurt, it would, it would be, I mean, we're just gonna do with whatever you
give the Parks Department to do, you know, we'll work with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And there's always the budget amendment process. I hate to go
through budget amendment, but that's one way of getting additional funding should the
Department require additional funding. Okay. Countywide Tennis Facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: If we could just go back to the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --Parks one again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I never catch the rest of you guys.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 'Cause I seen MW that's why.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just, just to continue on, on our discussion
regarding Kepaniwai, in terms of Countywide Park Facilities, I, I just received a communication
from the Parks Department because I inquired about the maintenance and repairs of Kepaniwai
specifically. And I was kind of surprised to realize that just to improve the, the, the pathway
because of ADA requirements, the waterway that is in part irrigated with waters from Iao Valley,
to do the roofing repairs, to do repairs to the existing ethnic areas, landscaping, et cetera, you
know, just those items alone is in the area of $700,000 to $800,000. And yet this is a jewel of
this County, it is so highly visited, it is, you know, most of the visitors stop at Iao Valley, and
there is a major I, I, I guess, problem with vandalism that does occur and that is so difficult to
control in this area. But I, I think the, the need for maintenance in the parks is so vital to us
especially parks like Kepaniwai because even with the ethnic groups providing support in, in
upkeep, the reality gets down to dollars and cents and they unfortunately do not provide that, it's
our responsibility. So just the urgency of Kepaniwai and bringing that back up to a standard
again. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Baz or Mr. Halvorson, you have in, in your, in the CIP
book, you had $1.6 million encumbered in the prior year's up, how much of that has been spent?
I mean how much do you have to spend still and if we give, give you all this $600,000, can you
spend it all this year or is it gonna be sitting there and many years waiting for things to be done?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, as I described previously in this chart, this is the first
year we included prior year numbers in here and the prior year encumbrances may not be the
right term. It's mostly prior year expenditures, they...2011 appropriation is the only one that
would be still alive at this point, and those were basically expenditures in, in previous fiscal
years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess the question is how much do you still have yet to spend from
previous years and can you spend this six, if we say 600,000 as opposed to the 400,000, can you
spend it all? I mean we want to go against what the Chair recommends if you can't spend it all.
MR. BAZ: I would have to do some research with the Finance Department to, to figure that out. The,
the Countywide each year, the Countywide projects get a new Index Code so they, we'd have to
do some research and take a little bit of time to get that together.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, I have some numbers over here, Park Maintenance
Program, again, this is three months remaining still balance of 1.1 mil, and, and current
encumbrance is about $300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay so what does that mean they've got left to spend?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, according to this report, but now you gotta remember get three more
months right, they had reserved through current encumbrance about $277,000. I don't know
what they, I don't know what it's gonna be used for.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So they have 277,000-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that they still have to spend?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then on the balance available, is about 1.1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the question I have, what's that 1 1 million, is they have that to
spend?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the balance available from now, from this report to the end of the year,
fiscal year.
MR. BAZ: Mr....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three months. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's, that's a lot, I mean that's, I want to see how that works.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, can I clarify that, is that operations that you're-CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is the-MR. BAZ: --looking at?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Park Maintenance Program.
MR. BAZ: So those, that's operational funds, the "B" Account for the Parks Department?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. For the. . .(inaudible). . .
MR. BAZ: It's not, so it's not CIP?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MR. BAZ: No. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not CIP.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Halvorson just expressed to me that the Countywide Parks Facilities, he said other than
the earmarked monies for Pa'ani Mai Park, all the rest are spent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, must be.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah. As far as the CIP is concerned, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, CIP, okay, not the General Fund then?
MR. BAZ: No, yeah not, not the operational "B" Account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, any more questions on that? Okay, we go to, I'm sorry,
Member Cochran? Almost forget you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess the decrease in funding here, would that hinder the walking
path that's scheduled to be done in West Maui? Are you, are you familiar with that, the
Wahikuli Walking Path there?
MR. HALVORSON: No, it should not.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Carroll? Okay, any more questions on this one here? Seeing none,
we're gonna revisit. Countywide Tennis Facility. This is an addition by the Chair of $600,000
to, to address safety issues in KCC as well as Kihei. Members, questions for the Department?
Mr. White, if you had?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'll yield to the other Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just the, the thought of $600,000, you know, I haven't seen the Kihei
courts recently, but is this just resurfacing or is this taking out the concrete and, and leveling it
out?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well for KCC, it, it's, it's cracks on the court having different levels so that if
they play tennis on, on the courts, and, and you trip, then the liability to the County is, you know,
is there. According to testifiers for the Kihei one, of course, it's a general repair work around the
courts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, it just seems like a lot, but, you know, of course, preventing,
you know, liability stuff is always important. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, not really, Chair, I'm sure that it must be needed or you wouldn't
put it in. I know how tight you've been.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, then the concern that I have is that if, if we do have a liability
situation, then should we not be closing that facility until we get it corrected?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Didn't we...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that's the recommendation to the Parks Department. We made a
recommendation through our office in regards to evaluating the tennis court, and its safety issue
was a big concern that they should close it down. Of course, there's four courts and not all the
courts are bad so you may have some people that utilize the good courts and some of them will
play on the other side so that's a concern.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So are we, are we having to deal with uneven surfaces on one court,
two, or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Two out of...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's cracks...three, four inches cracks.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Well, I'm fine approving this, of course I'm, I'm hoping that we
don't have to spend all this money fixing it, but.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm hoping too. It costs us $1 million...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: 'Cause I know how tight you are, just like Ms. Baisa said.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cost $1 million just to redo Wailuku Tennis Courts, over 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's really concerning. ... (chuckle)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So do I have consensus on this one?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, real quick, question for Mr. Halvorson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If, if since it seems like we're gonna get consensus on this and we get
this money in there and we redo the courts, how can we, and, and it's probably for your bosses,
but how can we ensure that they're maintained this time as opposed to, this doesn't sound like it
was just normal wear and tear, it sounds like something happened.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, these courts have been, for Kahului, it's been in existence for over 20
years so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it's just time?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably. Shifting sands. ... (chuckle)...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Shifting... . . . (laughter). . . I, I'm concerned about...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably the base is no good, you know?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Okay, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on to, I guess that's all for Parks. Hang on, Members, let me
look into CIPs. Page 26.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought, was there a revisit to the Road Improvement Section?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, I'm, I'm trying to capture the-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Parks right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Since you're here, he's here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-five, boss.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, on 25?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: CP 31-11, ADA, 1 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Page 25.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may ask the Department-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --one quick question-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --on, on this one under CP 31-11. Could you tell us where we are with the,
the compliance requirements either by court order or, or compliance requirement from the
Federal government regarding our Park Facilities, are we on time, on schedule with fulfilling our
requirements? Would you be able to give us some comment this evening?
MR. HALVORSON: You're speaking of the ADA Transition Plan?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. You know, right, your Department has requested $1 million under
Countywide Parks to address ADA improvements and requirements, so I, I'm just asking, you
know, where do we stand with, you know, court orders or Federal or State requirements to be in
full compliance with this program?
MR. HALVORSON: We're...the, the courts are happy with our programs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we're at 100 percent compliance?
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MR. HALVORSON: No, no, we're still in the Transition Plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So how much more do you, do you, do we need to still do before we at full
compliance?
MR. HALVORSON: Approximately 25 percent of the overall Transition Plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is left to be done or has been completed?
MR. HALVORSON: No, is left to be done.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Left to be done?
MR. HALVORSON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And in your estimation, how much value do you think that, that is
equal to, $5 million worth of requirements? Do you have an estimate of how much financial
resources it will take to fulfill this 25 percent remaining?
MR. HALVORSON: I would say under 5 million, that's just a broad...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, I understand yeah, you know, it's, it's an estimate, I understand
that. Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Halvorson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding the ADA? Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. We've had money for ADA before many, many,
many, many times and it was always, we will address what the court makes us do, and I've never
seen the County voluntarily bring up to ADA standards anything that they didn't absolutely have
to do. You can look at our restrooms, you can go Haiku Community Center, Paia, they did,
finally did Lahaina Community Center, which was really good, but there's others around that it
would be really good if the County could go and with some of this money, not just do what the
court requires but try to do what is right and try to look at these other restrooms that really need
attention. I've tried to get that done before, I was on the Council five years before we could
upgrade two restrooms in this building, because they didn't do it because they didn't have to, and
I'm very pleased that the Council at that time agreed and set aside the money that we now have
two handicapped restrooms over here that we didn't have to put in but we put in because it was
the right thing to do. And I would hope that the Parks Department, for the first time, and it
would be the first time, could actually go over there and look at the places that need to be done.
We're not talking about a lot of money here, we're talking about changing the stall configuration
in most cases and putting in bars on restrooms that have been sitting there for 30 years, and some
of the excuses were well they have a longer stall, which is not an ADA restroom. As a matter of
fact some of them are more dangerous than just the regular stalls, so I'd really hope that my
speaking today might motivate the Department to actually go outside there and look what needs
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to be done because we're talking about most of these places is not a big money item. It's just
reconfiguring, perhaps changing the toilet, the toilet now, a handicapped toilet costs about $120,
that's right, I priced it. The handle bar, the bars don't cost that much, the partitions don't cost
that much. The labor costs more than anything else aside from the material. So I would hope
that we could turn over a new leaf and start looking at what really needs to be done with the
facilities we have and there's a lot of 'em. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair, thank you. To the Department, the 1 million being recognized,
is it already earmarked with, with projects, part of that 25 percent left to be done?
MR. HALVORSON: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that, those at 25 percent consumes this whole, this whole thing,
the whole million dollars?
MR. HALVORSON: No, no, the 25 percent left to be done was the $5 million estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It's a $5 million project, 25 yet to be done will consume $5 million?
MR. HALVORSON: Over the next several years, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And on that list to do, is Kepaniwai part of it?
MR. HALVORSON: I do not believe it is, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This is obviously not something we're gonna, we're
gonna solve today, but to be honest, this is one of the surprising things when I, when I started
going through the budget was seeing that we have, the County still has ADA challenges. Private
companies have been, you know, we've had our feet held to the fire and are exposed all the time.
I think, I think my property's been ADA compliant for ten or twelve years, maybe longer than
that. This is something we need to do, Chair, we may not be able to solve it right now, but this
is, this is not an issue that we can just simply whittle away at, we, we need to take some stronger
action. And I, you know, I'm not faulting the Department because you guys can only deal with
what we give you, but, Chair, as a body, I think we need to change our focus, you know. And I,
when I see that we're spending, we're being asked to spend large sums of money on other
buildings, it strikes me that we need to take another look at our priorities because there's lots of
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people out there especially as we're expanding Paratransit, we're gonna have a lot more people
using our parks that are gonna want to get around with ease and in a safe manner So I would
support increasing this at this time, and looking at further increases next year. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 26. Mr. Hokama, on the...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. This is about Waiehu Golf Course.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Matsui, can you tell us, you know, this fuel tank replacement, is this the
tank by the brand new maintenance building off of No. 2 green...I mean No. 2 tee-off or, or, or
is this the one by the parking, parking lot next to the concessions?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, it's the one at the parking lot next to the concessions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, and I appreciate it because, you know, I mean I know the
condition of the tank and that always made me worry that wasn't go blow up on us one day. So
how much of this monies that you are asking for is actually for the tank replacement versus Cart
Paths please, Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: I think it was 60,000 for the tank and the rest was for Cart Paths.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does our equipment also use fuel from that, that tank that's gonna be
replaced, Mr. Matsui, for our. . .(inaudible). . . and what, you know, whatever else we have up
there?
MR. MATSUI: The fuel tanks we use is at the, at our baseyard building, that's by the No. 2 hole.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We have two sites of fuel tanks then, at the golf course?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maintenance Building and by the parking lot?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chairman. I know, it's, I'm clear now with what
they're going to be doing. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions on these tanks? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, that's all for Parks I think. Staff, that's all for
Parks, yeah?
MR. KANESHINA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. So thank you, Pat, for being here, and thank you. We'll recess
this meeting till 7 o'clock. Wait. Yeah, okay, we'll reconvene at 7 o'clock this evening.
Meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

5:38 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:07 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, with us we do have...replacements-COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --from the Administration. Here with us we have the First Deputy
Corporation Counsel, Mr. Ed Kushi; our Finance Director, Mr. Agsalog; and from the Public
Works area is Mr. David Goode. So okay, the next area we're gonna go into is on Page 22,
which is the Highway Fund, Hana Community Plan Area. Oh, we don't have any.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Chair, I need to back up please-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to...I thought we had a revisit on the Road Improvement Section,
but-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry, Road Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --no, but it wasn't me, but I did have a note. Am I not...if nobody's
speaking up I guess not, but I, I think I have an addition to add here. Oh, am I right? Okay.
You, whoever? Somebody.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You wanted to do all of something. . . (inaudible). . . -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 22.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --that's why we passed it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation over here is to remove the $3 8 million from the
General Fund and put it into, put $2.8 million instead, and to the Highway Fund. And we're
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gonna be utilizing Highway Funds to do County road resurfacing rather than utilizing the
General Fund although it's a, it's gonna be about $1 million short. And, Members, what I told
you guys yesterday Appendix A, I don't know if the Department had reviewed Appendix A in
regards to Capital Improvement Projects Report as of December 31, 2010, the number of
encumbrances that we have as well as the amount of lapse. There's quite a bit of projects that
were identified, quite a bit of monies that hasn't been spent, so I'm just challenging the
Department to do whatever they can from that priority list to get some of our roads fixed through
monies that hasn't been spent and some of 'em go back as far as 2008. So again, Members,
Appendix A, if you look at Page...okay, starting on Page 15, Lahaina Districts, for instance,
there's $312,000 that's encumbered. I don't know what the work is for. Amount lapse for one
area is Lower Honoapiilani, $1.8 million. So we're looking at big monies, Committee. So at this
time, Chair will recognize Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. I didn't have any input here, though are we, for
the Countywide Resurfacing, I have an entirely new item I'd like to insert I believe I'm told here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So after we're done with roads.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. As far as the deletion of this item from the General Fund, moving it to
the Highway Fund, anybody has a problem with that? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I had asked the question earlier and after I had asked the question,
Staff shared with me the appendix that you were referring to. And what it essentially is, is it
shows the roads that are scheduled to be done, and my concern is that if we take out a million
dollars, is that gonna have any effect on Appendix A or is that pretty much gonna be able to
happen?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the Department, I'm challenging the Department to look at Appendix A,
look at all the unspent money, there's millions in here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's millions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, so in your opinion, it's not a matter of money, it's a matter of being
able to get it done?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly. And if, if the projects are, and you got some small amount telling me
that the projects are completed, but not really closed out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we ask the Director if he--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --his opinion of that, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Goode?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Ms. Baisa, and Members, I am without benefit of looking at
this report right now. I can say that there are, are projects out there that have encumbrances on
them that go back a number of years or as soon as this year that we've encumbered, haven't quite
spent yet. There'll always be some funds, I can't say that our Department's percentage that's
outstanding is greater or less than another departments. It is certainly one of the focuses of our
Administration to get some old projects off the books. And I know we took off 6 million last
month I think it was, but that's definitely our, our focus. The projects that are generally on the
books aren't resurfacing projects. They'd be other types of projects and for whatever reason
they're not closed out, I don't know. I can't give you specifics right now, but I don't think we're
gonna find through closing out those projects, we're getting more resurfacing done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well my concern is about resurfacing, and the projects that are on that
Appendix A, are on Appendix A, and they were very important to my district. I know you know
what they are, I know you've heard them before. You've heard about the roads in Kula Kai,
you've heard about Hapapa Road, you've heard about Holopuni, you've heard all that already,
and I am hoping that we can get those done because, you know, they come up year after year,
after year, and I would just like to see them happen. And I'm afraid that if we take money away,
that we would have a problem, but Chair is telling us that there's, you know, enough money that
we shouldn't have a problem. It's a matter of getting it done and you're back and you're new so
imua, do the best you can because otherwise we'll be here talking about his next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and, Members, just to let you know, by deleting the $3 8 million from
the General Fund, the Chair had placed that money into the Police radio system.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair had indicated that we had, did some redistribution of about
$9 million, and this is part of the $9 million to take care the radio system. Okay. So do I have
consensus in regards to the Chair's deletion of $3.8 million?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We go to Page 23.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, I'm sorry, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I interject? I wanted, I was told by Scott that this is the part
where I can enter a section called other projects, and I wanted to add in bus stops and shelters
here. I believe this is the spot; am I correct, Scott?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do we have an item for bus stops and shelters at this time?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Currently...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP?
MR. KANESHINA: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, okay.
MR. KANESHINA: The, the area Member Cochran is referencing is back in I think Fiscal '10, we had
an item under General Fund Countywide Other Projects, and that's where your Committee
budgeted bus shelters.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you. So, I wanted to add in 300,000 for design and
construction. I had spoken to Director Winer and that would start the process and the, it's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For where?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's very much needed, countywide, it's just I mean there's no
specific areas, but they have more detail.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll tell you what, keep it in your head, we going come back.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What I want to do is make a fast pass-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --see how much money we got left-COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because that's when the action starts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, on Page 23, Pukalani Street Improvements, $300,000. Mr. White and
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. I'm okay with the Pukalani Street Improvements for
$300,000, but like Ms. Cochran, I'd like to put my sidewalk study in there, but I heard what you
said and I'll just keep it on the side until we kind of have a better picture of where we are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Put it on a piece of paper.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus? Oh, Mr. White, you got a question?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Highway Fund Countywide Facilities ADA? This is on
Highways yeah, $500,000. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't have anything on my list that I requested that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I may be...

- 140 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: DC is so popular so...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know. . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So consensus then?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me ask the Director. Is this mostly for sidewalk renovations and
modification to take care ADA requirements? And I'm looking at the 500,000, Chairman, is
that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the right number we're looking-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --at? Mr. Goode, that's under CIP 31-8.
MR. GOODE: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is it mostly for modifications and adjustments to the County sidewalks?
MR. GOODE: Actually this, this particular code for Countywide Facilities is more for physical
structures such as this building, Kalana Pakui next door, Prosecutors. We have a number of
improvements that happen every single year and like for instance right now, we're doing the fire
sprinkling on the first through eighth floors, and that's what this fund would be for. The
additional language that was put in this was draft for...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, wait, wait, Mr. Goode. This is Highway Fund now -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Highway Fund we're looking at.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Oh, hang on. I'm sorry. You have a similar named one for the other.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 23, Page 23, Mr. Director, on the Highway Fund Countywide
Government Facilities. You got two, Government Facilities and Road Improvements, but I'm
just trying to figure out, you know, if what you also using this since on Lanai we need some help
on our sidewalks for ADA requirements.
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MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, if you'd give me a few minutes-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: --go to another item, I'd like come back to that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Thanks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before we leave this area, I, I, I know, Americans with Disability Act, we can
get I guess CDBG funding. I, I know the Department hasn't, from the time I've been here, been
looking at the possibility of getting CDBG funding to do some work on the highway that in
regards to complying with the Americans with Disability Act.
MR. GOODE: We, you know, we, in the past received CDBG funding for our curb ramps, which was
done a number of years ago, but we, we were able to utilize CDBG funds for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So the opportunity is there still yet?
MR. GOODE: I, I believe so, you have to talk to the current coordinator as to if they have any rule
changes-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --in that regard.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, before we go to the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --next page, at, at what point is it appropriate for us to mention
provisos? I'd like to proviso some money from Countywide Road Resurfacing for Olinda Road
repairs and also proviso some of the Countywide safety improvements, about $20,000 for
Baldwin Avenue guardrails and, and speed flashers. At, at what point is that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we can do it later on if you want.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's fine then. I just-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I just wanna get the numbers, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I'm assuming this is where they go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just want to get the-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, that's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Page 24, Wailuku Baseyard Garage Repair. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. My concern, Director, with this project is, you
know, the last Administration, I know started a space and gosh, help me, Mr. Mateo. Anyway, it
was an assessment to, to, to determine how much additional or new space the County would need
to help develop to take care of its, you know, growing requirements. Campus Study, thank you,
Mr. Chair. And one of the ideas was to relocate the Wailuku Baseyard out of the, the town,
consider using it for more administrative or, or Department operational needs than an actual, a
County baseyard and move that operation and potential Hazmat materials to a more appropriate
zoned area whether it be industrial, M-1, or whatever it be. And so what I wanted to ask you is
have we, has this Administration made a decision now we are not going to relocate the baseyard
and that we're gonna make the improvements and that's where we're gonna stay in the middle of
Wailuku Town and continue our operations the way we are? 'Cause if not, then I would rather
put the money into a new site to eventually relocate the operation.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, Mr. Hokama, I haven't been party to any decision making. In fact it hasn't even
to my knowledge been discussed. The Mayor may have some ideas about that. I know at one
point Puunene was discussed as a possible location, it's pretty central to that district or Waiko
Road, but at this point, we've proposed nothing to start a process to acquire land or, or to move.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you think it's worthwhile for the, you and your fellow department heads,
I mean, you know, I can see us making sense to kind of come up with a complex to take care all
our vehicles, including Fire's, Police, your requirements, Water Department's requirements, and,
and take care in one area where we can ensure full compliance with Hazmat materials whether it
be the oil and diesel requirements, hydraulic requirements. Also put in the appropriate facilities
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for, for the ability to lift complete engines out of the, the big equipment or, your, your dozers to
do overhaul requirements or whatever it be, your graders, your tractors. So, you know, for me I,
I'm trying to see if there's better use of our money and, and plan better than just kind of, you
know, well I think we need a new building so let's go do this. And then maybe five years from
now, they're gonna say gosh too bad, we should've built this whole thing at one new site.
MR. GOODE: Well, I think that's, I think long term I, I would tend to agree, I mean we repair our
dozers at the landfill, for instance, so you gotta haul them over and they're usually pretty messy
`cause the environment that they're in. Our site, our current site it's pretty cramped, Parks is
there, Solid Waste is there. Something more in that district, at least for Highways, maintains
from Kahakuloa to Makena. So it'd be better to be more in the middle, but currently we have a,
we had a roof that leaks big time over our garage.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So if we give you enough money to do a repair and buy us time to
see whether or not we really want to reinvest in the current site or put money into a new site for a
new better facility, what would it take to buy you that time for that roof?
MR. GOODE: We needed to replace the roof last year, it's actually in my opinion, a safety issue. We
operate welding in that area, we have a lot of electrical tools, pneumatic tools and
. . .(inaudible). . .

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not the blue building, yeah, Mr. Couch? I mean, Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: This is the garage, garage shed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, the garage. Okay. So it's...
MR. GOODE: Just the garage not anything else.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's the legal build, building then?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, yeah. So, yeah, it's something that's, it's immediate, it's upon us and we need to
do it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we cannot get around this 600,000 investment then in, in your
opinion?
MR. GOODE: It's a big roof, I've actually gone up there, I haven't gone on the roof, but looked at it
from below. This actually went out to bid last year and came in way overpriced, but they had
also included replacing a lot of siding, so we've taken the siding replacement out and we're
gonna focus just on the roof and go out to bid and get it done.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Goode, thank you for your, you know, responses. Thank you,
Chairman.
- 144 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Michele is gonna go to the office and, and pull out the, the photos
that was given to us by Public Works last year that showed the garage, you know, the way it
looked at the time and the replacement. We were gonna do some simple stuff, but after looking
over, you know, what needs to be done, it became a much bigger project than just simple repairs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand, Chair. My, my, my thing is, Chairman, we, we, you
asking us to consider bond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You're actually looking at a 25-year-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-five years, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --return. So for me, we making in a sense a long-term commitment to stay
there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh. No, I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so, you know, I just wanted discussion. Are we gonna commit to
staying at Waiale Place or are we gonna eventually move to a place that potentially offers the
County more advantages for overall operational and efficiency so, you know, I just think it's a
good time to talk about it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So consensus on this one here?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see. On the next page...
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, we found...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. GOODE: I'm sorry to interrupt. We found some information related to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: --that previous question and-- 145 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. GOODE: --Mr. Agsalog will respond.
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, with regards to CIP 31-8, we will have to re-verify the source of funding
because that's referring to Lahaina Civic Center on the six-year Capital program. So I think the
source of funding has to be verified with the Budget Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. AGSALOG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that, that whole amount, Mr. Agsalog-MR. AGSALOG: That's what I'm showing here, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --. . .(inaudible). . . for Lahaina Civic?
MR. AGSALOG: That, yes, sir. The 500,000 there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The 500,000?
MR. AGSALOG: Yes, sir. So we will have to re-verify the source of funding. It's just because
Highway Fund for a government facility such as that, we need to look at it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, right.
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Let's see, Page 25.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, sorry, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Back to 24 on the bottom, Sewer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The 2 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is not Environmental-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --area yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (Laughter).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Old days . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 25, CIP 28-8, oh no, I guess that's it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We got, we got consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is, is, Chairman, is watershed control under Mr. Goode or Environmental
Control?
MR. GOODE: Lahaina, Lahaina Watershed?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lahaina Watershed.
MR. GOODE: That's ours, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that's theirs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a quick question, Chair. What, what phase is, is this project gonna be in
with this money?
MR. GOODE: I think it's called 1113, Phase II got divided into two phases.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is the component with the Puamana ditch that-MR. GOODE: Yeah.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --goes through the-MR. GOODE: Yeah, they did the...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the property?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, past Puamana, we did the outlet . . .(clears throat). . . excuse me. And then we
have currently under contract, we're gonna start the work very soon on the crossing over
Hokiokio-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --it's a little road that goes up-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. GOODE: --and then this is the connection from Hokiokio to the outlet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. And this is something that, you know, is potentially on the Federal chopping
block for matching funds, so it's something we really want to push forward with before we lose
that opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I think that's, that's it for Public Works. Staff, is that the last for
Public Works? Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Stick around, nah. ... (chuckle)...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we're gonna do all the departments and then come back with the
stuff we wanted to add like our bikeways?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, so that we can compile the numbers because right now really don't
know what we took out, we took out quite bit, okay, and I hearing all you guys adds, okay, and,
you know, this Chair is gonna really review the adds. And, and again, we gotta make sure that
whatever budget that we present, you know, it's fair for, for everyone especially the taxpayers.
Okay. Mr. Agsalog, can you get Kyle Ginoza here?
MR. AGSALOG: Okay, I'll, I'll, I'm by myself with the Administration so I can go make a call, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
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MR. AGSALOG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything Corp. Counsel, we can use Mr. Kushi for?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll stand in recess till 7:40. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

7:32 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:42 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Members, we do have Mr. Ginoza here. On Page 24, let's see, CIP 26-14, Sewer. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Good evening, Mr. Ginoza, nice to see you
up late.
MR. GINOZA: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I'm very, very excited to say that actually don't need as much
money as we thought we did. My office did have a meeting with Mr. Ginoza and staff yesterday,
and figured out that this 2 million here for development of the R-1 for Central, actually at this
point, only need 500,000. That's what, what they had discussed can physically be done and
accomplished in one fiscal year for the upgrade to R-1.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So we can decrease that at this point. The point is I mean we have a
lot of concerns about lapsed funds and this and that. So we wanted to make sure with the
Department what, you know, realistically can be accomplished now. And this is what came out
of the meeting, and then for West Maui, it drops down to 700,000, but we're not there right now.
So for West, for, sorry for Central, I'm happy to go ahead and decrease it to the 500,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And basically it's for preliminary engineering report and to help
initiate the, the design-MR. GINOZA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and Mr. Ginoza, you can, yeah, add or correct me if I'm wrong.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair.
MR. GINOZA: Yes, as where we're at with the providing R-1 for Central Maui is we, we just discussed
in Ms. Cochran's Committee the Central Maui Recycled Water Verification Study, which
basically was a, a first cut at what it will take to do the R-1 upgrade. And so where we're at right
now is doing the preliminary engineering to make sure of where we could put the UV channels
that we'd have to install to have that R-1 capacity. And so we're, we take, that's where we're at,
at this stage is it would take on the order of say 100,000 to 150,000 for the preliminary
engineering report, and which we should be able to complete in a year roughly and then we can
start the design. And that's why we're looking at as Ms. Cochran mentioned, we met with her
staff and we looked at the $2 million we would not be able to spend, so we're looking at on the
order of 500,000 to do the preliminary engineering and planning and to start on the design.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Is it, this is just to treat the water to R-1 level right? This
isn't to distribute yet?
MR. GINOZA: That's correct. That's, this is in, the scope would be looking at roughly 4.985 million
for the in-plant improvements only. So this is to be able to get the plant from R-2 quality to R-1
quality-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And this is just...
MR. GINOZA: --but this is not looking at the transmission or storage portions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is just a study, right, it's gonna be 5 million to-MR. GINOZA: To construct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to actually do it?
MR. GINOZA: But that's, yeah, it's only for the study for the portion of the in-plant improvements.
It's not looking at the engineering and design of the transmission and storage.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(Inaudible). . .
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MR. GINOZA: So this is, it correlates to the $5 million for in-plant. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, any more questions? So the add by the Chair had been
reduced by 15...$1.5 million, and the new number is 500,000. Do I have consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and, Chair, sorry. I wanted instead of saying development of
R-1 water for Central Maui to say Central Maui Wastewater Reclamation Facility R-1 Upgrade.
Does that sound good, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: After this one, you going get high fives.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ... (Chuckle)...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER Or lend you a hand.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's true. Okay, Page 25, this is the West Maui Source Improvements.
Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, that's Water. Let's see, Sanitation, anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, down below, Chair, oh wait. No, where is it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Page 25, Central Maui Solid Waste Facility, CIP 26-14, oh there's
no, okay. That's alright. Sewer, okay, 26...
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
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MR. GINOZA: We did not have a, a project in the CIP for that, that the second item that I believe
you're looking for. We had it in the Appendix A for the grants, and then we wanted to have a
CIP project of 700...700,000 in case we didn't get the grant. So I, I don't believe there is an
actual CIP line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I thought, is that what's going, yeah, okay, sorry, Chair. Is this
something I need to add in? What I'm trying to get at here is that West Maui Reuse System
Improvements at 700,000. I guess that overarching 2 million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That, that's Water yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. No, but this is in regards to sewer, I mean, treatment facility
wastewater.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I wanted to take that 2 million that you had initially and the 500
goes to Central, 700,000 goes to West Maui, Lahaina Treatment Facility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You put it on a separate line-MR. GINOZA: We need a new line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and just hold it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that would be for West Maui Reuse System Improvement?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's one you want to add, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And again the reason being is this is something that the Department
can utilize here and now and move us towards the end goal of what we hope to, want to
accomplish.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Before, before you add okay, we're gonna come back to adds.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But make sure you make sure that...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, make a note?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If I could ask the Director to give us an explanation of what the, what
the monies for West Maui will be used for? And if, if that's a project that you're requesting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: What, what we had discussed with Ms. Cochran's office is that, well as I discussed with
this body a few days ago, we have a design proposal to do the R-1 expansion in West Maui. This
is the, roughly $697,000 proposal that we sent to Intrawest as their portion of, a part of their
portion of the agreement for us to provide R-1 water to them. The 185,000 gallons per day of
R-1 water. And what we had discussed with Ms. Cochran is that should we get into extended, I
mean, not necessarily negotiations, but, you know, discussions about that, she didn't want to
hold up the project itself. So we hope to not, you...have to utilize this and that this is what we
would get the private funding for. But to not hold up the project they wanted to include CIP
funding for this.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So basically what we, what we would be doing is letting the private
developer off the hook for something that we agreed on-MR. GINOZA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --and the County's picking up the tab or how is that gonna work?
MR. GINOZA: No. The agreement we have is that either they pay or we turn off their water and don't
provide R-1 water anymore. And so, they, they really could take that scenario of they don't want
to pay so we stop providing R-1 water. If that scenario is indeed taken, then we don't have
funding to proceed with the R-1 improvements. So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But what's, what's stopping us from taking that action now instead of
putting County money into a project that's been promised to be funded by this developer?
MR. GINOZA: We just transmitted the, the proposed, the design proposal for their review a couple
weeks ago and they have not indicated to us that they will not follow through with the
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understanding that we've had with them, with the, my predecessor and Intrawest. The concern
that Ms. Cochran's office had was or Ms. Cochran had was, in case they choose the option of not
getting water and not fulfilling their end of the agreement, basically we would stop providing
water to them and we would be no further along on developing R-1 water expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But their only option is to use potable water at a higher cost?
MR. GINOZA: Or go to xeriscape.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Unlikely in Kaanapali, but, Chair, I just have a little bit of a
challenge putting County money where private money should go and it seems like we've got the
hammer. So I, I, I appreciate Ms. Cochran's efforts in this and I think she's on the right track. I
just have a challenge if we've got an agreement in place, that we should, we should force the
issue. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So an agreement needs to be signed prior to, if, if they agree, they would pay
the reimbursement of the 1.5?
MR. GINOZA: Of 697,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, $697,000.
MR. GINOZA: Yes. So we have an agreement on the scope of services that Intrawest would fund. So
for instance, it's for the complete design and partial construction of the transmission and staff,
oh, sorry, of the other stuff. So it, because it was a, Mr. Taylor explained this to this, to this body
a few days ago, but basically our Corp. Counsel advised us that we couldn't enter in that type of
an agreement because it would be a private entity developing on County land.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. GINOZA: So what they advised us was to have this, to have this agreement, well letter agreement
where we provide, we say we would provide 185,000 gallons per day of R-1 water on the
condition that they fund these improvements. And should they choose not to fund the
improvements, that we shut off their water. So that's where it stands and so once we got the
design proposal, which was a few weeks ago, we transmitted it to Intrawest for their review.
And as of last week, when we contacted them, they're still reviewing it. So we have not had
indications that they wouldn't follow through with the agreement. However, if they do, if they
do not follow through with the agreement, then we will turn off their water and the, the design
contract will go unfulfilled because we don't have funding for it.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kind of, kind of sketchy. I, I don't know if we should put a proviso in regards
to ensuring, ensuring that the developer, you know, follow through on his promises.
MR. GINOZA: Yes. I mean...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. I mean, it's not our intention to utilize County money. I mean, we are still
intending to get follow through on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Except for the fact that if they decide not to use your R-1 water, did I
hear you say that last time you were here that if they didn't use the R-1 water, they weren't
allowed to use potable water as well or was that a different project?
MR. GINOZA: That, that was this one, and I think Dave Taylor had mentioned that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH So they're not...if they don't' use the R-1 water they can't...
MR. GINOZA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Their landscaping...
MR. GINOZA: Basically their landscaping will die.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so I have a feeling unless they really xeriscape, they're gonna...
MR. GINOZA: And that, that was why Corp. Counsel had advised us to take that tact was because we
could not enter in a, a more standard agreement because of the improvements occurring on
County facility land.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got a question. When you say shut off water, that's potable water you going
shut off?
MR. GINOZA: No, just the R-1 water.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the R-1 water?
MR. GINOZA: Just for irrigation.
- 155 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we do all these improvement and they say no, what benefit do we get? Just
because we do the R-1?
MR. GINOZA: What do you mean we do all these improvements?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That $1.5 million that is being requested. Or you wouldn't start until the
agreement?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven hundred thousand.
MR. GINOZA: The 700,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. We wouldn't start until we get agreement. So we're at the stage of, the
agreement we had was that once we get the proposals for each stage, we transmit it to them for
their approval and that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. GINOZA: --we would not start it until we got the money from them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. White followed by Ms. Cochran, and then Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I, I guess I just have a little bit of a challenge with us having
a placeholder here for the whole year when we have a commitment, from a, a private company to
cover the cost, so I, you know, the, our budget is tight and the CIP is tight, and sounds like
you've got a, you've got both an agreement and a hammer and you don't need much else. So
anyway, that's, that's my feelings, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, probably what we can do is, this is Bond Fund right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Include it in the Bond Fund, but don't authorize the expenditure. They come
back to us, requesting for the money at a later time. Similar to, what we asking Police
Department to do.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, so basically this is to get this, the 700,000 is going to be in
addition to the Intrawest funding. This is something I feel that does need to progress along.
There is a lawsuit hanging over our head especially for the Lahaina Treatment Facility. I'm
looking to prevent this right now, and I feel that this is the, the most, you know, inexpensive way
to start to get this going. I really have a good feeling that Intrawest is gonna come through on
this because again, they're not gonna want no landscaping around their beautiful property. I feel
it will come through, but in the meantime, I, I do believe that we need to take action here
otherwise there, there could be some negative repercussions that all of us are gonna have to face.
And this is why I'm going to this route and I've cut down the monies quite a bit, and, and, you
know, there, we have a working relationship or with the Department to move forward so-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --hopefully I can get support here. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we, we, we understand-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --yeah, we understand, it's just that we also understand that what is entailed
in, in providing R-1 water to the development, but here, you know, we want to make sure that
we, we just don't expend the dollars not knowing that these guys gonna follow through on the
$700,000. The money will be there, but the authorization still needs to come from the Council to
expend the $1.5 million. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That leaves open a few more questions. First thing is, this, this
improvement isn't only just, I mean, this is to make the R-2 water to R-1, is that not or is it
already R-1 over there?
MR. GINOZA: We have capability up to 2 million gallons per day of R-1 currently.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the 700,000...
MR. GINOZA: This is, the 700,000 is to upgrade that existing channel as well as do the design for two
additional channels. The upgrade to that one channel will be to go from in capacity terms it'll go
from 2 to 2.5, we're adding two more channels so it'll be 2.5, 2.5 so a total of 7 5 million gallons
per day, which would roughly cover the, the entire capacity of the treatment plant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's all for 700,000 or is that the 700...
MR. GINOZA: The design will be.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The design?
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MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So within the design contract, we, we have the retrofit of existing channel as well as
expansion of two more channels.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so it really, in essence, wouldn't be a waste of money 'cause we
could use that R-1 water elsewhere if Intrawest decides to not use it?
MR. GINOZA: Oh, definitely. I mean, as, as we get more users online or interested.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this is something that needs to just go forward anyway. Now the
other question I had for, with the Intrawest agreement. Normally in, in these kind of agreements,
they just pay us money, a certain amount of money. It doesn't matter where the project's being
done, they just owe us this much money. Why is there an issue with, with us giving them water
and all that? Why not them just give us the money and, and we can deal with that?
MR. GINOZA: I, I was not part of the, the negotiations or the discussion, but oh, Mr. Taylor's here, but
another thing is what they agreed upon is the scope of work that they'd cover the design portion
and part of construction, and we didn't have construction contracts, design contracts, et cetera.
So we didn't have a firm number to ask for, but Mr. Taylor might be able to give a, since he was
involved, a little bit more thorough discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you. Mr. Couch, what happened historically is we were trying to work with a
number of developers in West Maui who all wanted reclaimed water. So what we looked at is
which of these--and mostly they were resort, they were, they were all resort developers. And so
we said how much water does everyone need? What do we have to build in total to get everyone
water? So we started with a concept of what if we do it all at once? What is it we need? Then
we divided that up into everybody's fair share, so essentially we were trying to put a plan
together that all the developers would get together and fund the total improvements necessary.
Unfortunately, all of these different private entities didn't have the same timeline. So because
Intrawest was first, we said what's your fair share? What's your fair share, Intrawest? And that
came out to the improvements that Mr. Ginoza has been talking about. Some certain
construction and then some blueprint production that we would use later. So the intent was to try
not to have to tap into the County's bond money, to try to build it upfront, have the County take
the risk, and then wait for these guys. The whole concept was put all the risk on the developers
and, and as they came through, we would build it in that methodology without having to touch
the County's bond ability. So that's why we put the process together that way. Otherwise, and
we did look at the possibility of should we just pay for the whole thing upfront, float some
bonds, pay for the whole thing and then as you mentioned, collect money as they come online
But then there was, we had a real concern that these guys were saying yeah we want it, but
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maybe not this year and maybe not for ten years and we'd be having to be raising sewer rates to
paying that debt service year after year after year if they never came through. So it was really, I
think we felt that if we came to this body and said look we want to front all this money and
hopefully they'll come through, we felt that was very unlikely to get a lot of support. So that's
why we took the approach we did to try to minimize the County's risk and maximize the chance
that this thing would get done with the private developers holding all the risk.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then I guess why do we need the 700 if it wasn't all gonna be other
than to get it started early? Is that, is that, or are we gonna get the 700 back or is that 700 on top
of what-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --all the other developers are supposed to give?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The way I understand it, we'll get 700, but our out, outflow would be 1.5.
MR. GINOZA: No, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No?
MR. GINOZA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, go.
MR. GINOZA: What we're looking at is, because this, this might, this getting paid for the 700,000 from
Intrawest might take some time, and because of the impetus to get R-1 water expansion started,
we would, if it looks like it's gonna take awhile, to try to start off with the County money and get
reimbursed for that from the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then wouldn't this be better to come from cash only because if we're
gonna get a 25-year bond and then get paid back but we still have the bond, I, I don't know if
this is coming, but I want to do the, the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, yeah, we all want to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we want to do it, but I have, I share Mr. White's concern is we
don't want those guys to get off and get off without having to pay, and then we also don't want
to--well it's only $700,000, I can't believe I'm saying that--but to pay if off in 25 years when we
could in a couple of years get it back. Unless we can pay the bond off really, but can we do that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't know, it just, interest that we may not have to pay, we could do
it with cash.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the interesting thing that Mr. Taylor said that the rates that, that may be
increased, I don't know. Mr. Hokama, oh, wait, Ms. Cochran first.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know, overall, the initial fit, you know, reusing all this wasted
water that we're injecting is much bigger price tag than what we're talking here today. And so
combined with our money, Intrawest money, and everything, there's still more needed after that,
but the point is this is gonna start getting it rolling, get the CIP project going 'cause the longer
we wait, the, the more, you know, impacts and, and the more it costs. As the transmission and,
and everything starts growing, more users will come online thereby paying into the project and
it's just for me, it's just win-win all the way, but we gotta start somewhere, Chair, and I'm
hoping this is it. And I'm not the expert on where to get the funding exactly, but I hope we can
work that out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we, we do not disagree.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I think we want to get rid of the injection wells.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and the thing is that in this case here, you know, there's an
agreement that it's being worked out presently and the other thing, you know, by bonding this
project, what, what Mr. Taylor had said, we're gonna be paying debt service. How much I don't
know, and, and somebody gotta pay for that-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and normally it's the people. Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm just trying to understand the, the, the, the option that the County chose,
Chairman. You know the State grants non-exclusive use agreements to private entities for use of
State property. We could have considered that. We ask private property for easement and right
of ways, like our sewer line running through north....north course of Kaanapali Golf Course.
Okay, so I don't understand why we don't look at all the different types of management, land
management options that we could have utilized, but I would agree with Ms. Cochran, I don't
see why we cannot start earlier, we can do it like the waste oil component. We can put, start the
investment and we can pass a law that says every resort or whatever we need to have in
compliance, you have two years to get off whatever system and you are required to join the
County's R-1 water system within a certain timeframe and this is what you will pay. Just like
compliance for all the restaurants in the County, they had to put in their grease traps. We gave
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them time, but they're required to participate, so I can't understand why our departments cannot
figure out the things that have worked before, why don't we do it again. You know, either that
or come talk to Council earlier so they can get the ideas from us and then they can go back and
start implementing some of our options. But there's more ways to do it that we know, Chairman,
that exists out there than what is being talked about with this project. So I don't have a problem
moving forward, putting some of our money for it, putting a deadline of requirement to
participate and join in or because that, that day we shut off potable water for irrigation. We
passed an ordinance, it's County law. What's so hard about that, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not hard, can, can be done. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I believe the Department can shed more light on what
Mr. Hokama was just saying about mandatory usage of this water. I believe, Mr. Ginoza, within
100 feet of the pipeline or 100 yards, you are required to tap in?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: It's codified in, in Chapter 14 of the Maui County Code that if recycled water is
available, Improved Commercial properties are, shall collect, shall connect and utilize R-1
water...for Improved Commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not Residential? So that, does that mean Residential?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr Chair, can I, can I add a few-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. TAYLOR: --shed some light? Okay. Mr. Ginoza just explained that there is already an ordinance
that says essentially--I don't remember the exact language--if a reclaimed waterline is in front of
your commercial site, you must use that water, and I don't remember the exact language, but
that's, that's essentially what it says. That ordinance also says that if you have an alternate
source and we're, we're telling you, you have to use it, you're allowed to pay your deferred cost
meaning if you have an onsite brackish well that only costs you ten cents per thousand gallons to
operate, then your cost to us is ten cents per thousand gallons. That's what the current ordinance
says. So we did have some concern that some of the people who would hook up, if we just built
the line, well that's their price under the current ordinance, which isn't enough obviously to
recover our costs. The other issue that kind of makes this a little complex is that the Planning
Commission, on a number of SMA permits in West Maui has said you must contribute fair share
or some language like that to a recycled water system and you must use that water when
available or something like that. But there is no current impact fee under any sort of ordinance
that says what that price is. So as a Department, back when I was in Environmental
Management, we struggled with this because the Planning Department, or the Planning, the
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Planning Commission was putting that language in. Yet there was no impact fee already built.
So what would their fair share be, what did that really mean? So again that's why we tried to go
back and tried to kind of form a hui of these users so that they would pre-agree, we will pay this,
you will give us the water, et cetera, et cetera, to sort of navigate around these, these issues.
Another issue is some of these users are in Kaanapali proper, which is not County potable water,
it's Kaanapali water, water so we can't shut off their potable water, we're not the provider. So
we have this whole myriad of issues that are all linked together in a way, and again, we felt the
best way to go about trying to, to untangle this was the method that we've walked through so that
they would, the onus would be on them to front the money, to pay it back and the County
wouldn't be stuck funding a lot of it and only recovering a little bit. Because right now, the
ordinances are not set up to recover for a full cost recovery. They're, they're really set up for a
very partial cost recovery.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, amend the ordinance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. That's what I say amend it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's one way we can do. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We had a testifier and, and Member Cochran also mentioned this
lawsuit. On one side we hear that we've got a pending lawsuit or impending lawsuit either way,
and on, on this side, I haven't seen anything from this Department saying that that, that that is
pending or impending. Are we in danger of getting sued by the EPA?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We should ask Mr. Kushi if we should be talking about this in open session.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's true.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Unfortunately, Mr. Chair, if, if we do, I don't know about it. That's all I can say, I
usually don't handle these types of suits, but general proposition is I hear there are, we've had
discussions with EPA.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we talk about it in open session or?
MR. KUSHI: As far as what I know, you know, which is nothing, but--
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. KUSHI: --but you can, you can discuss it, it's not a pending lawsuit as far as I, I know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So one thing, we're not gonna be sued by EPA, I think Ms. Cochran is talking about a
community group that has-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: --expressed that if they don't see certain actions that they're, they may be inclined to
sue the County. As far as what's happening with EPA, today in fact, we had a telecon with EPA
and we are, it seems like we're working...I mean, the reason why we're talking to EPA is
because the Lahaina Treatment Plant has a Federal Underground Injection Control Permit and so
we're in negotiations with them for renewal of that permit. And so it looks like we're heading
toward the path of getting that renewed, and what I expressed to the EPA today was that as we
get close to agreement, as we reach agreement, it is beyond my power to have the County enter
into such an agreement and it was my intent to bring it to this body either in Policy Committee or
some kind of committee to discuss probably in executive session, where we are with EPA and to
see if this body is amenable to where we're at as far as reaching agreement with them for
renewable of our permit. So the lawsuit that Ms. Cochran is talking about is from a community
group not from the EPA. We are in active discussions with the EPA on this issue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, but other things were mentioned by a testifier that we were
in...or possibly in violation of Clean, Clean Water Act with the EPA. Is that part of your
discussions or is that something else?
MR. KUSHI: Councilman Couch, I believe that testifier is part of that community group we're talking
about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion? Okay, thank you. That's the only one that you
had right for Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Members, do we have consensus in regards to...oh, no, we'll
just hold that until we come to, you can do your add, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. I think that's all for Environmental Management. And now we
go into the Water Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Kyle.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Kyle.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Is he finished...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Anybody has any questions for Kyle before he's excused? None?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nothing in Solid Waste yeah, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nothing in Solid Waste right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, do we anything in Solid Waste CIP, no yeah?
MR. KANESHINA: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
MR. KANESHINA: No revisits.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, no revisits.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
MR. GINOZA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks for your time, Kyle.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The man that gonna take us all the way to midnight.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, we got the, under Sewer, Countywide Pump Station
Renovations?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 29.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kyle. Oh, yeah. Okay, Kyle, one more.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-nine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 31-19, State Revolving Fund Countywide, 5, $5 million.
MR. GINOZA: I'm sorry, which page?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twenty-nine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 19.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you repeat, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 31-19.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause this is Revolving Fund, State Revolving Fund.
MR. GINOZA: What, what is the question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can, can you just give, give me, I know I read your narrative, Mr. Director,
but, you know, I was hoping maybe you could tell us more about what this 5 million is for
and...you know, I'm, I just worried, you know, for me also I'm worried about what, what, you
know, what component of this is anything for the Lanai system? Since, you know, we were, you
know, we were one of the earlier of the '70's projects, so for me, you know, I'm assuming Lanai
is gonna be up soon for consideration of upgrades and, and retrofitting. So I wanted to get a
sense out of this, but also to ask you how are you setting up your fee structure to take care of all
this borrowing even if it's from a SRF loan? 'Cause I don't see any adjustment in the, the rate
and fee schedule that was presented to the Committee earlier in the budget session, Mr. Director.
So, you know, if you give us some comment, that would be appreciated.
MR. GINOZA: I, I believe this one is the, the ARRA funding that we will get, so that's why it's under
the State Revolving Fund, which would be a, a principal forgiveness where we wouldn't have to
pay back the loan.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: What?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, we, we not going pay back the State Revolving Fund?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: More money.
MR. GINOZA: I know the Countywide Pump Station Renovation, that was the project I had when I was
in Wastewater.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: And it was a $5 million project for, for the improvement of seven pump stations, and it
was a stimulus project that we would get funding to, to perform these renovations. And that
because it was a stimulus project, it was a State Revolving Fund loan, but principal forgiveness.
I believe that's what this one is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can, can we have that verified 'cause boy I would love for you to get more
of those monies. I mean, we all would be thrilled and I would say let's go do the whole County
system, you know.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, I can verify for sure, but I was kind of caught off guard on this one, but I can
verify. I, I know that the Countywide Pump Station Program is multi, multi, multi-year-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right.
MR. GINOZA: --and this was the first one, and originally we thought that for the seven pump stations,
it would cost roughly 7.5 million. But when we got the bids, it came out at $5 million and that
those seven pump stations, we're able to get stimulus funding and so that $5 million was a loan
that we didn't have to pay back. But I will verify with Wastewater tomorrow-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Please-MR. GINOZA: --to make sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that, that would be great news for us if, you know, we, we are not required
to pay back the principal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We can handle interest. We can handle interest.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And so you're gonna provide us with more information on this one here?
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MR. GINOZA: Yes, I, should I just send the correspondence through the budget office to you?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. GINOZA: Okay, I can do that tomorrow so that you can...obviously it's a big issue, I mean, big
items for you guys.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well also, well, my, my concern more, Mr. Director, so you can appreciate
my perspective is, you know, as I, as I look at the projects the departments are requesting
especially on borrowed money, if there's a special fund or an enterprise fund like water or sewer,
then I'm looking at the rates and fees schedules to see how you're. . .(inaudible). . .is gonna be
to, to pay back the borrowing. You know, and then when I don't see adjustments on the rate and
fees side, but I see all these millions being asked for borrowing from one of your divisions, it
concerns me. When are we gonna be upfront with the rate payers of how we going pay back the
bill? Yeah, and, and that's my concern is, you know, we can support you, just explain how
we're gonna pay the bill and we can explain 'cause we're gonna be asked by our, you know,
communities, why is my sewer bill again up another 25 percent? Why? And at least we would
be able to give an explanation that this was for this, this, and this, which improved your service
or, or gave you better degree of ability for the County to serve, give service, so. And that's my
concern, Mr. Director.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, I understand and I apologize I don't have a concrete response for you at this time,
but I will provide it tomorrow.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That is appreciated, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for Kyle? Okay, seeing none, thank you,
again.
MR. GINOZA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We have the Water Director, Mr. Dave Taylor. Let's see...okay, on
Page 25. Countywide Water Source Development. Okay, I had deleted the whole thing based
on what I heard. Mr. Taylor, maybe you can explain this particular CIP projects 31-23?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, obviously there isn't very much written in, in the write-up about this. This is for
as yet unspecified and unidentified acquisition or development of new water sources
Countywide. As an example, as a concrete example, I will bring up the Frank's well or Piiholo
South Well that was discussed last year. There was a lot of discussion in this body about
whether or not the County should purchase it or whether I believe the actionable item was
whether or not the Council should make a resolution urging the Mayor to purchase it or
something like that. If something, if that project or another project like that comes up, and
there's nothing in the budget for it, I think it's good we're having this discussion, I, I think a
question back to the body would be if this is deleted, are, are you telling the Department and the
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Administration that we shouldn't discuss that with those developers? That we're saying, look
the County doesn't have enough money for that right now, you know, let's look at it at again in
FY '13. This was really a placeholder so that it would be an indication to all of us that we are
having those discussions, that when developers come to my office and they want to sell us
things, saying look, the Council is open to this if, if the terms are right. It's this body saying, you
know, we're ready to do something if we can work something out. I, I, I, suppose my question
would be if this is deleted, is that a message from the Council to the Administration that we just
can't afford it right now, tell these people, you know, come talk to us in FY '13, we'll look at it
then. And so I, that's what it's for and those are sort of my questions back to you about what
does it mean to leave this in and what does it mean to delete it? And I would leave that as a
discussion point for, for yourselves.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Taylor, I'm glad
you made it back. We've been holding on a couple of items because I was insistent that I wanted
to hear your, you know, what you had felt about some of the decisions that we are about to make.
And, of course, this $10 million one was a big one, and I'm listening to, you know, your question
to us, and some of the discussion yesterday revolved around not wanting to "give you a blank
check", and that might be the way this is perceived that, you know, then you've got $10 million
and you can spend it, and I wanted to know your reaction.
MR. TAYLOR: I'm, I'm sorry. I think this is anything but a blank check because any acquisition
unless again talk as a concrete example, the Piiholo South well, that will require if the County
purchases that, as an example, that would require coming back to this body and getting
authorization from this body to, to negotiate and enter into that. So we could not act on a project
like that just because there's money in the budget. We would still need this Council's specific
approval for any specific project. From a, from a methodology standpoint, and again I'll just
keep using the Piiholo South well as an example, we would probably discuss whether or not
that's technically adequate for our needs in Water Resources Committee. If we also needed to
do a budget amendment, 'cause there was no money, you know, we'd go to a different
committee and so if it's, if, if, if, if we're approached by an owner who wants to sell us
something, I think we need to keep in mind that we have our own processes to go through the
Council and if it has to go to multiple committee for multiple action, it just increases the time
and I think decreases the chance of being successful. So this was really meant to tell the
Council, to approach the Council, and say we want to have these discussions with you, we want
to be ready, we want to be able to act relatively quickly, which even in this, in this methodology
of getting Council approval, isn't going to be really fast. But it gives us a better option that if
something comes, comes our way, we have some reasonable methodology to get it done, we
have the money, it's already been discussed whether or not we can afford it. And then the
question is just do we want this specific source. And we were trying to narrow that down so the
discussions over FY '11 would be about the specifics and not about the bigger question of you
know should we even look at it at all.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I hear what you're saying and I think what I'm getting to understand
from you is you're trying to see where we are in standing behind what you're trying to do
financially. You're trying to see where we're going, and, and I think that's important.
MR. TAYLOR: And, and to add to that, Member Baisa, and you're correct, there's also a lot of
engineering man hours and operational man hours from our senior people investigating these
options. When somebody comes to us, it's just not me saying, I think that's pretty good, there
are hundreds of man hours that go in from our engineering group as well as our operations group
looking at all the specifics. If the Council is saying that we just can't afford it right now, I'm
not, you know, going to argue with that, I won't allocate those precious man hours to something
that just has no chance of being funded. So it's really a way of asking the Council, you know,
should we, should we start putting man hours into these things or is it just a non-starter from a
financial standpoint, and we'll put those man hours into, into things that will come to fruition.
So it's really sort of a step one that doesn't give us any sort of blank check or blanket approval. I
have zero problem with a proviso that says none of this money will be spent without specific
Council approval, et cetera, et cetera, that's fine 'cause that's what we would do anyway. It's
really just telling us can we afford to move forward on, on source development, should we start
putting man hours into it, should we have these discussions with these owners who want to talk
to us or should we just tell them, look come back in FY '13, we'll see where we are financially.
So that's really what this number I think represents to, to all of us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I knew that I'd get a straight answer. Thank
you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, and, Mr. Chair and Members, when we
had the confirmation hearings with Mr. Taylor, he, he made a statement saying we have to have
the political will to do what is necessary to get more water. And he said it's totally up to us and
this is, this is where he meant. Okay, he talked about this in his confirmation hearing, he has not
shied away from this. I think we all heard in our campaigns during the election that water was
important. So it, it, this is exactly what we talked to him about, this is exactly what he said he
was going to do, he did it, now I think we should, we, it's up to us to back it up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. You know the legislative process is a deliberate
process. It is structurally created to be very deliberative and to take an amount of time to make
good decisions. I don't appreciate a department or the Administration telling me what for do
with my legislative authority. Okay. And we don't budget on what ifs. Okay, you want $10
million, tell us $10 million. I've yet to see Council when required to move forward has delayed
things from Administration. So I don't know where this is coming from, if it has to go one
committee or two committees; Council has always tried to expedite it, only send it to one
committee. So I don't know where this is coming from, Chairman, about multiple referrals?
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The State does it, but they do it for a purpose and one of it is to reduce the amount of bills that
finally make it through the end of the process because they got to weed out thousands of 'em to
come to a workable number. The message to the Department is if you have something good,
bring it to us, we'll consider it. Just because we don't put it in the budget doesn't say we don't
have money. If the private developer's mentality is that way, hey, don't come to us then, deal
with your loss if you want to sell, if you feel you have to sell. 'Cause other than that, I expect
him to go and do the water development. I expect that Department to perform for the people of
this County not the private guy. Him. So don't come tell me that the message is we don't have
money, and don't tell me to give up my legislative prerogative and authority to one department.
The Charter doesn't allow that. So, you know, make up your mind, Department, you guys want
to do the water, do it and tell us specifically what you want to do and we can support you. But
don't come with this general thing that says we want to. . .(inaudible). . .you know, I can tell
you, Chairman, in the history that I've done State budgets from 1970 till now, I've never heard
of placeholders, you know, that's something I put on the table for hold my hot plate, placeholder.
We dealing with money, we dealing with projects, we dealing with operations, no bloody
placeholder, you know, so I mean let's get back to where we supposed to be and deal with
specifics, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, Director Taylor, I was just curious how you folks
came up with the 10 million figure?
MR. TAYLOR: Obviously it's an even number. It wasn't added up from-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . .rounded.
MR. TAYLOR: --any specific projects that exactly came to 10 million. So it is, it's recognizing that
over the next couple of decades, 10 million's not even going to be enough for all of our water
development needs. I mean clearly, that's not going to be enough. So it's a round number that
recognizes that there are a number of options out there and 10 million is still just to start to all of
what we're going to have to do at some point in the future. So it, it wasn't calculated by any
more complex method than that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair With this $10 million, if we were to ask you to
develop wells yourself, roughly how many, how many wells would you be able to do? I realize
it depends on the elevation and a whole bunch of factors, but based on the areas where we might
want to go to find water relatively easily, is this two wells, three wells, one well?
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MR. TAYLOR: Well first of all, this money was more meant for things that already exist that we would
most likely purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand. I'm just trying to-MR. TAYLOR: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --frame it.
MR. TAYLOR: In your, in your question, you actually answered it. If wells are very close to the
developed system and they're shallow, it's a lot cheaper. If they're further away and deeper,
that's more expensive. So, but in general, digging a hole a thousand feet may be, maybe a
million dollars so, so, you know, one well including the development cost of pumps and up top
infrastructure and connections, that could be $5 million, something like that. So this could be
two good wells, it could be four smaller wells somewhere in that neighborhood.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chairman, I, I'd like your thoughts on, on the, removing this from the
budget and whether really what, what you see as the Committee's intent as far as going, going
back or as far as asking them to come to us with a budget amendment as opposed to having it in
the, in the budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I love the number zero.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Yeah, I, I don't believe in placeholders. You know, Mr. Hokama
explained it real well that if, if the, if the Department needs funding to purchase a well or
developing a well, I would rather them come to this body, ask for that money, so we know
upfront what is being discussed or being negotiated. The other thing is that when we put in $10
million not knowing what's gonna be transpiring in regards to negotiation of a well that they
want to buy, we don't know if that $10 million going be utilized during the year. We do have a
lot of projects that, you know, are ready to go. What about those projects? Do we fund it or do
we hold it back? I would rather see the ready to go projects, a good example the police station,
trying to find monies just to build that thing. Here we have one project placeholder $10 million.
Can we use it for the police station, of course, so taking a look at, you know, where we could
utilize our monies to the best areas, this Chair had looked into the total request for 2012, and
make sure, made sure that the appropriation that we say that we're gonna do for project, CIP
projects, that we utilize our, you know, whatever we can, General Fund, bond, but not to put in
something that is unknown. If we're serious to purchase a well, then the Department must be
serious to come to this Council for that approval. That's basically some of my thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I, I guess, I'm just asking whether if I'm hearing you correctly,
then you're, you're open to proposals to purchase wells, and by taking this out, we're not saying
we're not interested-- 171 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --we're saying interested but show us what the cost is and bring it to us,
is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. And remember this is bond, a bond fund, you know-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if you don't spend anything, you don't incur debt.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And, and, Mr. Taylor, I'm assuming that there's nothing built into this
year's rate schedule because this isn't part of the expense yet or is there something built into this
year's rate schedule for this particular project?
MR. TAYLOR: No, you are correct, there is nothing built into the rate structure in anticipation of debt
for this money, there is none.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It would come, it would come next year if we bought something this
year?
MR. TAYLOR: That's, that next year or the year after depending on when it came online, you're
correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Taylor, I'm looking here in our CIP, in the ordinance,
Budget Ordinance, and Appendix A CIP, I don't see anything for water. I, I can't believe you
don't have any CIP monies or projects that are all done.
MR. BAZ: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Mr. Couch, which, what are you referencing?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The Budget Ordinance, Appendix A ,CIP Quarterly Report. It's got all
the other CIPs except Water. It's got Wastewater, it's got...the question and I wanted to check,
look it up before asking you is how much money do you have now in CIP projects that are
pending or how much do you have to spend? Is there anything in there that you can kind of
funnel towards your putting your hundreds of man hours of engineer time to, before coming to us
and asking us for this money if we were to get rid of this $10 million?
MR. TAYLOR: The time looking into any sources is, comes from A Account money from engineering
and operations. We don't pull that out of CIP money. So that, that's just something we, we, we,
we, we just use those man hours and we use them for that and not for something else. So there,
there's no special allocations for that. As far as CIP projects ongoing, there are a number of CIP
projects ongoing either in design or construction. These were projects that would essentially be
purchased or construction that would be in addition to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you have nothing on tap right now that you're gonna purchase some
system anywhere?
MR. TAYLOR: No, we have nothing, we have nothing ongoing right now that involves any sort of
direct purchase of anything, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. If and I don't know how it's gonna go because I haven't been
able to count the votes yet with all the comments. But if this money does goes out with this
placeholder if that's what it's being called, goes out, what kind of assurances would you need
from us in order to expend those man hours? You're saying if we leave it in, then you can, you
can say safely you, you feel confident spending engineer man hours to look at this project and
move forward with it before coming to us to actually purchase the project. But now if we don't
have that, that $10 million even though we say we want you to go do something that might cost
the $10 million, what kind of assurances do you need from us if we remove this?
MR. TAYLOR: I, I want to be clear. In no shape, way, shape or form, was I sort of threatening that
we're not going to work on this if you don't put this in. We're going to do the, the, the CIP
deletions that the Chair is recommending, are all for CIP construction. Regardless of whether
you put that money in or not, we are going to continue with the designs, with looking into things,
I mean I think that's our responsibility. It just makes me a little more uncomfortable when I feel
like I have to be accountable for these A Account expenditures. And when you asked me, you
know, why we didn't get these other things done and I say well we had all these engineers
looking at this well and that well, as long at the Council, just from the discussion here, and this is
what I've already heard, wants us to pursue these things, and wants us to come back for budget
amendments for them, we're not going to change anything we do. I, I just want to be very
upfront with you folks that we are gonna spend hours and I just wouldn't want you to think that
we're wasting those hours because you said upfront you know there's no way we're gonna fund
these anyway. So I'm just a little bit uncomfortable. I'm just, let me say this, I'm more
comfortable having money in the budget so I can tell you that yes, I'm spending engineering man
hours out of the A Account for something that you said that, you know, you're supportive of.
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I'm just a little uncomfortable making the decision to allocate those hours and being told later
that I, I wasted County resources working on something that we were never gonna do. So we're
probably going to do it anyway. It's really just sort of the partnership that we want to have with
the Council that we're, we're kind of working on things together.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director. Yeah, I feel the
frustration, but I also understand Mr. Hokama and Chair Pontanilla's point. You know with
specifics, it makes us feel a lot more comfortable too knowing where that money's going and
what the man hours are being put towards. My question is about the wells and Shaft 33, is this,
was this money gonna be used towards that project?
MR. TAYLOR: No. Those are being taken care of under, I don't have it in front of me, under some
other projects I think for Central Maui well replacement or something like that. That's, those are
completely-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: --different projects that are, that are funded for that specific purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. And, Chair, I want to thank you for the opportunity to have this
discussion 'cause it makes me feel a lot better. You know, like everybody else, all I hear is
water, water, water, we need a better supply, we need better systems, we need to get things done,
and, you know, we're all extremely hopeful that Mr. Taylor and his Department will succeed. It
certainly is time, and I wanted to make sure that he has the resources to do what he needs to do
as long as we can afford it. But, you know, I, I understand where he's coming from too, he's
trying to find out really how supportive we are and do we have the funding to help him do the
things he wants to do. And so he's, he's trying to, you know, see which way the wind is
blowing. But, you know, I see both sides and I understand that we don't want to commit money
unless we know exactly where it's going and do we need to do this now? But I think, I get the
feeling that this Council understands what Mr. Taylor's trying to do and that if he came to us
with a specific proposal, that we would do our very best to deal with it as quickly as we could.
Because, you know, it's our commitment to the people of this County, they want water problems
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solved. And I think that's why we're questioning the deletions. We just want to make sure that
it doesn't slow him down in any way 'cause, you know, we are still expecting those miracles,
Mr. Taylor. Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: And thank you, Mr. Baisa, if I could just make Ms. Baisa, sorry.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. TAYLOR: It's late, I actually haven't been home in two days, but...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I can understand, me too.
MR. TAYLOR: If I could just make one comment. We, we, it's not as much that we're, we're trying to
see which way the wind's blowing or something like that. We're, we're trying to move forward,
we're, we wanted to put this in. One of the reasons was to have this discussion about how the
Council wants to move forward, and also I think when we look at some of the experience
personally that we have, myself, the Managing Director, the Mayor, during Mayor Arakawa's
first Administration, the three of us were all involved in, in the One Main Plaza proposed
acquisition. And the reason I bring that up, not because I'm not gonna rehash that, but the
methodology was if you think about it we were approached by a private developer let's say in
October-November saying here's something we want to sell you, here's the price. So we had
December, January, February to do our due diligence, put it in the budget in March, have that
discussion, and the owner knew that there's no way we would be able to buy that till July. And
so it fit into the County Budget process perfectly. It's very rare that somebody approached us in
October-November, and said we'll wait to make the deal till July. Looking back, and that's
really my only personal experience in the County of acquisition, unless that timing happens
exactly again with other purchases, we're approached in October, November, December, we do
due diligence January-February, explain the details in March-April, and then have the owner
wait for us until July, we're looking either at budget amendments or some sort of placeholders.
And, and I think if you look back at that One Main Plaza timeline, that was very unique. I think
it's very unique that an owner's gonna approach us in October-November looking for a sale in
July. And I, I think we can all realize that's probably never going to happen with a well
acquisition or almost anything else so we have to realize that we're probably almost never gonna
have full details for an acquisition in, in the budget just because the way the timeline works. So
we're certainly fine with only pursuing acquisitions as budget amendments. But there really
isn't any other realistic way to do it because there's no way to line the, the sellers with the
County budget timeline. And so that's my experience and that's the Managing Director's
experience with County purchases. So I think we, we took that into account when we put this in
knowing that we have to do something and that's probably not going to work.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. As always I think it's a very straightforward
explanation, and I thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I'm glad you brought that up or maybe not, but I was
involved in that as well and that's the instance where a lot of time was put into it without
knowing what the Council wanted. I think that's a perfect example of why we need this here so
the Council has given a tacit approval saying okay go for it, see what you can do as opposed to
spending all that time that you, me, the Managing Director, a lot of people did in Arakawa one
and all of a sudden have it say, Council say no. And, and, and I see where you're coming from
on that and where that, where that concern is. So again, that, that just solidifies my thought that
maybe we do need to have that in there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member, any more questions? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, at least we got the Administration side of that issue, Chair.
Obviously, that, you know, once we not, he putting out his, the Council's side of this, that
project, which shows a slightly different perspective and there were different reasons why it
ended up in a 5-4 vote. But beyond that, let's get back to this 10 million. You know, before any
private entity gets to drill, they have to go get government permits and government approvals
especially from State Water Commission. And they're gonna touch base with Department of
Water Supply. We're gonna know where the site is, what elevation, and, you know, I don't
know, you know, our Department can always ask State Water Commission to have all the
reporting that's being done on those test wells or exploratory wells and what not. So we can
know from day one, from those reports, how the process of the well situation is going. So if it's
a dud, we're gonna know it's a dud. If it's something that is providing good pressure, sufficient
chloride levels that are safe for potable consideration. Eventually if they're gonna wanna pump,
Chairman, they're gonna come back to the Department because they're gonna have to settle the
size of the pump, how much they're gonna pump per minute to get X amount per day and what is
the sustainable yield. So we're gonna have that information in advance of him coming to the
Council formally for a consideration. You know so for me it's, what am I missing here?
Because we're gonna be having access to the data or we should be requesting access to the data
during this whole phase of the private developer's well. So I, you know, for me, I can tell you, I
wish we were so rich we can do all these placeholders, but we're not. And so, for me, I don't
think what I'm asking for is unreasonable to come back with more specifics because it's gonna
be based on data that we are gonna get from each submittal of the private guy to the State Water
Commission, 'cause we need to, to DLNR if it's on conservation land, to our Water Department
if they so request anything that's drilled into the County. So what am I missing, Chairman, that
we need to do these type of placeholder? I'll leave it at that, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I feel that's the most responsible way. Members, any more
questions for the Department? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, Chairman, thank you very much. And, and I guess, I guess to
Mr. Taylor, I really appreciated, I really appreciated your follow up on your original comments,
your initial comments, yeah. Because, you know, you're straightforward. And I believe most of
us, you know, we appreciate that because that's exactly the same type of response you'll get
from us, yeah. So your, your original opening comments did seem like a threat. You either give
us the 10 million or we not going to waste manpower hours on any proposal. But I hope you've
heard, you know, this, this body's justification because, you know, the whole issue is money
that's just being held in suspense until you feel that there's adequate source to actually engage
more, more seriously in, in actually acquiring. But, you know, even if the monies are not there,
personally, I expect that from you, the Director and the Department, the development of source is
your responsibility, you know, whether there's a, a, a pot of money available or not. And that's
just the reality of, of the job that you hold. And the challenge for you is, you know, trying to get
blood out of stones. I, I mean, you know, because it is a difficult challenge. And $10 million,
you know, is a big sum for this particular point in time. So, you know, we support your efforts,
you know, and, and we do have confidence in your abilities to, to get the job done. Hopefully
that ability does not hinge on dollars and cents because the reality, Mr. Taylor, is it's not gonna
be readily available and we still expect you to perform, we still expect you to develop source,
and, you know, the, the burden is gonna be shared, the burden is not all yours. The burden also
rests with this body so, you know, hopefully, by your abilities to work with the developers and
bringing adequate information to this, to this body, you know, I believe, you know, is really the
best, the best way to deal with it. And just to, to respond to your comments with One Main
Plaza, I don't think that was a good example. One Main Plaza had so many problems to One
Main Plaza including the purchase of the property that the building was on. It wouldn't have
been ours, we still would be subjected--I don't want a comment from you--we still would be
subjected to another landowner who owned the land. So, you know, we had to look at all
perspectives including the, the actual structural integrity of that building as well that we did not
receive information on until a later date. So I appreciate all your comments, I want to believe
that we will be able to move forward whether or not there is that $10 million as a placeholder.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay. The Chair's
recommendation for this item here is to remove the $10 million. We've had a lot of discussion
in, in regards to that. The Chair's gonna ask for some, a consensus on this for removal of the
$10 million.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Consensus from me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus? No Consensus? Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I guess the, the challenge that I'm having with this, I, I totally
understand where you're coming from. My challenge is that I know that there are wells
available, I know they're, they're working on establishing what, you know, the production levels
are, and coming up with some sort of rationale for coming up with a price. I guess my concern is
not putting any money in here, to me is, is...you know, to people that look at the budget and
haven't heard this discussion, their reaction is we're not, we're not doing a damn thing to help
with water development at least in the Upcountry area. If, if the cost of a well might be
5 million, would the Chair consider putting two and a half in here? We can see that we're
heading in the direction of solving the problem and I, I, the sense I get is that everyone wants to
make sure the well, you know, that either we're developing water source or we're acquiring it.
This is bond money as you said, we're not gonna spend it unless it's, you know, unless we find a
well that we feel is a, an appropriate price, but I just throw that out because I, I'd like anyone in
the public that reads this in the newspaper or sees this somewhere else, that they understand that
we are taking this seriously. Not as seriously as $10 million would show, but I, I agree with your
concern, I, I'd like it to come back to us and it sounds like it would either way, but I'd be much
more comfortable having some, at least some number in here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How about two and a half?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (Chuckle)... 2.5?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I kind of beg to differ that it'll show that we're not caring or
looking for water source development. There's, there's West Maui source improvements, you
know, you're looking to, exploratory well there, the three wells, that Shaft 33 in Central. So I
mean there are-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I guess, I guess-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --specific...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I should have been clear that it was Upcountry.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Okay, well all right. Then, yeah. That's, I was gonna get to
helping Upcountry further in the pages, but anyways, that was my comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. No matter what the amount, the methodology is
the same and I agree with the Chair, I think it should, there should be no amount over there
whether it's $1 or 10 million, and I support the Char's recommendation to remove the 10 million.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I didn't say consensus out loud 'cause I wanted to explain this
because all of my constituents who watch this program avidly are gonna say what are you doing,
you're supposed to be helping us get water. But I wanna say that, you know, it was a very
difficult thing for me when I first heard it because I said oh God, there goes, you know, our
solutions. But I understand the process and I understand that Mr. Taylor understands that if he
comes across a viable opportunity, that this Council stands ready to help. It isn't that we're
broke, we, we can make, we can help. I think the concern here is time because, of course, you
know, when an opportunity comes, but we play with it and then sometimes we lose it 'cause we
don't act quickly. But in light of, you know, that your feelings and others, then while I, I don't
particularly like giving this up, I can live with it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay. The Chair's
recommendation is to zero out, if I do have a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Mateo, second by Mr. Hokama. Any more discussion?
Members, all in favor of the motion say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: "No".
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: "No".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, let the record show motion is carried, eight "ayes", one "no"-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and one absent, Mr. Victorino. The no is Mr. Couch. Motion is passed
seven--how many ayes?--seven "ayes", two "noes"—
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven, one, one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, seven, one...seven "ayes", one "no", one excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Mateo, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Chair's proposed reduction to line item for Countywide
Water Source Development.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, let's take seven minutes. We'll reconvene at
9:10. This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

9:05 p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:15 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, the next project is CIP 28-17.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What page?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 25, West Maui Source Improvements. The guy that had questions is not
here so let's go to the next one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There he is. We're waiting on him.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: MW?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: MW.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 25, Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Forty-five?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, 25.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CIP 28-17.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't have a problem.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It has your initials, it has your name next to it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: He agrees with the. . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, do we have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one is on 28, towards the bottom, Piiholo Water Treatment Plant
Improvements - Organic Carbon Reduction. We were gonna get State Revolving Fund
Intergovernmental Agreement, but we are requesting that coming for, utilizing Fiscal Year 2011
monies. Oh, delete Fiscal '11, 2011 monies. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry. I had a question about that. It looks like for this project there was only $200,000
appropriated in Fiscal Year '11, and so I'm not sure what the reference was.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, can you provide some insights please?
MR. KANESHINA: This is in regards to the Olinda Treatment Plant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MR. KANESHINA: I believe looking at the Fiscal '11 ordinances, there was, your Committee did, did
approve the, the Piiholo Treatment Plant Carbon Reduction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: SRF loan? No?
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. For $5 million?
MR. KANESHINA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Both of these items are things that I
was, like I said, very concerned about and really wanted to see them in the budget, but I, you
know, after all we've been through in the last couple of days and these discussions about wanting
specific details of projects, costs, timelines, and how we're gonna get these things done, and
whatever. It appears that although I would much rather have it here 'cause these are very, very
important to our area and, you know, water's a big deal. If Mr. Taylor can live with budget
amendments, well, then I will be quiet. So I'd like to ask him what he thinks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: We, we were talking about FY '10 or FY '11 appropriation that's already there?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. And then there's the '12 that we're taking out.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. This project is required for new Federal regulations. It's currently in design, the
FY '11 money will lapse on December 31, 2011 in roughly, you know, it's eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: It is unlikely or impossible that we encumber that money in a construction contract by
that time. Okay, we're just not far enough along in the design to, to get to that point. So
therefore, we either need that funded in FY '12 or if it is funded in FY '13, the timing becomes
so tight I believe the, I believe that system has to be operational October 1, 2013. Assuming one
year to bid, to build and we have to, we have to start construction about a year before out, go out
to bid before that, et cetera, et cetera, we basically would need to go out to bid 11 months from
now. We would have to advertise for bid before the money was approved in the FY '13 Budget.
And basically, you know, sign a construction contract that first week in July and hopefully get
the thing online by October 1, 2013. So especially because it's SRF money, that you're always
in competition for. The County's in the best position if it's always in the budget. So if, for
example, another county can't do their project and the State calls us and says look we have some
extra SRF money, to be able to say look, we're ready to accept it, we don't have to wait till
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FY '13, first of all, that's a, that's a, that's a real help to us, that it's always ready to go. And
also it, it will just make, it, we'll lose that ability that we can't encumber in that, in that six
months between when FY '11 ends and FY, you know, '13 starts. So probably, we can make it
work with FY '13 funding. It gives us a little more buffer if there's FY '12 funding. It gives us
a little better chance of getting that SRF loan because again, there's that six months that we, we
qualify for it. And if not, you know, we take our chances with FY '13, hopefully there's SRF
money available, hopefully it works out. So that's where that project is, we would prefer to have
it in FY '12. If it's in FY '13, you know, it'll be a little more of a rush.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's a very political answer. It still, it still leaves me with a level of
discomfort, because this is something we have to do. And on a very tight timeline, I get nervous
because I know how government timelines work. So if you had to make this decision, you
would recommend leaving it in?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't pretend to understand and have all the, the, the things to balance that you folks
did.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: Obviously, we put it in the budget because we, we really wanted it in the FY '12
budget. I, I realize you folks are weighing, you know, total amount of debt the County's
carrying, and you have your, your views on that. Clearly, the Administration felt that we could
handle that, especially with an SRF loan. If, if the Council has some reasons where you disagree
with that, obviously that's, that's your prerogative. I, I can't answer for the County as a whole
whether or not the County can absorb that much debt. I can answer for the Department saying
we would, it would certainly give us a lot more likelihood that we meet these requirements if we
have it in the FY '12 budget. Again, if we don't get it to FY '13, we will, you know, we'll make
those adjustments and try to, to get it done in FY '13 before October 1, 2013.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What happens if you don't meet that deadline?
MR. TAYLOR: Well I think the Council's heard in the past when different agencies have not met
Federal requirements on time, there are, it depends on what the agency does. You know, this is
an, this is EPA Safe Drinking Water Rules, so there is possibility of fines and there's also
possibilities of extensions. So the fact is if we are, if we come to that date and it's not finished
`cause it's in construction, we're having some construction problems, the EPA may start fining
us or they may say look, you know, we'll give you an extension of six months to finish. That,
you know, we'll have no idea until it happens. We try to use regulatory deadlines as absolute
deadlines because it's better to be safe than, than take those risks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, and thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm gonna have Staff read out a bill that was passed. Scott, can
you please?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Chair. I'm citing the Fiscal Year '11 Budget Ordinance. It's
Ordinance 3747, Bill No. 35, and it's A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE DRINKING WATER TREATMENT
REVOLVING LOAN FUND FOR THE PIIHOLO WELL TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTSORGANIC CARBON REDUCTION, MAKAWAO-PUKALANI-KULA COMMUNITY PLAN
AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2011 BUDGET. Again, that was for the Drinking Water
Treatment...Treatment Revolving Loan Fund in the amount not to exceed $5 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's the reason why for the zero out. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, after having heard that I still have a question. He said that the,
they requested it, but it shows the Mayor's budget is zero there. So I mean the Mayor already
had a zero-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you did two things to make it a zero again and so why are we...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just to point out that monies are available.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There are, there is money available? He is able to go, so this was kind
of a moot point now is that what we're looking at?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We, we got shaking of heads over there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, go ahead.
MR. TAYLOR: You know I, I, I, I believe that there is money available right now in the FY '11
Budget. The, the County CIP budgets are 18 months so that money lapses December 31 st of this
year. What I'm saying is where we are right now in design, we will not be ready to go out to bid
and encumber that money during FY '11. So we will not be able to enter into this SRF loan
agreement during FY '11 and this, this appropriation will definitely lapse.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then my question is how come the Mayor didn't put that in his budget?
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Scott, please.
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MR. KANESHINA: Thank you. Member Couch, just to, you know, an attempt if you're citing Page 28
on the Committee, you know, Mr. Pontanilla's Exhibit "1", what the Staff tried to show was
when the Mayor's budget came through, the total amount was the $6.5 million. However, in
reviewing the actual bills, we saw that that 6.5 comprised of two separate projects. So, you
know, in an effort to show our math, we split it out so we show a deduction of 6.5 to make it to
zero, and then we added these two separate to properly show two projects.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, bear with me, I'm just trying to get a grip on, on, on
the actual current status of the SRF funding option. So currently for I guess this proposal,
Mr. Taylor, we are not assured of getting the SRF loan for Fiscal Year '12?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And yet I hear your response to Ms. Baisa's concern or, or comment
regarding the, the, a dead time...a deadline of conform, conformance or compliance with the
EPA. So can, can you maybe help the Committee explain that if you needed something to be
assured of compliance, then why wouldn't you come back and say well if the SRF is an iffy
thing, why don't I ask Council for a GO Bond then?
MR. TAYLOR: First of all, that's exactly what we would do. How SRF loans work and this is for
Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste, is the Department of Health has a Revolving Fund to loan
this money out and all the counties submit their projects, they get on a list, they're all rated in
from different categories. But there's a lot more requests than there is funding. So we're all in
competition with each other. Exactly what the scoring is and how DOH decides who gets the
money I don't know, I think that's, that's something they do. When we put SRF loans in the
budget, again, Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste, we aren't positive that by the time we get those,
that we're gonna get those loans, you don't know that you're absolutely gonna get the loan until
after you go out to bid, you have a construction contract, you have a price. That's, that's when
you can lock it in, there's letters of agreements and things like that. So until that time, we sort of
keeping our fingers crossed. There is a possibility that everything in the budget that's labeled as
SRF loan, Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste, by the time we get to that point, for whatever
reasons DOH says, you know, we gave all the money to, to the County of Kauai or something
and we all have to come up back for GO Bond money for that. That will, that has always been a
possibility, that will always be a possibility with SRF loans.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but my, my point on this particular project and what I heard the
concern from Ms. Baisa is you're coming against a deadline wall very rapidly, and so if we wait
till Fiscal Year '13, I believe I heard your comment to Ms. Baisa, it's very tight. And then we, I
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heard comments of a potential either fines or possible extension from the EPA. So my point,
Chairman is, why take a chance then?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why not ask us for a bond and see if we can-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --schedule and make a debt service program that makes sense that can do it
by borrowing, smart borrowing, take care of the stuff within the time concern for Upcountry and
Ms. Baisa, and still allow Mr. Taylor to not be dependent on an iffy SRF loan whether it'll come
through or not? I mean, you know, for me, you know for me to agree to this option right now is
kind of tough to, okay, trust me. But if it is so essential, then you should be coming to us with
things, you know, that we can grant, but telling us about one SRF iffy thing, I mean we wanna
start call this an iffy project. Now if the iffy money comes, we can do the iffy project. We don't
work like that, Chair, and I don't want Water Department to work like that, you know. I mean if
you gotta have it, Mr. Taylor, ask us either grant one fee rate increase to pay for the, the thing or
ask us for a bond and a rate increase to pay off the debt, but if we gotta do it, let's find a way to
make it happen and let's work with you.
MR. TAYLOR: My comment to that is first thank you, and second, one of the criteria to get higher on
the list for getting SRF loan money is that it's needed for regulatory compliance So a project
like this is more likely to get an SRF loan than just something we want to do.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: So these projects are more likely not to be bumped so we tend to put them in. From
another aspect of looking at it, from the time we advertise to bid, to the time we're ready to sign
a construction contact... contract, where we, where we encumber those funds, it's about three or
four months. That's also coincidentally, about the amount of time it takes for us to deliver a
supplemental budget request or budget amendment and get it approved through second reading.
So basically if we're getting to the point where we're going out to bid and Department of Health
is telling us look there's no way you're gonna get SRF money, we can go out to bid,
simultaneously ask Council for the budget amendment for bond money, and by the time we're
ready to sign a contract, you know, we will have had that discussion and got that money
approved. So there is that backup plan that we don't lose any time as long as right before we go
out to bid, we, you know, we internally look at where we are and it also gives us a better chance
of getting SRF money because if the SRF projects are needed by regulatory compliance, that
gives us a better chance of being higher on that list. So I think that's why all of us, Water,
Wastewater, Solid Waste, sort of take the same approach where we really try to do the SRF
money for projects we have to do 'cause we're much more likely to get that money. Then we
use bond money for what we want to do. So I think that's sort of our strategy--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --that we've been operating on, you know, for at least my last 15 years of doing CIP
with SRF loans.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I hear you, but, you know, I would hate to be the prom date with no corsage
at the door and find out that, you know what, there's no date behind the door either.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It's getting late.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, and again, Chairman, you know, it was a side of humor is what I
shared, but if it's so essential for us to do and I understand why he wants to go with the SRF, you
know, gosh, Chairman, you know, I know what to, you know, recommend to my, my colleagues
and you because, you know, this, it comes to a point how nervous do you want to get with the cat
tail under the rocking chair? You know, if we don't move the cat tail, we're gonna get slammed
eventually by that rocking chair. So do we take a chance that we're not gonna get rapped
or...and, and play that card thin, Mr. Taylor, you know, or do we just start budgeting now and,
and make sure we get it done, within compliance timelines?
MR. TAYLOR: Again, our belief is that with the cooperation of the Council, which sounds like we
have for this, knowing that there is at the end of the day, if we're budgeting SRF money, the
Council, it sounds like the Council would be very receptive to at the last minute-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Mr. Taylor-MR. TAYLOR: --changing it to bond-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know-MR. TAYLOR: --we're not taking a whole lot of risk.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --get us to, you know, and for us yeah, you know, you need to understand
yeah, whether it's SRF or bond money, we still borrowing and we still going pay some sort of
interest. So for us it's maybe how many points difference in the interest we're gonna end up
paying. But the point is we're still going borrow in the end. We either going borrow from the
State or we going borrow from our, through the underwriters and the sale of our General
Obligations. So the borrowing part doesn't change, Chairman, you know, for me, so, so that's
what I throw, you know, throw back to Mr. Taylor that if this is critical, then I would rather
support Ms. Baisa's thing and move it forward earlier than later. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I support him trying to get it in, him getting it in the
FY '12 Budget, but I, I guess, Mr. Chair or Mr. Taylor or Mr. Baz, SRF funds for those who are
watching in, for those of us who are new, they're, they're much cheaper interest rates right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: By State Statute, they're required to be 1 percent less than the weekly bond rate. So
generally what we'd have to go out, the ability to go out to bond, yeah, so in theory-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You were saying...
MR. BAZ: --it's gonna be 1 percent less than bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And you were saying bond was 4.03, was that correct?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this would be 3.03. So we're talking about a one, a one whole point
difference when we were really concerned about three hundredths of a point at the police station.
So I think, I think going for SRF if we can get the 1 percent, let's do it, it isn't gonna cost any
extra time. If he can't get it, he said we can go to GO if we need to, and at the time he's ready to
sign the contract we'll have the GO. I don't see any reason why not to go with the SRF and try
and get the cheaper rate especially if it's 1 percent as opposed to three hundredths of a percent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So what happened to the Fiscal Year 2011 bond money? Scott,
please.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As, as your Committee approved last budget session in
2011, the CIP for this project is $5 million, you know, SRF loan. I guess they would have 18
months to encumber so they would have until December 31, 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which he said he couldn't do.
MR. KANESHINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And the reason couldn't do?
MR. TAYLOR: The reason we couldn't do this project is...gonna try to keep a lot of the technical
things out of it. ... (chuckle)...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. TAYLOR: In order to meet the new surface, or the newer requirements, there's, there's something
Upcountry called organic carbon that comes out of it because it's a forest area. Now water
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quality is different all over. It's actually different between Olinda and Piiholo, much as it's
different all over the country. So there's some technologies available to get rid of this. The
technologies have to be fine-tuned depending on your specific water quality. So as we started
looking into it, it became obvious that, and this was before I started, I'm just giving some
historical perspective, that the original testing they thought they could do to figure out what
would work, just wasn't good enough. And we're about to start in another month, a much more
rigorous testing of some different technologies to see what actually works with this particular
water at this particular site. And it really comes down to some really fine details. We had to do
some testing, the testing was inconclusive, now we have to do more comprehensive testing and I
actually have to ship some pretty significant piece of equipment here to actually run simulations
or actually run the real thing side by side to see what actually works. Because it's so delicate
that something that works in the lab may not work in the real world. So we actually have to
build a small one of a couple different technologies and test them side by side to see what will
actually work. And this extra effort took, is just taking more time than was originally thought
because of the specific nature of the chemistry of the water in Piiholo. And it's just something
that, that nobody really anticipated that again these, these regulations are, are so sort of cutting
edge with available technology that it's just taking basically almost a full scale simulation to
figure out what's gonna work or not. So that's what's taking the extra time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you something. We have seven months before the end of the year,
we approve this project...if we go the route that is being requested, we approve this budget and it
goes into effect seven...on July 1 st , and then what you're saying is that we need the monies or
when you're gonna get this thing bidded out?
MR. TAYLOR: That depends also. We, we actually just had a big meeting with some consultants and
suppliers yesterday because of the complexity of this. We had to get a whole sort of team
together to figure this out. Depending on, we're gonna do the side by side testing through the
rest of the summer. Call it July-August. At that point in September-October, we will be able to
crunch that, that information and decide which of the technologies work. Now if the easy
technology works, which is Granulated Activated Carbon, that's a very quick thing to get bid and
get out to bid and that's very fast. Maybe it'll only take a few months. Still we wouldn't be able
to encumber by the end of this calendar year, but we would be able to go out to bid perhaps by
the end of this calendar year or early next calendar year. If that isn't going to work, and we have
to go for this, this other technology which includes Ionic Carbon Exchange with resin and I
won't get into those details, that is something much more complex to specify and design. So if
we have to go this other route, the design period gets much longer, we probably aren't gonna be
able to get out to bid until next spring sometime. So that's, this big question is what we don't
know is what is this thing going to be, we're not going to know that till October. After that it
could be a relatively short time to go out to bid and encumber or it could be much longer if, if we
have to use this, this other technology. So that's why we don't know. The longest case would be
go out to bid sometime in, in the spring.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Of '12, 2012?
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MR. TAYLOR: Of the calendar year 2012.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I, I think I can understand your concern about having two funded items for the same project
and available at pretty much the same time. I could offer, you know, from the Budget Office
Administration, a budget amendment for Fiscal Year '11 to delete that project if that would make
you a little bit more comfortable in that area?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Real quick on your explanation of SRF loans. This one for
Fiscal Year 2011, that is available until the end of the year, it really isn't available, you won't
know it until you sign the contract, is that right? That's what you were kind of explaining it to
begin with.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. I, I, I can't remember at this time, the exact methodology. There comes a point
where Department of Health sends us either a letter of intent or, or there's some letter I can't
remember what the, what it's called, and at that point, you lock in your funding. I, I don't
remember exactly the trigger of when they commit, but it's relatively late in the process, close to
construction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Have they committed, have they committed to this one that's been
approved that Mr. Kaneshina, Kaneshina read?
MR. TAYLOR: No. I mean you at-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we really don't have it?
MR. TAYLOR: --least have to be, you at least have to have design documents complete that they
review.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So we're in the same situation if we take SRF, if we take the
current one or if we wait till '12, we won't know until we sign the paper?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think it's worth the, I mean you do it all the time, I mean SRF's done
all the time. This one you say is a pretty high possibility so I, I'm, Mr. Chair, I don't know if
you're gonna take a motion or not or I mean we've talked about it quite a bit, but I'd sure like to
move that we take out the negative 5 million from that line.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there a possibility of coming in for a budget amendment when you ready?
MR. TAYLOR: That's always a possibility and, and as I discussed the timeline earlier, from the time
we go out to bid, you know, till the time we're ready to sign a contract is enough time for a
budget amendment. It just means that we're gonna go out to bid really with no, with no money
backing it, and we can do that, I, I don't think there's any rules against that. So it's, it really is
up to, I think the Budget Office and you folks. It's just gonna generate more, more effort on
your parts. It isn't a huge effort on our part to ask for a budget amendment. I, I don't know how
much effort it is for the Budget Office and for you folks to deal with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I'll discuss it with Mr. Baz. We'll revisit this thing here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is the, just below that, the Waikamoi Flume
Improvements. The Chair's recommendation is to remove it, based on the comments that you
made in, in a meeting in regards to this one particular project really not having the time to,
because you just moved into this position here, the time to really look at this project as far as the
improvements of this flume.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know what is required to move forward on this particular project, SMA
or, you know, environmental impact statements, things like that and normally it takes what, over
a year just to have that, so if you can.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, a lot of that work is underway, the design is underway. The question is it's
very similar to the last project is we're in design. I, I tend to look at all these things from a
schedule standpoint of, you know, the 18-month CIP overlapping fiscal years, and are we likely
to be able to sign a construction contract in, before July 2012 or not? And if not, obviously we
would bump to Fiscal Year 2013. In this case, if we do get it, get a construction contract
encumbered before July 1, 2012, it's gonna end up being pretty close to that. I mean we're not
gonna be ready to go out to bid with this project, you know, in the next couple of months, that's
for certain. So it gives us more flexibility to try to go a little earlier. You know, we may be able
to get this out to bid in February or March, but again the fiscal, Fiscal year '13 CIP budget is
only fourteen months away. I mean that's really not a real long time in the life of CIP. If you
folks cut this, I mean, at the most, you know, we could lose four or five months. I mean we
might be ready to go out to bid in January-February, or maybe we have to bump that to April or
May. So it's not a huge change to bump it to FY '13, but for certain, it is gonna have to be in the
FY '13 Budget. This is a requirement of the State Commission on Water Resource Management
that we do this, or they are going to start taking away our allocation. So it is also a regulatory-ish
type of project if you want to call it that. It's also the kind of thing that is gonna end up being
very high on the SRF list, because we are being told by a regulatory agency we have to do it.
The only discomfort I have about cutting it is more about not being a super high priority to DOH
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and losing the SRF loan to a different county because, you know, we're no longer committed to
it for that year. So it's a little bit of a gamble. If we do go out, if we do build it in FY '12, or
FY, it will be in the later part of it so, you know, I certainly understand your, your, dilemma of
not borrowing too much money, but again, it's the SRF issues that sort of cloud this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the last, for the last two projects that we, you know, this one and the last
one, contemplating rate increases? Or will rate increase -MR. TAYLOR: Yes. I, I, I think-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to take care of 'em?
MR. TAYLOR: --when you look at the level CIP borrowed money that's in our budget, we are bringing
on borrowed money faster than we're retiring debt. I mean, I think that's obvious. So clearly in
this level of CIP borrowed money in the special fund we're in is going to lead to rate increases in
FY '13 or '14 to support this higher level of debt service. I, I think we, we all can agree that
that's true.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'll go right down the line, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Mr. Taylor. This Waikamoi Flume,
seems like I can't remember when I wasn't hearing about the status of the Waikamoi Flume-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...(chuckle)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and all the horror stories and pictures that are involved with it. I'm
really hesitant to take any kind of a gamble on this repair. This has to be done. This is not
something we have a choice to fix 'cause we cannot give up any more water. And if we don't
comply with the State Water Commission mandate, then, you know, we're gonna be in big
trouble. We already have water problems. We're gonna have bigger water problems. So it, it
really bothers me, Chair. I understand what we're trying to do, but this one is playing Russian
Roulette. If we, things go wrong and, and we don't get the money, and we don't get this project
done, we're in big trouble. And we really need this thing fixed 'cause we need the water more
than anything else.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, uh, Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, you know, Mr. Taylor, I'm glad that you
explained the order from State Water Commission in regards to this. Yes, it is important to keep
hearing it, it is something that we must move forward with. I, I just wish Mr. Victorino was here
to hear that 'cause that's what I was trying to explain the other day. He thought otherwise. So
Upcountry gets 85 percent of their water from this flume. You know, and the leakage that's
occurring, I mean, we need to fix that, and thereby it'll create more source for the Upcountry
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people who are jumping up and down for more so, personally, I feel the need to keep the monies
here for this project. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I share Member Cochran's and Members Baisa's concern
as well and again, this is one of those things we talked about for a long time. After, I just want to
hear your thoughts after hearing his comments. Are you still recommending we take this out,
because I, I, I do agree with them that we should keep this in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the Chair isn't, is recommending the deletion of this particular funding
looking at 2013 as the funding requirements for this particular project. I don't know how much
debt we can carry. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a question, Mr. Director. Does any County put in an SRF request that's
not a regulatory request?
MR. TAYLOR: Absolutely, including ourselves.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause I mean if that's what gives the priority and, and the Health
Department's I guess lean towards giving you the money, I mean, why would you put in
anything but a regulatory request?
MR. TAYLOR: That is not the only criteria, and I don't know all the criteria. I, I'm not sure that they
actually tell, ever show us their scoring sheets. I mean we hear little bits and pieces about their
criteria. I don't know that they actually publish that. I don't know if they really want us all to
know what their criteria is. One of 'em is regulatory, the other is are you ready to go, another is
what your past performance is. I, I don't know, even know how many criteria there are. I know
that's a criteria.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: So, as we hear about these criteria, we sort of, we, we, you know, we try to aim for the
ones at least we know about, ask for money when we're ready to go, really important regulatory
requirements, try to keep our, our reputation good with them, that we do what we say. All of
these things we know do help us get up on the priority list. What the other criteria are I don't
know and what the waiting is I don't know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank, thank, thank you, Mr. Director. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question for Mr. Baz. In regards to the CIP reports for the Water Department,
you know, we, we don't see it. I, I, I really don't know the, the, the record for project
completion by the Department. If we could get those CIP reports in regards to the Water
Department?
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MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I, I, I'm not sure why that's the case that those reports are not included
with the CIP report. I went back a few months and a few reports and none of the Water projects
were listed in that report. My, my assumption is because the Water Department's finances are,
are managed within the Water Department, then that report comes from the Finance Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, if, if we can get that report. For me, it's gonna give me a clear idea
how much they can do in regards to Capital Improvements. So, you know, we keep pumping
money into this one particular Department, but what do we see in return? I, I, I don't know. I
don't know. Mr. White, you got questions?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know, this is, this is another challenging one,
because maintaining our sources of water Upcountry is very important to everyone up there,
including the farmers and our ability to keep their rates low and...anyway, we gotta put
something in there to keep, keep this ball rolling. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair, real, real brief, real briefly I, I, I, I concur with Mr. White. I
think, I think we've been hearing of the needs for repairs to Waikamoi for so many years,
especially since we've also been informed that the loss of water from the flume, itself, has been,
it would be an advantage for us to recapture as soon as possible to add to the, to the availability
of source. So, you know, I'm, I'm kind of struggling on this one because I do understand the
need for immediate repair, so we can address the, the need for providing source to the people
Upcountry, especially those who've been waiting. And I, I still, I still have struggles looking at
totally eliminating this particular request, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What I'll do is we'll revisit this thing here, and I await the CIP report
from Mr. Baz. I, I, I just want to be sure that if we're gonna place money into the Water
Department that projects, for projects, that they are completed. As you note when you look at
the highway, you know, there's millions of dollars that's still there. You know, I'm sure this
Department going get millions of dollars still there. So anyway, I will revisit this one particular
area.
MR. TAYLOR: And, Mr. Chair, if could make one comment to, to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. TAYLOR: --your comment? This is a project that has been, is being worked on by the
consultants. There isn't a whole lot of work internally for the Department of Water Supply to do
anymore. It's now in the hands of the consultants. So whether or not the staff in the Department
of Water Supply has been good or bad about, you know, getting projects done, this project is at
the point where it's kind of in the hands of the private sector, if you want to put it that way. I
mean the consultant is really 99 percent in control of this schedule at this point. The, the, the one
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thing that I'm, we're still a little unclear on is exactly what role the Army Corps of Engineers has
and how long that's gonna take. 'Cause there's some stream crossings in there and that kind of
thing. So I don't know that even if we had a horrible track record in the past or a great track
record in the past, I don't know that that track record is really going to influence whether or not
this particular project is successful or not, because that wouldn't have been the reason why this
project will either be on time or not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, the importance of this project, you know, is very critical, I know
that, okay. And I read reports about the millions, of a million gallons a day that is being wasted.
I understand that. But for me, I just want to be reassured that if we put money into any project,
that the project, you know, you can assure me about, you know, that particular group that is, you
know, working on this thing here, but there's still hoops and I guess that we need to jump
through like Corps of Engineers. I don't know, maybe we have some cultural problems, I don't
know. So I, I just want to be reassured that once we place big monies into a project, that it's
gonna happen, and, you know, not have that money just stagnate for years to replace or put in
new infrastructure. So we'll revisit this one here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --do you, do you feel, and, and again, just so we get a, maybe a sense, or do
you think maybe by midmorning tomorrow, Staff would be able to kind of give us a rough
calculation on-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --what is available for at least Water Department-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --projects versus...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, I just asking so we can kind of maybe help judge our day,
Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. KANESHINA: Okay. If it's the, if it's the Committee's desire to have those numbers by
midmorning, we, we can make those available.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, could we-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --just a 30-second recess please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. We'll recess for...just sit it your place. Recess. . . . (gavel). .

RECESS:

9:59 p.m.

RECONVENE:

10:00 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee Meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're on Page 30, Water Fund (Restricted), West Maui Community Plan
Area. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. You know, I guess there's, I was wanting to know the
distinction between West Maui Source Improvement on Page 25, from Bond Fund, versus this
one, Water, same thing West Maui Source Improvement Water Fund (Restricted)? And-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in the, in the actual project itself, I guess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand your question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I can see there's difference in funding, but I was interested in what
they're for?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: I, I, I'm sorry. Could you repeat? We're not quite following.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: There's West Maui Source Improvement on Page 25 under Bond
Fund, and then here again we're on Page 30, West Maui Source Improvement under this Water
Fund (Restricted). So my question is...says the same thing, West Maui Source Improvement, I
just wanted to know what, what the two were?
MR. TAYLOR: It, it's the same project. There's just two different funding sources for that project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, for the, the exploratory wells?
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MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And what if these wells don't produce or they come up with DBCPs
and what have you, and we're giving you all this money to explore wells?
MR. TAYLOR: This is, that's a fantastic question. And that is exactly what I've alluded to a number of
times in the past couple of months. I wanna say that developing source is risky. Somebody
spends money to drill a hole in the ground, and these are expensive holes, your multimillion
dollar holes, and you're hoping that they work. At some point, somebody is taking that risk. So
either we do it and this is something the Council really needs to become comfortable with if
we're gonna develop source. We may have to drill three wells to get one that works well. So
maybe we spend $5 million on three different wells and only one produces. That's equivalent to
us buying a $5 million well from a private developer because he also drilled, you know, three
wells till he got a good one. So we try with the hydro-geologists to locate locations and geology
and geography that look like they should yield good results. But until that well is finished, you
really don't know. So there is risk and it's something that if we are, as Member Hokama has
discussed a couple of times in this meeting, going to take the lead and drill our own wells, the
Council and the public needs to understand that there will be failures, and we have to be willing
to understand the big picture that as long as in the big picture we're beating the return of the
private developers, we're not, you know, paying them profit, we have to be willing to take those
risks, we have to be willing to fail. And it can't be that the public said oh, you know, you guys
spent $1 million and got nothing, you, therefore, you failed. That is part of source development,
somebody's gonna own that risk, and if we let the private sector do it, you know, we'll let them,
we'll just pay them for that risk or we take it ourselves. Either way it's the same, but as I
mentioned before, it's very difficult to do research and development, if you'll call it that, in the
government. The private sector does it all the time and they, they just consider the loss as a cost
of doing business. When we do research and development and something doesn't work, you
know, we're, we're considered wasters of money and failures and things. But the fact is, this is
the kind of work that you have to take some risks, you have to be prepared to have some failures,
or you will never have any successes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Who, Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --who's the anticipated users of this water?
MR. TAYLOR: The West Maui users, I mean, basically it's a-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, but this is in the Mahinahina above Honokowai area-MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --roundabout is that correct?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. So basically everything north of Kaanapali. Kaanapali is basically the
split.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well currently everybody has enough water-MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is my point. So are we, that's why I'm wondering who are we
digging this, maybe hopefully, well for at this point? There must be some anticipated people,
right, that are gonna buy this water from us?
MR. TAYLOR: Absolutely, we're, we're in West Maui right now as you, you take it back to what you
were talking to Mr. Ginoza about, about this R-1 project. The reason that they, that Intrawest
came to the County is, came to the Wastewater group is because the Department of Water
Supply said we do not have enough water to support your project. So we are almost out of
potable water in West Maui. So assuming when you look at the Maui Island Plan and the Urban
Growth Boundaries, that is heading towards there being more water users in West Maui, not less.
So that is part of our job is to, is to get ready for those people.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Consensus?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, I just wanted to explain the use of the fund for the, Ms. Cochran's concern there,
her original question. The Water Resource Restricted Funds are water meter fees, water
development service fees that are restricted in use to water source development. This project
when we looked at it, the amount of fees that were available to use was less than the total project
costs, so we've funded the rest of it through bond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: And to add to that, the bond would be paid off with more restricted funds. So
specifically your question who would pay for this? People pulling new water meters or people
who've already pulled water meters. So the funding for this, even the debt service on the bonds,
isn't going to come out of your water bill, it's gonna come out of meter fees for people
who...because that's how we fund, you know, new source development at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions? Okay, consensus, Members?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, let's see. That's all for Water, right, Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, wait. Oh, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, just a question. And if it's not the time, it's okay, but we're, are
gonna see Mr. Taylor again or is this our last shot with him because it is, if it is, I wondered if we
could quickly talk about the expansion position and get rid of that off the list? It's up to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That was on Page 20 at the top.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me see how many we got.
MR. TAYLOR: Are you asking for my comments or do you have a specific question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wait till Chair says okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. TAYLOR: 'Cause we only have one expansion position-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MR. TAYLOR: --and I know exactly what it is without turning to the page.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Civil Engineer VI.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We'd like to hear your comments, we discussed it and we wanted to
hear what you had to say.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. A little history from a year ago, that position was, that position is the
Engineer VI, who's the head of the Capital Improvement Group. That position used to be
occupied by Ms. Taomoto, who's currently the Countywide CIP Coordinator. The timing on that
was she moved from this position to the Managing Director's Office right before budget next
year, last year, I'm sorry. And so when the Council was removing vacant positions, I mean I
think that position was vacant for probably less than a month, or I, I mean it was almost, it had
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just been vacated. So what's been happening since then is now all the Capital Improvement
engineers report directly to the Division Head. The Division Head's also in charge of all the
other functions of, of that division and doesn't have a whole lot of time to mentor, train, and
oversee all the CIP projects. So I think the Department and I saw this, I wasn't even in the
Department and I saw the, the, the problem this was causing even, you know, when I was in a
different department. CIP is such a specialized effort especially for these difficult infrastructure
projects that it really hampers the ability of the group to get CIP done. And I think I said in my,
some of my first comments I made in my opening remarks for budget this season was that I
mentioned that expansion position, and I think I told the Council that there's no way we're gonna
get all the CIP done without that position even though the Council's looking at cutting a bunch
of construction funding. I think about my earlier comments, we're gonna keep having to design
all of that stuff whether or not we get the construction funding anyway. So cutting the
construction funding doesn't diminish the level of workload of that group one bit. So we still
need that position or we won't be ready later in FY '13 to do this, to do this, do all these projects.
I also want to mention, you know, there's been a lot of talk about the Mayor's Attrition Policy
and I want to mention that even though the Mayor has, has talked about that, even though we
have that, the Mayor approved this expansion position even though he knew that was his policy.
He clearly understood that this is a need if we're gonna do this water. So even in light of that
Attrition Policy, he still wanted to expand the CIP group, add that supervisor back in. It is very
important to us as an Administration, it's important to me as the manager of this group. I
honestly having done CIP in the County for almost 20 years, I just don't see how we're gonna
get along without this position. And so, of all the things in the budget that are on this list, my, I
almost get on my knees and beg to you folks, this is the single most important thing to me that
we will just fail unless we can keep the CIP engineering at this critical mass level with the right
people doing these jobs. Otherwise, no matter how much money you give us, we will not have
good performance. I, I would just absolutely beg you folks to put this position back in, because
otherwise, you know, year after year, you're gonna ask me why we're not getting the CIP done.
So I think that's enough on that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. That's, that's a very good answer. When we
were discussing it this morning, there was talk about vacancies and another engineering position
that is vacant and could that be...I don't know about the verbiage they use in Personnel Services,
but use that and move it up.
MR. TAYLOR: All of that can always be done and I will say this, there, sometimes when we talk about
the A Account being different then the B Account and things like that and the CIP Account, I
really don't see it that way. There's engineering man hours and there's surveying man hours,
and there's drafting man hours. Whether those are people who work on the 5 floor, and then
we pay them with A Account money, or we outsource it with CIP money, or we do little
contracts with B Account money, it's the man hours that matter. So technically, I mean, you
don't need anybody on the 5 th floor as long as we're hiring outside contractors to do it all. The
work still needs to be done, and on this work that is constantly done year after year after year,
which these positions are is what you're talking about, it really just seems to make more sense to
me--and like I said, I've been doing CIP a long time--to own our own project management, to
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have our own people to do this, this, this, this constant level of work and only outsource the
specialty work that isn't the same year after year, after year. And that is our most economical
way of doing CIP. So we can always use vacant positions and get rid of them, but that work's
gonna have to be done by somebody and it just means we're gonna be, you know, hiring private
sector people with B Account or CIP to do the same work. So the question is can we do it more
efficiently or can they?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I'll let others ask, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You, you make a good case there, Mr. Director, but, you know, for us, you
know, we deal with the reports and we deal with responses. And in your Department, it shows a
Civil Engineer VI and that could've been Ms. Taomoto and I'm not sure or it may not. But part
of the description on the side of action of report was the, the, kill letters NTF or NRF, no request
to fill. So can you give us some comments since from what the report tells us, the Department
didn't request to fill this Engineer VI. But we're being asked to add a new Engineer VI. So
maybe you can give us some comment to what you may be aware of, Mr. Director, that might
help us make a better decision.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? If I might, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Go ahead, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. The report that you received from the Personnel Services Department, with the
vacancy information on there, does list a Civil Engineer VI, Position No. WW-0207-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --and that is exactly the position that we're requesting to get restored. If you notice, right
after it says NRF, it also says EP reduced, and that means what, what that note is, is the Council
last year went through and reduced the EP count of majority of the vacant positions-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --that were vacant in March of, of last year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So was, was, was Council's part of deliberation because of the NRF
Department position?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, Mr. Hokama, I'm not-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
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MR. BAZ: --I'm not sure of that. As you know, I wasn't in the budget position and maybe some of the
Members of the Committee who were here last year that had the discussion and make the
decision could answer that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh. Okay, okay, no, I was just curious since, you know, what
was the, the sequence of event? If after Council was made aware that there was no request to fill
position, it makes sense to me why you'd eliminated the position because there was no intention
to use it anyway. But if the, if the notice, see, 'cause why would you put a notice not to fill the
position if the position was eliminated?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair, the, from discussions with the Personnel Department on this no request to
fill, that doesn't mean that there wasn't discussions about the position. And if you look, the
position became vacant August 31 St of '09, which, you know, so, so September of '09, is, is
when Wendy moved up to the Managing Director's Office and, you know, I'm not sure, you
know, we weren't here in the office, but assuming that it takes, you know, a couple of months to
evaluate the position, evaluate the need, and then discuss, you know, with management the
request to fill, the economy was, you know, down, and doing those kinds of things, there may
have been, you know, a hesitation, you know, initially to get it filled, but when it was deleted,
when the EP count was reduced by the previous Council, then, you know, of course, you know,
we did not fill the position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, so, so, so we know at this point in time, Mr., Mr., Chang is in charge of
your Engineering Division, and I know he came up to Committee meetings a couple of times.
And so I didn't know whether he was actually Chief of CIP or does he wear two hats for you,
Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, he does. He, he's in charge of the Engineering Division, which is subdivision
reviews, building permit reviews, CIP, and any engineering support to operations. So that is a
little too much to give the focus to managing CIP. In Environmental Management Wastewater,
which is a very similar operation as you can imagine where I came from, we have an Engineer
VI or they have an Engineer VI, who is the head of OP, who has nothing to do with permits. All
the other engineers answer to that person. CIP is such a specialized sort of effort that you need
someone who's been through it for a number of years, who can train the new people, who can
give them the time they need to review their work, to help them, to teach them how to do it. And
Water doesn't have anyone like that. Mr. Chang's wearing a lot of hats and that's a very
part-time hat-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --that just is not enough to, you know, especially when you get people who are new to
the County, who they may be very experienced design engineers, but they've never been CIP
project managers. Somebody has to teach them how to do it. And, and, and this sounds like
some passion from in here because my early years, my first ten years as a CIP engineer, I didn't
have a CE VI under me and I just learned through failure. And it was not a very efficient way
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for, for my first, you know, entry to the County where there was really no one training me on
how to do CIP, and it took a really long time to teach myself.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Last question, Mr. Director. So I know you're justifying the request
for a Civil VI, so from what you sharing with us this evening, the way it's coming to, to me, as
an individual Committee Member, I guess I don't, I guess I don't see that you'll get any benefit
from this proposed CIP squad or team that is being proposed for Public Works, which is an
Engineer II, an Engineer VI, an Engineer V, possibly a Structural Engineer I or an Architect W
that was, as we were told, to help coordinate and expedite County CIP. But I don't think this
would be to your advantage to, the way you coming across is only your Engineer VI is to your
Department's advantage regarding CIP.
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. My understanding of that proposal is, is that would create a CIP
implementation team or whatever the right term for it is for these departments that don't have
OP engineering staff. This group was not going to do Water and Wastewater Projects, who have
their own CIP staff. They weren't going to do I believe road and drainage projects because
there's already CIP people who do those. This was meant for groups that don't have CIP
organizations that don't normally do high levels of CIP. That's my-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You explained it in-MR. TAYLOR: --understanding.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --a lot more detail than what we were told earlier, because I never heard that
these people wasn't supposed to assist Water Department and Sewer and Solid Waste and all of
these things. That wasn't how it was presented to the Committee, so.
MR. TAYLOR: Whether they would have said, maybe assist is a good word, lead is not the right word.
You know, perhaps if there was an electrical engineer on staff there and Water doesn't have an
electrical engineer, you know, maybe to give some advice or things like that, but the project, that
proposal, was not going to take away CIP project management and implementation from the
departments, from Public Works engineering, from Water, or from Wastewater who have these
large CIP efforts and, and dedicated staff. It was never meant to do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for your comments, Mr. Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you, Dave.
Again, all of the department heads will be on call as we move through this budget process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No question on that position, but according to my page back on
Page 30, just above that Water Fund (Restricted Section), I don't show a consensus on that,
Wailuku-Kahului Source Improvement. Did we?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Three hundred fifty grand there?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We did?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, and, then follow-up question for Director. Is that the Shaft 33
project then? ...(chuckle)...
MR. TAYLOR: I believe those, I believe those are the wells that will make Shaft 33 unnecessary.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. Just a fast...information that was passed on to me. The
particular position since 2009, there was no request to fill so it's been awhile. Okay, with that,
Members, the Chair's gonna adjourn this meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MPV)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee Meeting is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 10:23 p.m.
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